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Endurance, strength and agility are qualities that can only be built and
developed with rigorous and regular training over time. It is not only about

COVER STORY

being nimble on the feet or having flexibility to change direction and position
of the body swiftly and effectively while under control. It also requires quick
reflexes, coordination, balance, and correct response to the changing situation.

To be agile, one must have a high level of awareness, and have the ability to
process information and quick reflexes, all while maintaining balance and
control. Strategically, you are positioning yourself to enable yourself to take the
best course of action. Agility is about mindset, and the determination to act
with speed and precision. This is why physical agility training typically aims for
transformation of the whole body.

Cone drills training is often performed as a drill to build agility in sports training.
Markers are set up and you sprint from one marker to the other, do a quick turn
and sprint back. It uses a running course and involves not only a shuttle run,

but also weaving between cones, as pictured in this year’s cover.

Just as agility is one of the key components of fitness, in a business context,
agility has become essential to business long-term sustainability in today’s era
of fast-paced change.

We understand the importance of being agile to deftly adapt to changes both
internally and externally, including market changes, without losing momentum
or vision in productive and cost-effective ways. The Company has transformed
and prepared its business systems, infrastructure and processes, as well as
human capital in order to act faster and tackle challenges as efficiently as
possible. With better agility, we will strive to continue our growth trajectory and
become better and stronger.

Disclaimer

PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk (BFI Finance or the Company) has made every effort to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this Integrated Annual Report. However, the Company does not guarantee the
appropriateness, accuracy, usefulness or any other matter regarding this information. This Integrated Annual Report contains some forward-looking statements about the Company’s future expectations, plans, and strategies that
are not historical facts. They are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections about the business and environment in which the Company operates and beliefs and assumptions made by management.

As these expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, actual results may differ materially from those projected. The Company, therefore, wishes to

caution readers not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Furthermore, the Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements as a result of new information, future events or

other developments. Any reliance placed on these Integrated Annual Report and Financial Statements is done entirely at the risk of the person placing such reliance. Please also note that numbers represented throughout this
Integrated Annual Report have been rounded up to the closest million or billion rupiah, and as such, there may be discrepancies in percentage change calculations compared to when calculated using full figures from the Annual
Financial Statements.



AGILITY FOR

TRANSFORMATION

We have seen drastic changes in

the global financial services industry
over the last few years. The biggest,

most destructive, but also the

most creative force disrupting the
industry is technology and the pace
at which technology is changing.
The question is how do we
embrace this disruption? Business
agility is the ability to compete and
thrive in the digital age by quickly
responding to market changes and
emerging opportunities. We have
seen how technology has radically
changed society and habits. The
problem we face today is that many
large and traditional organizations
are well aware of the threat of
digital disruption, and yet many fail
to make the transition to take their
place in the next economy. This is
why we have chosen to focus our
theme this year on Agility.

__ GRIIndex: 102-46

As a business, we have always
been focused on being agile.
Business agility is not just about
agile systems or processes, but it
also requires agile leaders. Agile
leaders build agile teams. It is
therefore not just a methodology
or a system, but a mindset that
needs to be instilled throughout
the organization. Business agility
can also break down organizational
silos and foster creativity and
innovative problem-solving, thanks
to the cross-pollination of ideas
and supportive environment. To
deploy this strategy across the
organization, it requires larger
commitment from our business
leaders across the country, and
fundamental changes to how

the organization is structured

and operated.

In 2019, the Company’s agile
transformation was carried out
through many pilot projects and
re-testing new initiatives prior

to scaling up. In the past, those
initiatives took longer to implement
due to rigid decision making
process. However, we started

to take more risks in smaller
scale, thus minimize the risk of
failures in a larger scale and,
simultaneously, accelerate the
organizational capability to learn,
and finding new opportunities for
further improvement.
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AGILITY FOR

TRANSFORMATION

Aspiring to thrive alongside market
development while seizing emerging
opportunities, BFI Finance continues

to instill a culture of change and
transformation within the organization,

to make it more agile and resilient in the
face of future challenges. This requires
deftness and robustness of systems and
processes, as well as in our organization-

wide mindset.

EMBRACING

A NEW NORMAL

In today’s world, information
technology’s role in supporting

the Company’s

as business process catalyst is
increasingly crucial. Aiming to
develop services to consistently

meet customer

expectations, the Company has

Grow Leads,
Create Value

EMBRACING A
NEW NORMAL

GROW LEADS,
CREATE VALUE

The Company’s efforts to create
value by providing benefits to all
stakeholders is made manifest in
the Company’s relentless pursuit
to further improve its internal
capabilities and expanding its
business reach more optimally in
the market.

performance and

needs and

INNOVATE
SERVE

INNOVATE TO SERVE

It is an initiative of the Company to
improve the business operations.
The Company is certain that there
is always room for improvement, no
matter how simple or small.

§ DFTINLL G LLAR

OPTIMIZE « GROW ¢ LEAD

Optimization strategies for superior
performance to strengthen the
Company’s growth not only for
now, but also for the medium and
long term, and especially during
challenging times.

aligned its business strategies and
is focused on continuing to provide
better services to its customers,
while accelerating the development
of digital-based information
technology, to address modern

challenges and evolve together with

its customers.



INTRODUCTION TO INTEGRATED REPORTING

— GRI Index: 102-14

BFI Finance presents this 2019 Annual Report as an Integrated Report.

This report describes how the balance maintained along the Triple
Bottom Line (Profit-People—Planet or 3P) has contributed to BFI Finance’s
long-term achievements and how the Company, engaged in the financial
services industry, nurtures innovation in order to fuffill the aspirations

of shareholders, interact across generations, cater the needs of our
customers and business partners that always move dynamically with the
times and technology, and create sustainable added value.

Having been in the industry in Indonesia for more than 37 years, BFI
Finance remains enthusiastic as ever to strengthen its footing as one

of the most experienced and well-trusted multifinance company in
Indonesia. The Company aims to maintain presence at the heart of the
society as it grows with them, tracing the trends and experiencing the
dynamics of era after era. BFI Finance has proven itself as capable of
moving along with the change of the times with great agility, traversing the
shift in lifestyle among the younger generation, and staying abreast with
technological advancement. In supporting its efforts to deliver the best
level of service to the society, the Company is engaging various channels
to understand what they need, so that it can provide solutions to its
customers’ wide-ranging financial needs with a great degree of ease,
convenience, security, and reliability.

In carrying out its business activities and daily operations, the Company
upholds ethics, complies with the laws and regulations as well as norms
and rules set out by the regulators. Amidst the advance of the economy
and the increasing competitiveness of business, BFI Finance staunchly
works with the principle of prudence at its fore, and with a well-directed
and continuous implementation of risk management behind it. The
Company is actively engaged in the development of social aspects, and



conserves energy within its premises.
BFI Finance is strongly committed to
safeguard its sound reputation as a
multifinance company that employs
sustainable governance in Indonesia’s
thriving financial services industry.

BFI Finance upholds its commitment
without reserve to creating positive
values and delivering benefits based on
the aspirations of all its stakeholders,

in line with its vision to become the
trusted financial solutions partner of the
society and a pillar of ongoing social
welfare enhancement in Indonesia.

Reporting References

The 2019 Integrated Report of BFI
Finance combines the Annual Report
(including the financial statements
from independent auditor) and the
Sustainability Report. This practice has
been ongoing since the publication of
BFI Finance’s 2016 Integrated Report
as the first edition of the Integrated
Report, on 24 March 2017.

The 2019 Integrated Report covers a
reporting period spanning 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019. The
Company publishes the Integrated
Report once every year.

In its preparation, this report refers to
the prevailing laws and regulations that
pertain to the presentation of Annual
Reports for Public Companies and the
guidelines for Sustainability Reporting

set forth by the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) and the International
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC).

Financial data and information
presented in this report are in line
with the prevailing SFAS in Indonesia.
Non-financial data and information
are presented in line with of the
Sustainability Reporting Guidelines
from the GRI Standards. This report
has been prepared in accordance
with the GRI Standards: Core Option.
The Company does not obtain any
assurance from external parties on its
2019 Integrated Report.

The integration of the financial and
nonfinancial reporting in this report has
been prepared following the principal
guidelines from the International
Integrated Reporting Framework
issued by IIRC. This report presents
various non-financial topics that are
material for BFI Finance and the

views of its stakeholders. The report’s
theme, “Agility for Transformation”, has

been chosen for reasons explained
in the Theme Explanation section
(see page 1).

Scope and
Restatements

The reporting scope in the
Company’s 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements covers all of the
Company’s business operations and
its subsidiaries.

In its 2019 Integrated Reporting,

the Company did not make any
restatements on any of the data it had
presented in its 2018 Integrated Report.
The Company also did not make

any substantial changes as regards

the reporting scope and selection

of material topics to be discussed in
this report.



About the
Integrated Report

The usage of Integrated Reporting
(IR) framework as established by
IIRC is aimed at presenting corporate
reports in a more efficient and
productive manner.

True to its name, the Integrated Report
presents how resources owned

by the Company interact with the
external environment and the existing
sources of capital, in order to create

added value in the short, medium,
and long term. As the interaction of
resources is regarded from a holistic

stance to create sustainable value, the

information in this report is valuable

not only for its financial purposes, but

also is valuable for the employees,
customers, suppliers and partners of

the Company, as well as for the public,

regulators, and policymakers.

GRAPH 1_INTERNATIONAL INTEGRATED REPORTING COUNCIL (IIRC) REPORTING FRAMEWORK
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More on the IR framework and its supporting information is available on https:/integratedreporting.org.

— GRIIndex: 102-48, 102-49, 102-50, 102-51, 102-52, 102-54, 102-56
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SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Subject Matter

The 2019 Integrated Annual Report of PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk is an integration of both the annual
and sustainability reports, consisting of ten chapters on the Company’s business and non-business related
discussions, as follows:

V] 2019 Performance Highlights [V] Business Supporting Units V] Corporate Social Responsibility

v Management Reports v Management Discussion v Corporate Supporting Data

and Analysis

Vv Company Profile V] Annual Financial Statements

Y1 Human Capital V] Good Corporate Governance
In addition to the printed book form, this report is accessible online on the Company’s website:

@ https://www.bfi.co.id/investor-relations/annual-report

References

The main references used in the making of the 2019 Integrated Annual Report of PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk
are the regulations issued by regulators or authorities concerning publication of annual report by public
companies or issuers and international standard guideline for sustainability reporting, among others:

Law No. 40/2007 on Limited Liability Other laws, POJK, SEOJK, and regulations
Companies (UU PT); which become the references for the content

and discussion material in the integrated
POJK No. 29/POJK.04/2016 on Annual annual report; and

Report of Issuers or Public Companies;
GRI Standards from the Global

SEOJK No. 30/SEOJK.04/2016 on the Form Reporting Initiative (GRI) as a reference of
and Content of the Annual Report of Issuers the disclosure criteria of elements within the
and Public Companies; Sustainability Report chosen by the Company.

Regulations related to stock exchange
and capital market issued by IDX;

Sustainability Report Element

The inclusion of Sustainability Report (SR) element in the Integrated Annual Report is a form of the
Company’s compliance with POJK No. 51/POJK.03/2017 on the Implementation of Sustainable Finance for
Financial Services Institutions, Issuers, and Public Companies.

Sustainable Finance is a comprehensive support from the financial services sector to create sustainable
economic growth by aligning economic, social and environmental interests.

The SR element is also based on GRI Standards as the sustainability reporting standards issued by GRI.



Implementation of Integrated Reporting (IR) Standard

BFI Finance began publishing the Integrated Annual Report in 2017, to report on its 2016 performance. The Company refers to
the Integrated Reporting (IR) Framework issued by IIRC and has been applying it gradually over the years as a learning step.

BFI Finance presents the report by emphasizing the business process integration with capital elements owned by the
Company, and how this integration then create added value to various stakeholders of the Company. With this application,
it is hoped that the Company’s annual report is able to state the facts on its business and non-business activities and
performances in a transparent and structured way.

The decision of the Company’s management to prepare the Integrated Annual Report is testament to the Company’s effort
to issue an Integrated Report in accordance with an international standard, but still refers to and abides by the applicable
regulations in Indonesia.

Company Capital

Referring to the IR Framework, the Company’s business processes comprise six main types of capital, namely:

9% 4 8 B B

Financial Manufactured Intellectual Human Relationship & Social Natural

Company Stakeholders

Given BFI Finance’s line of business as a multifinance company, and its alignment with the six main types of capital,
the Company’s business and non-business performances and achievements create added value to its main
stakeholders, who are, among others:

4 & & @ 08

Customers Shareholders/ Employees Regulators General Public Environment
Investors
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SUMMARY OF 2019 SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE

Sustainability Statement

We conduct a responsible business that elevates the livelihoods of our customers by providing them with

access to financial empowerment through financing products, with a consideration on the betterment of society

and conservation of the environment.

BFI Finance’s Value Distribution

Through the financing business we are engaged in, over the course of 2019 we:

Provided financing products to more than 550 thousand customers in 33 provinces in Indonesia, and
therefore elevated their economic capability and self-reliance;

Absorbed the workforce by providing employment to 12,127 personnel;

Utilized the products and services provided by more than 800 suppliers from across Indonesia that
partnered with us;

Contributed to the surroundings’ social betterment and environmental conservation through our CSR and
financial literacy activities and tax payments to the government; and

Created value and excellent returns for our shareholders/Investors through our sterling reputation in the
industry and an attractive dividend payout policy.

Financial Value Creation and Distribution

BFI Finance creates financial value and capital through its various business processes, and distributes

this to different stakeholders via various means and in various forms. The amount of financial value that
BFI Finance distributed in 2019, among others (in Rp million):

Revenue 5,240,729
Shareholders dan Investors 733,255*
Employees 1,216,813
Government 495,076

Business Continuity 711,682




Capital Utilization and Value Creation for Stakeholders

. . Utilization and Value - Explained in
Type of Capital Form of Capital Creation Activity Beneficiary Stakeholder Chapter
Financing facility Normal business activities ~ Customers, Shareholders/ 2, 3, 5, 6, 10
Financial ; i Investors, Suppliers
Equity Business strategy
execution
Operational business Expansion of physical Customers, Shareholders/ 2,3,59
network and digital presence, Investors, Employees,
strengthening via Suppliers
partnerships
©) :
@ Manufactured Operational Investment, and 2,35
infrastructure enhancement and
development
Information technology ~ Development and 2,5
(IT) investment in IT
Business model Development of a Customers, 2,3,5,6
robust and adaptive Shareholders/Investors,
Intellectual business model Employees, Suppliers
Digitalization initiatives ~ Formulation and 2,4,5
implementation of
digitalization in various
business processes
Employees Training, empowerment, Employees, Regulators 2,4,8
professional development
Work culture Dissemination to and 4
implementation by
% Human all employees
Employment practices  Enhancement and 4,7,8
alignment with the
prevailing standards and
best practices
Partnership with the Support to government’s Regulators 2,6,7,8
government initiatives and
programs for national
welfare, compliance
with regulations
@ . _ _ Interactions with Empowerment and General Public 8
8 Relationship & Social surrounding enhancement of economic
communities self-reliance, improvement
of quality of life
Scholarship program Implementation General Public, Employees 8
and enhancement
CSR programs Formulation, General Public 8
implementation,
evaluation, and continuous  Environment 8
improvement
Natural
Resources utilization Reduction and more Environment 8

efficient use of resources
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423 121..... 608.6....

outlets employees contracts

in Indonesia,
excluding 45 sharia
representative branches

5.7« 11.6% 0. 85%

ROAA ROAE
Total Net Financing Total Profit for
Revenue Receivables Assets the Year
(Rp billion) (Rp billion) (Rp billion) (Rp billion)

*4.4,
5,241

5,018

*0.9¢,
17,439

17,283 &

"0.19
19,090

19,117

"51.5¢,

712

1,468

2019
2019
2019
2019

2018
2018
2018



Awards l

Infobank -
Multifinance Awards \
2019
Shareholders
e Platinum Trophy from Infobank
Multifinance Awards 2019 for . .
“Excellent Financial Performance” TrmuQraha Capltal 42.80%
10 years in a row (2009-2018) & Co SCA eue
¢ Ranked 2™ of Infobank Multifinance Others (each
Awards 2019 in the category of below 5(0/ ) 41.02%
£ “Multifinance Companies with Assets o
Above Rp10 Trillion” NT Asian o
Discovery Fund 9.90%
HR Asia Awards PT BFI Finance
Indonesia 2019 Indonesia Tbk 6.28%

HR Asia Awards Indonesia “Best
Companies to Work for in Asia” three
years in a row (2017-2019)

whi !

Best of the Best

Awards 2019 by Forbes “'“-hr.....‘..”,
Indonesia Outlet Region
o, Forbes Best of the Best Awards 2019 as
:_ — “The Top 50 Listed Companies for 2019” .
s and “Trifecta Award for Winning Three Java, Bali &
Years in a Row” (2017-2019) Nusa Tenggara 55%
(including Greater Jakarta)
Eastern Indonesia 17%
i Sumatra 17%
Managed Receivables by -
Asset Type Kalimantan 11%
Car 71.7
Heavy Equipment 15.0¢,
Motorcycle 1.1
Property and Others 2.2,

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

14-27

2019 performance

highlight

Figures in tables and charts below are presented in billion rupiah (unless stated otherwise).

TABLE 1_KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND RATIOS

Description 2017 2018 2019
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Financing Income 3,936 4,893 5,000
Others 106 125 241
Total Income 4,042 5,018 5,241
Interest and Financing Charges 895 1,036 1,008
Salaries and Benefits 889 1,075 1,217
General and Administrative 462 542 705
Provision for Impairment Losses 303 509 426
Others 5 16 793
Total Expenses 2,554 3,178 4,149
Profit Before Tax 1,488 1,840 1,092
Income Tax Expense 300 372 380
Profit for the Year 1,188 1,468 712
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - Net of Tax (29) 71 (102)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,159 1,539 610
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents 225 755 660
Net Financing Receivables 15,175 17,283 17,439
Other Receivables - Net 414 198 154
Derivative Assets 0 110 0
Fixed Assets - Net 457 530 541
Intangible Assets - Net 20 32 30
Other Assets 192 209 266
Total Assets 16,483 19,117 19,090
Fund Borrowings 6,819 6,900 7,730
Securities Issued - Net 3,909 5,196 3,758
Other Payables 851 817 1,622
Total Liabilities 11,579 12,913 13,010
Equity 4,904 6,204 6,080
Total Liabilities and Equity 16,483 19,117 19,090




Description

Shares Data

Share Outstanding (million) *

Basic Earnings per Share (Full Amount of Rupiah) *
Dividend per Share (Full Amount of Rupiah) *

Ratios

Profitability

Return on Average Assets (ROAA) *** 10.3% 10.3% 5.7%
Return on Average Equity (ROAE) **** 25.9% 26.4% 11.6%
Profit for the Year / Total Income 29.4% 29.2% 13.6%
Asset Quality

NPF (including Joint Financing) 0.95% 1.21% 0.85%
Allowance for Impairment Losses on Managed Receivables 1.5% 21% 1.9%
NPF Coverage 1.6 x 1.7 x 2.3 X
Liquidity

Current Ratio A 1.5 x 1.4 x 1.5 x
Solvency

Liabilities to Assets Ratio A 0.7 x 0.7 x 0.7 x
Liabilities to Equity Ratio AN 2.4 x 21 x 21 x
Gearing Ratio ANAA 2.2x 1.9 x 1.9 x
Other Relevant Financial Ratios

Financing-to-Assets Ratio 92.1% 90.4% 91.4%
Equity-to-Paid-up-Capital Ratio 1,228.6% 1,554.1% 1,528.2%
Operational Efficiency Ratio 64.8% 64.6% 671%

Other Information
Number of Outlets ANAAA 342 401
Number of Employees 9,884 11,171

Restated to reflect the 10-for-1 Stock Split in May 2017 Current Assets / Current Liabilities

Waiting for the resolution of the 2020 GMS Total Liabilities / Total Assets

Profit Before Tax / Average Assets Total Liabilities / Total Equity

Profit for the Year / Average Equity (Fund Borrowings and Securities Issued) / Equity

Consists of 232 branches (excluding 45 sharia
representative branches) and 191 kiosks
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SHARE HIGHLIGHTS

14-27

2019 performance
highlight

TABLE 2_HISTORY OF SHARE ISSUANCE

New Shares Outstanding

Corporate Action Period Issued Shares
(million) (million)
IPO @Rp5,750 April 1990 241 10.5
1-for-10 Stock Dividend January 1993 1.2 1.7
17-for-20 Stock Bonus July 1993 9.9 21.6
1-for-3 Stock Dividend January 1994 7.2 28.8
1-for-1 Rights Issue @Rp1,500 May 1994 28.9 57.7
2-for-1 Rights Issue @Rp1,000 March 1997 15.4 17341
2-for-1 Stock Split September 1997 17341 346.2
New Shares from MCB Conversion August 2002-May 2006 414.2 760.4
2-for-1 Stock Split August 2012 760.3 1,620.7
MESOP Phase | - Grant Date 1 May 2013 5.9 1,526.6
MESOP Phase | - Grant Date 2 May 2014 23.3 1,549.9
MESOP Phase Il - Grant Date 1 May 2015 16.0 1,566.0
MESOP Phase Il - Grant Date 2 May 2016 30.8 1,596.7
10-for-1 Stock Split June 2017 14,370.4 15,9671

TABLE 3_SHARE PRICE SUMMARY

Share Price Shares Circulation in Regular Market
T H Market
Period Highest Lowest Closing Transaction Volume ra\r;:laucelon Capitalization
i Rp billion
(Rp) (Rp) (Rp) (unit) (Rp billion) (Rp )
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
18t Quarter 920 740 660 640 800 660| 87,820,000 64,227,500  64.1 42.5| 12,773.7 10,538.3

2" Quarter 900 700 660 615 680 600| 15,450,700 55,916,800 1.9 35.6| 10,8576 9,580.3

3 Quarter 770 620 580 510 615 540| 65,283,000 58,956,700 415 33.4| 9,819.8 8,622.2

4" Quarter 700 615 500 490 665 560| 73,783,900 108,845100 43.3 61.7| 10,6181  8,941.6




GRAPH 2_SHARE PERFORMANCE
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BFI Finance shares’ market capitalization as at end of 2019 was Rp8.9 trillion, dropping by 16.0% from Rp10.6 trillion recorded

as at end of 2018.

Total number of BFI Finance shares traded in 2019 was 287,946,100 shares, worth Rp173.3 billion.

Comparison Between Share Price Performance of BFI Finance (BFIN) and
Composite Share Price Index in 2019

Trading of BFIN shares opened on 2 January 2019 with a closing price of Rp665 and closed on 30 December 2019 with a
closing price of Rp560 per share, reflecting a contraction of 15.8%, while the IHSG throughout 2019 rose by 1.7%.
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Structure of Shareholders

BFI Finance’s structure of shareholders with ownership of 5% or more as of 31 December 2019 are detailed below:

TABLE 4_STRUCTURE OF SHAREHOLDERS

2019

Shareholders :
Total Shares Nominal Amount %

(Rp)

Trinugraha Capital &

Rt 6,835,249,660  170,881,241,500  42.80
NT Asian 1,581,275640  39,531,891,000  9.90
Discovery Fund

PT BFl Finance 1002,732,000  25,068,300,000  6.28
Indonesia Thk

Others

leech beloN %0 6,547,858,320  163,696,458,000  41.02
Total Issued and

Fully Paid-up 15,967,115,620  399,177,890,500 100.00
Capital

* Result of the Company’s stock buyback program in line with the EGMS resolution on 15 April 2015

History of Dividend Payment

GRAPH 3_SHAREHOLDERS COMPOSITION

42.80%

41.02%

6.28%

9.90%

® Trinugraha Capital & Co SCA
NT Asian Discovery Fund
PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbok*
@ Others (each below 5%)

History of dividend payment by the Company for the last five years are detailed below:

TABLE 5_DIVIDEND PAYMENT FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Fiscal Year 2015* 2016* 2017 2018 2019
DateorBOD Mestngias 1 L o apgn NS

Dividend per Share (in full amount - rupiah currency)

Interim** 14 15 23 - e
Final*** 7 i 16 49 -
Total 21 26 39 49 -
Pay Out Ratio 49.7% 48.7% 49.1% 49.9% e
Payment Date

Interim™* 16 December 2015 16 December 2016~ 18 December 2017 - e
Final**** 25 May 2016 18 May 2017 18 May 2018 28 June 2019 e
Total Dividend (Rp billion) 323 389 584 733 -

Restated to reflect the 10-for-1 Stock Split in May 2017
Interim cash dividend was determined at the BOD Meeting
No interim cash dividend payment in 2019

* Any payment of final dividend for 2019 shall be determined at the 2020 GMS
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governance responsibility data statements
The Company’s debt securities listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange are:
TABLE 6_BONDS ISSUANCE FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS
. Amount
Debt Securities Issued ~ Date LISted kg vtive Date Bond Total Issued Due Date Status
on IDX Ratings  (Rp million) L
(Rp million)
Obligasi Series A: 10 March 28 February 2014 AA-(idn) 500,000 225,000 17 March 2015
Berkelanjutan 1 BF g o~ 2014 (No.5-121/D.04/2014) 55,000 7March 2016 Paid
Finance Indonesia ~ ——— "
Tahap | Tahun 2014  Series C: 220,000 7 March 2017
Obligasi Series A: 20 March 28 February 2014 AA-(idn) 1,000,000 345,000 29 March 2016
Berkelanjutan 11 BF g0 g, 2015 (No.S-121/D.04/2014) 105,000 19 March 2017 Paid
Finance Indonesia ~ — "
Tahap Il Tahun 2015  Series C: 550,000 19 March 2018
Obligasi Series A: 26 February 28 February 2014 AA-(idn) 1,000,000 200,000 5 March 2017
Berkelanjutan Il BFI o 2016 (N0.S-121/D.04/2014) )
Finance Indonesia Series B: 142,000 25 February 2018 Paid
Tahap Il Tahun 2016 Series C: 658,000 25 February 2019
Obligasi Series A: 26 October 17 October 2016 AA-(idn) 1,000,000 317,000 5 November 2017 baid
i R — ai
Berkelanjutan Il BFI “g¢ o g, 2016 (No.5588/D.04/2016) 550000 25 October 2019
Finance Indonesia ~ —_—_ "
Tahap | Tahun 2016 Series C: 133,000 25 October 2021 Not yet
due
Obligasi Series A: 3 March 17 October 2016 AA-(idn) 1,000,000 540,000 12 March 2018 Paid
Berkelanjutan Il BFl “gqies g: 2017 (No.5588/D.04/2016) 460,000 2March2020  Not vet
Finance Indonesia y
Tahap Il Tahun 2017 due
Obligasi Series A: 10 November 17 October 2016 AA-(idn) 835,000 335,000 19 November 2018 )
Berkelanjutan Il BFI . ] 2017 (N0.S588/D.04/2016) Paid
) . Series B: : : 100,000 9 November 2019
Finance Indonesia ~ — — —"
Tahap /Il Tahun 2017  Series C: 400,000 9 November 2020  Not yet
due
Obligasi Series A: 7 March 17 October 2016 AA-(idn) 2,165,000 946,000 16 March 2019 Paid
Berkelanjutan Il BFI “g,joc g, 2018 (No.S588/D.04/2016) 253,000 6 March 2020
Finance Indonesia Not vet
Tahap IV Tahun 2018 otye
- due
Series C: 966,000 6 March 2021
Obligasi Series A: 27 June 2018 7 June 2018 AA-(idn) 740,000 188,000 6 July 2019 Paid
Berkelanjutan IV BFI . ] (N0.S-67/D.04/2018)
Finance Indonesia Series B: 552,000 26 June 2021 Not yet
Tahap | Tahun 2018 due
Obligasi Series A: 25 February 7 June 2018 ‘A+(idn)’ 1,000,000 500,000 2 March 2020
Berkelanjutan IV BFI “g¢ o g, 2019 (No.S-67/D.04/2018) 500000 22 February2022  NO!Ye!
Finance Indonesia due

Tahap Il Tahun 2019

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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IMPORTANT EVENTS IN 2019
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50-103 104-121 122-133

company profile human capital business supporting unit

7 National Kick-off Meeting 2019 themed “Agility for Transformation” held at ICE BSD City,

South Tangerang

19 The National Final Period of UBER Milyaran
2018 Program’s Lucky Draw in Bandar
Lampung, Lampung

24 Inauguration of Wonogiri
Branch, Central Java

9 e |nauguration of Manggarai 2
Branch, Flores Island, East
Nusa Tenggara

“Road to BFI RUN 2019” event and run clinic at AEON Mall
BSD City

e Launching of BFI Srikandi,a
financing program and an
inclusive financial service
aimed at empowering
women, in Surabaya,

East Java

27 Talk show themed “BFI
Education >< Pintaria:
Study and Work, You Can!”
with a keynote speaker
from Pintaria.com, Zanetti
Sugiharti, at BFI Tower,
BSD City

BFI RUN 2019, with start and finish line at AEON Mall BSD City,
attended by approximately 6,000 runners in the National 21.1K (Half
Marathon), National 10K, and National 5K categories

' 5K
0g-ggop
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5 Handover of UBER Milyaran 2018 28 2019 AGMS and EGMS as well as Annual Public Expose at
Program’s Grand Prize (the result of the The Dharmawangsa Jakarta Hotel
National Final Period’s Lucky Draw) to a
customer of Jambi Branch

10 Signing of the amendment of the FLAPAT WML PEMEGANG SAMAM T
Syndicated Term-Loan Facility Agreement PR e
from USD55 million to USD200 million
from four banks (Standard Chartered
Bank, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation, MUFG Bank, dan ANZ)
in Singapore

25 The ceremony of CSR activity “1,000
School Uniforms and Stationeries 29 Press conference and MoU signing between Alumni
Movement” for 1,000 students from 12 Association of Engineering Faculty of Universitas Indonesia
elementary schools in Sintang, West (ILUNI FTUI) and BFI Finance for “Indonesian Quick Response
Kalimantan, and iftar with the students, School” (SICT) and clean water sanitation projects in Palu,
parents, principals, and teachers Central Sulawesi

21 Leaders Talk with the theme 1 Inauguration of Digital Channel sub-branch — Digital Processing Unit (UDP) at

“Digital Communication: How
to Communicate Effectively in
Today’s Generation Workplace”
with Becky Tumewu, founder
of TALKINC., at BFI Tower,
BSD City

Surabaya Branch, East Java

20 The 1%t phase of “Semarak Kemilau BFI” lucky draw, a lottery program for
customers worth billions of rupiah, in Pekanbaru, Riau

30 “BFI GeekCreathon 2019” event, themed “Big Data & Al in Financial Services
Business” at Universitas AMIKOM Yogyakarta

31 July - 2 August

-

“BFI Educational Trip
2019” for outstanding
elementary school
students from Sintang,
West Kalimantan,

by visiting several
educational tourist
attractions in Jakarta

314-336 338-443 23
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AUGUST
3 The 2" phase of 24 The 3 phase of “Semarak
“Semarak Kemilau Kemilau BFI” lucky draw in
BFI” lucky draw in Manado, North Sulawesi
Balikpapan, East
Kalimantan
SEPTEMBER
1 Participation in “Sympathetic Parade of 2019 National Customer Day”
held by Frontier Group during the Car Free Day in Jakarta
2 Inauguration of Mataram 2 Branch’s
relocation to a new building and
change to West Mataram Branch, West
Nusa Tenggara
14 The 4™ and last phase of “Semarak
Kemilau BFI” lucky draw in Bekasi,
West Java
OCTOBER
2 Talk show of “BFI 4 U” program themed 17 Leaders Talk, themed “Self Development from

18-19 Microbusiness (SME) training

Within”, with Edhie Sarwono, Director of PT United
Tractors Tbk, at BFI Tower, BSD City

“Share to Care” with a keynote speaker
from The Body Shop Indonesia, Dita
Agustia, at BFI Tower, BSD City

and bazaar of various products,
themed “#TherelsAlwaysAWay
to Start a Business from
Simple Things” in collaboration
with PontiMarket, an SME
community in Pontianak,

West Kalimantan
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25 Inauguration of the completion of “Quick

Response Indonesian School” (SICT)
project and groundbreaking ceremony to
start the clean water sanitation project in
Palu, Central Sulawesi

300-313
corporate social
responsibility

314-336
corporate supporting
data

338-443
annual financial
statements

28 Education of Financial Literacy 2019 Program
themed “Building a Healthy Financial Mindset”
at Charitas High School, Jakarta

NOVEMBER

7

16

e Inauguration of Digital Channel
sub-branch - Digital Processing Unit (UDP)
at Bekasi Branch, West Java

e Awarded the Silver Achievement in
“Indonesia Operational Excellence
Conference and Award (OPEXCON) Project
Competition 2019” in the Service category
by SHIFT Indonesia magazine in Jakarta

Inauguration of CSR projects in the form of
renovations of library and toilet facilities at a

public elementary school in Mekarsari Village,

Rumpin Sub-district, Bogor District, West
Java, in collaboration with volunteers from

Universitas Mercu Buana Jakarta

DESEMBER

3  “BFI Agile Thought Community (BATC) Meetup” event
with Joshua Partogi, Professional Scrum Master &

Trainer, at BFI Tower, BSD City

18

Inauguration of Digital Channel sub-branch — Digital
Processing Unit (UDP) at East Jakarta Branch

19 Inauguration of Pemalang Branch, Central Java

20 Wonder Mom Day” and Parenting Talk Show events,
themed “Education on Sexuality to Children Is Not a
Taboo” with a keynote speaker Anna Surti Ariani, S.Psi.,

M.Si., Psychologist
27 Inauguration of Pati Branch, Central Java

31 Inauguration of Balikpapan 2 Branch, East Kalimantan

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

Indonesia Millennials Top Brand
Award 2019

1st Millennials Choice in Vehicle
Financing Product Category

Warta Ekonomi magazine, 25 January 2019
in Jakarta

Indonesia Digital Innovation
Award 2019

Innovative Company in Providing Sharia
Digital Service Platform

Warta Ekonomi magazine, 22 February 2019
in Jakarta

Public Relations Indonesia Awards
(PRIA) 2019

Silver Winner in the “Brand Visual
Identity” category

PR INDONESIA magazine, 28 March 2019
in Bandung

HR Excellence Award 2019

e AA Rating in the category of
HR Technology

¢ A Rating in the category of
HR Transformation

SWA magazine in collaboration with
Lembaga Management Fakultas Ekonomi
Universitas Indonesia and Bank Mandiiri,
10 April 2019 in Jakarta

Indonesia Financial Top Leader
Award 2019

Car Financing Category

Warta Ekonomi magazine, 30 April 2019
in Jakarta

Infobank 8" Digital Brand
Awards 2019

¢ 1st Rank in Multifinance Corporate
Brand Category with Assets Above
Rp10 Trillion

e 27 Rank in “The Best Overall
for Multifinance Corporate
Brand” Category

Infobank magazine and Isentia Indonesia,
16 May 2019 in Jakarta

Indonesia’s 100 Most Valuable
Brands 2019

Brand Finance Indonesia and SWA
magazine, 12 June 2019 in Jakarta

HR Asia Awards Indonesia 2019
Best Companies to Work for in Asia 2019
HR Asia magazine, 17 June 2019 in Jakarta

Indonesia Corporate PR
Award 2019

“Top 3 Most Popular Multifinance
Companies of 2019” category

Warta Ekonomi magazine, 26 July 2019
in Jakarta

Top Finance 2019

“Top Multifinance 2019” category with
Rp10-20 trillion assets

TopBusiness magazine, 28 August 2019
in Jakarta

The Best Contact Center

Indonesia 2019

* “The Best Telesales Teamwork”

e Silver Winner “Telemarketing Sales
Operation Outbound” category

Indonesia Contact Center Association
(ICCA), 10 September 2019 in Jakarta

Infobank 15t Multifinance
Awards 2019

¢ The Multifinance Company with
“Excellent Financial Performance
in 2018”

e 27 Rank in the category of
“Multifinance Companies with Assets
Above Rp10 Trillion” nationwide



Platinum Trophy for Multifinance
Companies with Excellent Financial
Performances for Ten Years
Consecutively (2009-2018)

Special Award “The Most Efficient
Finance Company” for Multifinance
companies with assets above

Rp10 trillion

Special Award “The Biggest Leasing

Financing” as a multifinance company
with the best achievement in Finance

Lease business

Infobank magazine, 19 September 2019
in Jakarta

Indonesia Multifinance Company

of the Year 2019

¢ Outstanding Financial Performance
for Multifinance Company with Assets
between Rp10-20 Trillion

e Top 5 Consumer Choice for
Car Multifinance

Warta Ekonomi magazine, 4 October 2019

in Jakarta

The 11 [ICD Corporate

Governance and Award

e “Top 50 Big Capitalization Public-
Listed Company” with the Best
GCG Practices

¢ “Best Equitable Treatment of
Shareholders” Trophy

Indonesian Institute for Corporate
Directorship (IICD), 14 October 2019
in Jakarta

Indonesia Best Companies in
Creating Leaders from Within
Award 2019

“The Financing Institution” category

SWA magazine and NBO Indonesia,
29 October 2019 in Jakarta

Forbes Best of the Best
Awards 2019
e The Top 50 Listed Companies for 2019

e Trifecta Award for Winning Three Years
in a Row

Forbes Indonesia magazine, 30 October
2019 in Jakarta

Universitas Indonesia (Ul)

Award 2019

The Contribution in Community Service
(Indonesian Quick Response School)

Universitas Indonesia, 1 November 2019
in Jakarta

The Best Multifinance 2019

3 Rank for the category of assets above
Rp5 trillion

APPI, 6 November 2019 in Jakarta

Indonesia Operational
Excellence Conference and
Award (OPEXCON) Project
Competition 2019

Awarded the Silver Achievement in
“Service” category

SHIFT Indonesia magazine, 7 November
2019 in Jakarta

Indonesian Employers of Choice
Awards 2019

SWA magazine and Korn Ferry Indonesia,
21 November 2019 in Jakarta

Top 20 Financial Institutions 2019

“The Best Performing Multifinance
2019 Based on Financial Performance
2017-2019, Category Assets Above
Rp10 Trillion”

The Finance (digital magazine of Infobank
Group), 11 December 2019 in Jakarta

27
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Kusmayanto Kadiman:




Dear Shareholders and Stakeholders,

On behalf of the BOC, | would like to express my gratitude for having witnessed
how BFI Finance closed the year 2019 successfully, having gone from strength to
strength amidst the predicaments we faced throughout the year. We commend
the excellent management of the BOD in innovating the business to overcome the
challenges, and we are confident that the Company is poised to compete in the
digital era, where everything shifts rapidly and constantly.

To continue to grow, BFI Finance needs to equip itself with new energy and
resources to be agile in running the business. Various alignments need to be
made, in order to respond to challenges and change. The Company’s ability to
be adaptively sustainable requires a great vitality to continue delivering the best
performance under any circumstances.

The main driving force in 2019, as encapsulated in our theme “Agility for
Transformation”, is to generate energy within BFI Finance as a mature business
entity, by leveraging on the proven business experience in dealing with various
economic phases in Indonesia, so that we are progressively able to progress
with swiftness and resilience in the multifinance industry and in the grip of an all-
encompassing wave of digitalization.

31
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Financing Industry
Overview

Since the second half of 2018,
pressures on economic growth in
developing countries in general and
Indonesia in particular continued

to be a dominant shaping force in
2019. The key factors in 2019, among
others, were the prolonged trade war
between the US and China, which
affected many economies, especially
those heavily reliant on export. The
policy of the US Federal Reserve—to
slash its benchmark interest rate—
resulted in the appreciation of various
developing economies’ currencies,
including Indonesia, exacerbating their
export performance.

From within Indonesia, the challenge
for the current administration—post the
April 2019 general election—was how
to boost the economy by leveraging on
the massive infrastructure development
projects to bring about expected
results. Against expectations, decrease
in demand for capital goods, vehicle
sales, and spending on consumer
goods had been noted. As a result,
Indonesia’s economy grew 5.02% in
2019, lower than 2018’s growth rate

of 5.17%. This stagnation of GDP
growth pace inevitably impacted on the
banking and multifinance industries.
Non-performing loans in general rose in
2019 as many industries had to grapple
with this deceleration.

It was therefore heartening to see
how BFI Finance carried out various
innovations, in order to expand

its market network and increase
productivity by upgrading its
technology, digitizing its financing
process, and improving its business
risk management, so that the Company
can maintain a stable growth in the
more profitable segments with an
acceptable risk appetite.

Operational and
Financial Performance

While the economy was slowing down
in 2019, the BOD and management
were able to refocus the Company’s
business endeavors to higher yielding
products with better financial returns.
With this, the Company’s growth could
be maintained despite the increasingly
fierce business competition.

As credit quality in general throughout
2019 was declining across the
banking and multifinance industries,
BFI Finance had tactfully utilized its
vast operational network to channel
its financing products to sectors and
geographical segments perceived to
have a high potential for growth in the
long run. Thus, despite its portfolio
growth rate was slower than in 2018,
this was paired with a better quality
of credit portfolio and relatively higher
profit margins.



BOD’s Performance
Evaluation

All'in all, the BOC appreciates the
BOD’s leadership in steering the
Company’s business towards robust
profitability, given the multitude of
fundamental changes that had taken

shape within the Company in 2019. The

BOC considers that the strategies and
recommendations taken in developing
numerous initiatives to enhance
portfolio quality, lending productivity,
operational efficiency, and collection
through better data management as
not only positive, but also timely.

We commend the BOD’s efforts to
cultivate new collaborations with third
parties for business origination and
other strategic measures taken to
improve network performance and
develop our human capital. The BOD
has also exercised a prudent risk
management overall, successfully
managing to keep NPF at a healthy
rate of 0.85% compared with the
multifinance industry’s average of
2.40% in 2019.

In recognition of the BOD’s excellence
in leadership, in 2019 BFI Finance
received many notable accolades,
among others, Infobank Multifinance
Award 2019 as the Multifinance
Company with Excellent Financial
Performance in 2018 and also for

10 years consecutively (2009-2018),
Top 3 in the category of “Multifinance
Companies with Assets Above Rp10
Trillion” plus two other special awards
by Infobank; HR Asia Award Indonesia

as “Best Companies to Work for in Asia
2019” for three years in a row by HR
Asia; Indonesia’s 100 Most Valuable
Brands 2019 by Brand Finance
Indonesia and SWA; Public Relations
Indonesia Award (PRIA) 2019 in the
“Brand Visual Identity” category by
PR INDONESIA; The Top 50 Listed
Companies for 2019 and Trifecta
Award for Winning Three Years in a
Row by Forbes Indonesia; as well as
Top 3 in The Best Multifinance 2019
for the category of assets above Rp5
trilion by APPI. These awards confirm
BFI Finance’s eminence as one of the
strongest and leading multifinance
companies in Indonesia.

With regards to the legal cases
involving previous shareholders that
the Company faced previously, we
would like to highlight that they have
been successfully resolved through
a settlement agreed by all parties.

Thus, the Company’s operations and
business development may continue
without any significant departures from
the plan, and the Company remains
able to serve the various interests of all
stakeholders. For this, we commend
the determined effort of the BOD

and the management in anticipating,
dealing with, and finally settling these
litigations in ways that are favorable to
the Company’s business.
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, left to right:
Johanes Sutrisno 5 Cornellius Henry Kho
Commissioner (Independent) Commissioner
Emmy Yuhassarie 6 Dominic John Picone
Commissioner (Independent) Commissioner
Kusmayanto Kadiman 7  Sunata Tjiterosampurno
President Commissioner Commissioner

Alfonso Napitupulu
Commissioner (Independent)
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Compliance and Good
Corporate Governance

The BOC would like to note that

BFI Finance’s performance has been
consistently improving from year to
year, both in terms of financials as
well as compliance and corporate
governance implementation. This has
also been acknowledged by various
external institutions.

In line with best practices in corporate
governance, the BOD has regularly
reported every progress of the
Company’s to the BOC, whereby we
subsequently have provided direction
and recommendations as well as
carried out our supervisory function.
The Company exercises the triple line
of defence through supervision by
internal agents, by the Audit Committee
and the Risk Management Committee,

and finally by the appointed public
auditor. This supervision scheme was
effectively run during 2019, resulting
in a fruitful collaboration between

the BOC and BOD in overseeing all
aspects of the Company.

Independent
Commissioners and
Committees Under the
BOC’s Performance

In 2019, there were no changes made
to the BOC composition, and in line
with the prevailing regulations, the
Company has three Independent
Commissioners as part of the BOC.
Such a composition has allowed the
BOC to carry out the mandate and
responsibilities it had been assigned
with to represent minority and external
interests according to the principles
of good corporate governance. In

performing our duties throughout 2019,
we did not face any hindrance from
any party.

In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association and

GCG principles, the BOC has a
responsibility to supervise and

advise the BOD on the Company’s
business activities. In performing such
duties, we are assisted by the Audit
Committee, the Risk Management
Committee, and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

The Audit Committee conducted a
thorough and meticulous review of the
Company’s financial statements and
assured the Company’s adherence
with all regulations related to financial
reporting and both internal and external
audit processes, including evaluating
the external auditor’s performance. The
Risk Management Committee ensured
that all risks faced and taken by the
Company were properly identified

and prudently mitigated in order to
anticipate any potential hazard for the
Company’s business. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee
enforced and reviewed the Company’s
nomination and remuneration system
and observed means to improve its
overall quality.



In addition to routine duties and
responsibilities, BOC members had
also participated in the Company’s
various activities related to social
engagement and others that were
outside of the business sphere, as part
of our role in stakeholder engagement.

2020 Business
Prospect and Plans

After the winding down of the global
economy in recent years, which had
deflated corporate confidence and
capital spending, there seems to be a
positive sentiment arising from the US—
China trade truce, which is progressing
to a favorable conclusion. This will
propel the economy to continue making
gains. The combination of reduced tariff
uncertainty and stable policy support in
China may lead to improved corporate
confidence and a steady expansion

of the consumer class worldwide.
However, should uncertainties over
trade still linger and additional tariffs

be ordained, central bankers will have
more limited options than before to
adequately respond to any possibility of
a global turmoil.

Cognizant of the business challenges
and opportunities in 2020 and
onwards, the BOC has reviewed

the business plan formulated by

the BOD. We support the BOD’s

measures to execute such plan,

while we also expect the BOD and
management to continue looking for
new business opportunities. Not only
must BFI Finance strengthen its current
and already-stable bases, it must also
pay attention to the rising competition
posed by the more unconventional
competitors—the fintech startups, for
example—as it reinforces its business
competitiveness and growth in

the future.

The sharia business, which we started
to engage in 2018 and recorded a
notable growth in 2019, is yet to deliver
a meaningful contribution to our overall
business performance. We therefore
see that a breakthrough is necessary
in the development of sharia financing
products. And for its digital-based
lending business, BFI Finance needs
to redouble its efforts to forge new
alliances with key players in the field,
as the growth of online marketplace will
rapidly dominate household spending,
and may potentially tilt the conventional
financing market towards digitalization.
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Francis Lay Sioe Ho:

“...We focused on strengthening
our balance sheet, realigning
our product offerings and
operationally, a series of digital
initiatives targeted at improving
both our front- and back-end
business processes.”

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to you BFI Finance’s 2019
Integrated Annual Report. This report highlights how we have performed both financially
and operationally, along with the challenges we faced and the successes we attained.

As we navigated what continued to be a slow and difficult economic year, we focused on
strengthening our balance sheet, realigning our product offerings and operationally, a series
of digital initiatives targeted at improving both our front- and back-end business processes.



General Review

Trade tensions between the US and
China that hampered global growth for
most of 2019 have left many industries
in a state of great uncertainty. Although
the US economy remained strong,

the Federal Reserve’s slashing of the
Fed Funds Rate was an indication of
flattening growth. China’s growth, on
the other hand, was the lowest in three
decades. Global trade weakened,

and consumption decelerated in both
developed and developing economies.

Such global dynamics aggravated
downward pressures on global demand
and international commaodity prices.

For Indonesia, lower coal prices and
softer purchasing power were further
exacerbated by investors’ wait-and-see
stance during the politically-charged run
up to the April 2019 General Elections.
Bank Indonesia reduced its 7-Day
(Reverse) Repo Rate four times in the
second half of 2019, from 6% to 5%,

a pre-emptive measure to encourage
domestic economic growth amid
slowing global trends. Indonesia’s GDP
nonetheless rose 5.02% in 2019, while
inflation was maintained at 2.72%, within
the target range of 2.50-3.00%, and
lower than in 2018.

In 2019 we saw Rupiah strengthening
against a basket of foreign currencies,
including against the US dollar, thanks
in part to stable inflation and the drastic
reduction in the trade balance deficit in
2019 compared to 2018.

Indonesia’s multifinance industry grew

3.7% in 2019, compared to 5.2% in 2018.

Total receivables slightly increased from
Rp436.3 trillion as at the end of 2018 to
Rp452.2 trillion as at the end of 2019.
Financing quality, as measured by NPF,
was improved to 2.40%, from 2.71% in
December 2018. This sluggish growth
in multifinance industry was on the back
of weak car sales and consumption, in
spite of efforts by the regulators to boost
growth by implementing more relaxed
down payment requirements.
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During the year, we also saw a rapid
growth in fintech, with peer-to-peer
lending dominating the space. Peer-to-
peer lending, whilst still a small proportion
of the total lending space, has shown
significant growth in the last two years.
For conventional players in the industry,
this is a push to continue to transform
business models into one that is more
agile, resilient, and digital-focused.

2019 Financial
Performance

BFI Finance managed to record total
assets of Rp19,090 billion as at end of
2019, almost at par with the Rp19,117
billion recorded at end of 2018, with
net receivables of Rp17,439 billion and
a strong NPF of 0.85% by end of the
year. This demonstrates our lasting
commitment to improving asset quality
amid a challenging market throughout
the year.

Net profit for the year was Rp712 billion,
a 51.5% decrease compared to the year
before. We had an extraordinary charge
booked under Other Expenses which
cost the Company Rp774 billion. This
extraordinary charge was a one-off cost
related to the Settlement Agreement
signed with PT Aryaputra Teguharta

(APT) to end a 16-year legal dispute. This
Settlement Agreement puts an end to our
legal battle with our former shareholder.
Details of the legal case and subsequent
settlement can be read in page 273-281,
Good Corporate Governance chapter.
We believe that this is a necessary effort
to ensure no further legal disruption

from APT going forward. Excluding this
one-off charge, net profit was Rp1,484
billion, 1.1% higher than Rp1,468 billion in
2018. This performance was satisfactory,
considering the difficult year we had

and lower loan disbursements and flat
net receivables.

New loan disbursement growth was
down 2.9% to Rp15,896 billion, which
resulted in flat net receivables with

the largest drop in Used Car Dealer
Financing, in line with the Company’s
product shift strategy to Non-Dealer
Products. This strategy has proven
successful from the asset quality and
profitability standpoint, as we observed
the improvement of NPF ratio in 2019 as
well as interest income and profit growth
in spite of flat loan portfolio growth.

Our portfolio yield is higher at 20.6%,
compared to 20.5% the year before,
thanks to this product shift. Cost of funds
was 8.8%, 20 basis points higher than the
year before. Our cost of funds typically
lags the benchmark rate trend, due to the
fixed rate nature of our bank borrowings.

By maintaining the quality of our
underwriting process as well as collection
efficacy, our NPF stood at a 0.85%,
better than the industry’s average, whose
NPF stood at 2.40% as at the end of
December 2019. The first half the year
we saw higher NPFs due to a slower
economy and elections, and this was
reversed by the end of the year. We

put a lot of focus into managing this,

with stringent monitoring of high NPF
branches as well as stricter underwriting
as well as collections processes.

2019 Operational
Performance

We continued our network development
initiative more aggressively during

the second semester of the year.

BFI Finance currently operates 423
outlets, consisting of 232 branches and
191 kiosks all over Indonesia, which
excludes 45 sharia representative
offices attached to existing branches,
adding 18 kiosks and 4 branches in
2019.

In the spirit of continuous improvement,
we performed numerous mini “Micro-
battles” pilot initiatives to test the
amended business process and other
innovation before going to full-scale
implementation. With these projects,
we can innovate under manageable



circumstances and speed up the time
to market by adjusting the initiative
based on input and feedback received
during the testing period. These
initiatives can also minimize the risk of
failure and simultaneously accelerate
the organization’s ability to learn, create
the sense of urgency and receive
necessary support from management
and cross-functional units.

During 2019, our resources were
focused on developing new ideas

and on scaling up nationwide

some initiatives that were ready for
implementation. Some initiatives
implemented nationally in 2019 were
related to the improvement of Collection
handling through telecenters, which
contributed to the overall improvement
in our NPF and cost of credit
performance, as well as continued

in enhancement of our agency
management used to continue to push
our Non-Dealer business.

Information Technology (IT) has also
played a crucial role in implementing
the Company’s organizational strategy,
which can be summed up to focusing
on People, Process and Technology.
In terms of process and technology,
necessary steps have been taken

to render existing systems and
technology to be more agile in catering
the users’ demands, and keeping in

pace with constant changes in the
business needs and environment.

We have adopted Scrum-based agile
methodology for faster time to market,
improved innovation rate, drastically
increase transparency in development
processes, and most importantly,
improve business—IT alignment to
realize company targets. We are also
modernizing our legacy monolithic
systems, moving towards more flexible
and updated technology for better
operational integration as well as an
improved loan origination process.

Over the last few years, we have
reiterated on the importance we place
on data and our attempts to improve
our data management and analytics.
This continues to be a priority for the
organization, as we continue to embark
on better data management, stricter
data governance and security, and
more robust data analytics. We have
implemented several initiatives in data
management: (i) Data Validation and
Data Quality framework to improve
Trust Index of Data, (i) Enterprise
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Data Governance Operating Model,
and (iii) build Data Analytics roadmap,
especially for the Non-Dealer

product, customer segmentation

and behavioural scoring, collection
optimization and customer-contact
Master Data; improving contacted rates
and better cost of credit, to name a
few. These tools are the building blocks
for the organization as we embark on
our journey towards becoming a more
predictive enterprise.
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“We believe that resilience and
Innovation, two key traits we
have been demonstrating over
the years, will prepare us to
deal with future challenges.”

Human Capital

As we continuously foster a culture of
agility in our workplace, especially in
light of an increasingly digital lifestyle,
we are equipting our people with a
mindset that is adaptive to change,
open to innovation, and progressive

in pursuing learning. In 2019, we also
initiated employer branding measures
to better recruit potential employees
from the younger generation—
promising talents who are more

tech savvy and digitally innovative—
through roadshows held in prominent
universities across the country. We
continue to develop our people
through various training and leadership
programs, as we want to enhance their
competitiveness and digital acumen
across all layers of the organization.

Corporate Governance

BFI Finance continues to uphold

a high standard of corporate
governance, demonstrating strong
corporate citizenship through ethical
business practices, sound corporate
governance, and environmental and
social awareness. Our stakeholders’
trust in us is vital for ensuring our
business continuity.

Throughout 2019, we maintained a
well-functioning and independent

BOD to lead the Company’s day-
to-day operation and decision-

making process, while receiving
valuable recommendations and

solid support from the BOC and its
committees. This has allowed us to this
day to meet the expectations of our
shareholders and distribute meaningful
value to our stakeholders.

In 2019, our Internal Audit and Risk
Management teams performed
effectively and accurately, capturing
and recording audit findings from our
operations. This resulted in faster and
more strategic actions taken, as well
as more informed and data-driven
decision-making.

Sustainability
and Corporate
Responsibility

BFI Finance, as in the previous

years, is committed to the social,
economic, educational wellbeing of

the community. Our presence as a
business shall be of use not only to our
direct customers and shareholders, but
also to those living among us.

With this spirit, in 2019, we gave
scholarships, delivered educational
programs, and carried out school
infrastructure development projects
to those we consider in need of such
services. In addition, we organized
entrepreneurship training projects

for small businesses that included
discussion on harnessing technology
as one of the key topics. Routine
medical and sanitation projects, which
we have been doing over the years,
were implemented in 2019. Our CSR
team also became involved in disaster
relief efforts in response to natural
disasters in some areas in Indonesia,
such as in Lampung and Riau.



2020 Business Outlook
and Strategy

Progress of the ongoing US—China
trade talks will significantly define the
global economy in 2020. We expect to
see some signs of recovery across the
board. Industrial and manufacturing
sectors are expected to remain flat,
however, and key commaodity prices
may continue to slide in 2020, causing
a risk of tightening market conditions
that many industries may have to face.
The recent spread of Coronavirus
(Covid-19) has brought down economic
growth in a number of regions,
particularly China as the center of the
virus dispersal. Depending on how long
and how widespread the impact of the
Covid-19 is, we should be cautious of
2020 growth.

In 2020, amid the highly-reactionary
economic atmosphere globally, plus
a decidedly fiercer competition in the
multifinance industry, BFI Finance will
forge ahead to implement a thorough
transformation, on its way to become
a predictive enterprise that, in the
long run, will be able to enhance its
execution quality and have a greater
control in defining its business. We
are transitioning from a conventional

business model into an agile, data-
driven organization that involves

the entire workforce to propel our
transformation onwards. We believe
that resilience and Innovation, two key
traits we have been demonstrating over
the years, will prepare us to deal with
future challenges.

Notwithstanding the significant
concerns surrounding the
macroeconomic and multifinance
industry performances in general, we
remain optimistic that our business
agility would lead us forward to achieve
progress, advanced improvement,
and better performances as we have
demonstrated over the years. We are
enthusiastic to begin the start of a new
decade with positive vibes, especially
with the resolution of a prolonged
16-year legal dispute with a former
shareholder that had threatened to
overshadow the company’s business
growth. Going forward, we now can
fully channel our time, energy, and
efforts on growing the Company
business and operations, seek
windows of greater opportunities, and
open endless possibilities to welcoming
new partners in order to form solid
business partnerships and alliances.
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Company Name

PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk
(abbreviated as BFI Finance)

Domicile

South Tangerang, Banten Province, Indonesia

Established
7 April 1982

Legal Basis Of Establishment

Based on Deed No. 57 made before Kartini Muljadi,
S.H., Notary in Jakarta. The deed of establishment
was approved by the Minister of Justice (now

the Ministry of Justice and Human Rights) of the
Republic of Indonesia through Decree No. C2-2091-
HT.01.01.TH.82 dated 28 October 1982 and was
published in the State Gazette No. 102 dated 21
December 1982, Supplement No. 1390

Stock Market

BFI Finance shares listed and traded on the IDX

Date of Share Registration
16 May 1990

Share Ticker Symbol
BFIN

Authorized Capital
Rp500 billion

Issued and Fully Paid-Up Capital
Rp399.2 billion

Share Ownership

e Trinugraha Capital & Co SCA: 42.80%
e NTAsian Discovery Fund: 9.90%

e PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk*: 6.28%
e Public/Others (each below 5%): 41.02%

* Result of the Company’s share buyback program in line with
the Resolution of the EGMS on 15 April 2015

— GRI Index: 102-1, 102-5, 102-13

Memberships in Associations
¢ |Indonesian Financial Services Association (APPI)

¢ |ndonesian Public-Listed Companies
Association (AEI)

e Employers’ Association of Indonesia (APINDO)

¢ |ndonesian Capital Market Arbitration
Board (BAPMI)

¢ Indonesia Financing, Pawnbrokerage and Venture
Mediation Board (BMPPVI)

Corporate Secretary

corsec@bfi.co.id

Investor Relations

investor@bfi.co.id

Website

www.bfi.co.id

Call Center
1500018

Social Media

Ei BFI Finance

3 @BFIFinance

@ bfifinance

LinkedfflJ PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk
3 YouTube BFI Finance Official

Main Business Activities

Investment Financing, Working Capital Financing,
Multipurpose Financing, Sharia Financing

Total Outlets: 423, consisting of 232 branches
(excluding 45 sharia representative branches) and
191 kiosks

Total Employees: 12,127

Head Office

BFI Tower, Sunburst CBD Lot 1.2

JI. Kapt. Soebijanto Djojohadikusumo
BSD City - Tangerang Selatan 15322
Indonesia

Phone : (62-21) 2965 0300, 2965 0500
Facsimile : (62-21) 2966 0757, 2966 0758
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VISION AND MISSION
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VISION

To become a trusted
partner in financial
solutions that contributes
to the enhancement of
people’s standard of living

MISSION

¢ To provide reliable and effective
financial solutions to our customers

¢ To deliver superior return-on-
investment and sustain our reputation
as a trusted public company

¢ To provide an ecosystem that nurtures
future leaders of the organization

¢ To build long-term collaboration with
business partners, based on mutual
trust and benefit

¢ To contribute positively to the society

The Company’s Vision and Mission have been reviewed comprehensively to keep
them up to date with the Company’s dynamic business development. The Board
of Commissioners and the Board of Directors have approved this new Vision and
Mission to be the Company’s objective of its business activities.
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Establishment

BFI Finance is one of the pioneers in the
financing sector in Indonesia. Initially
established as PT Manufacturers Hanover
Leasing Indonesia, a joint venture with
Manufacturer Hanover Leasing Corporation
from the United States, the Company was
established on 7 April 1982 under the Notarial
Deed No. 57 made before Kartini Muljadi,
S.H., a Notary in Jakarta, and approved by
the Minister of Justice of the Republic of
Indonesia by virtue of its Decree No. C2-
2091-HT.01.01.TH.82 dated 28 October 1982,
and published on the State Gazette No. 102
dated 21 December 1982, Supplement No.
1390. MHLC’s shareholding in the Company
was 70%, while the rest was owned by
Indonesian nationals.

The Company was granted the finance
institution business license as a leasing
company from the Minister of Finance of the
Republic of Indonesia under the Decree No.
KEP-038/KM.11/1982 dated 12 August 1982.

In 1986, PT Bank Umum Nasional and
Essompark Ltd., Hong Kong, took over
Manufacturers Hanover Leasing Corporation’s
ownership of the Company, and later changed
the Company name to PT Bunas Intitama
Leasing Indonesia, under the deed made before
Inge Hendarmin, S.H., a Notary in Jakarta,
dated 17 September 1986, and approved by the
Minister of Justice of the Republic of Indonesia
by virtue of its Decree No. C2-9677.HT.01.04.
TH.86 dated 7 October 1986, and published on
the State Gazette No. 94 dated 25 November
1986, Supplement No. 1451,

Development

In 1990, the Company became one of the first
multifinance companies to list its shares at the
Jakarta Stock Exchange and Surabaya Stock
Exchange (now IDX), with the share ticker
symbol of BFIN. The Company also altered its
operating license to a multifinance company,
pursuant to the Decree of the Minister of
Finance of the Republic of Indonesia No. 493/
KMK.013/1990 dated 23 April 1990.

After overcoming the 1997 Asian financial
crisis, the Company successfully restructured
its debts in 2001 and changed its name to PT
BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk, under the Notarial
Deed No. 116 made before Aulia Taufani, S.H.,
previously Sutjipto, S.H., a Notary in Jakarta,
dated 27 June 2001, and approved by the
Minister of Law and Human Rights of the
Republic of Indonesia by virtue of its Decree
No. C-03668.HT.01.04.TH.2001 dated 24 July
2001 and published on the State Gazette No.
35 dated 30 April 2002, Supplement No. 4195.



On 20 February 2006, the Minister of
Finance of the Republic of Indonesia
amended the Company’s business
license through the Decree No. KEP-
038/KM.5/2006 to amend the business
license previously granted to PT Bunas
Finance Indonesia Tbk to the date of
the approval of the Company’s name
change to PT BFI Finance Indonesia
Tbk under the Decree of the Minister of
Law and Human Rights of the Republic
of Indonesia No. C-03668.HT.01.04.
TH.2001 dated 24 July 2001.

The Company’s Articles of Association
have been amended several times. The
latest amendment to the Company’s
Articles of Association was made
under the Deed No. 55 dated 25 June
2019, made before Aulia Taufani,

S.H., a Notary in South Jakarta, on

the approval of the amendment of
Article 3 of the Company’s Articles of
Association concerning the Purpose,
Objectives and Business Activities that
has been approved by the Minister of
Law and Human Rights of the Republic
of Indonesia by virtue of its Letter
No.AHU-0033646.AH.01.02.TAHUN
2019 dated 28 June 2019. Up to the

— GRI Index: 102-3, 102-7

completion date of this Integrated
Annual Report, the amendment has not
been published on the State Gazette.

BFI Finance Today

BFI has now grown into one of the top
multifinance companies in Indonesia
with the widest network and product
range, supported by 12,127 employees
in 232 branches (excluding 45 sharia
representative branches) and 191
kiosks all across Indonesia.

BFI Finance has demonstrated a
continuous growth, as made evident
by the numerous awards it has

won for its business performance,
including the title of “Multifinance
Company with Excellent Financial
Performance” from Infobank magazine
for fourteen consecutive financial
years (2006-2019). The Company also
made a milestone by scoring a hat-
trick of being awarded the “Infobank
Multifinance Awards” as the First in the
asset category of above Rp10 trillion,
for three years in a row (2016-2018).

In 2019, the Company yet again was

named among the top three “Infobank
Multifinance Awards” based on a
rating of 176 multifinance companies
in Indonesia by Infobank’s research
institution (source: Infobank magazine
“Rating 176 Multifinance 2019” No.
495 — August 2019 — Vol. XLI). Aside
from earning accolades in terms of
business and finance, BFI Finance has
also received awards and accolades
in other fields, most notably in the
fields of human capital management,
good corporate governance, public
relations, and corporate social
responsibility. The complete details of
the Company’s awards and recognition
in 2019 are presented in the Awards
and Recognition section in the 2019
Performance Highlights chapter
(pages 26-27).

As at 31 December 2019, Trinugraha
Capital & Co SCA, a Luxembourg-
based financial institution, was the
majority shareholder of BFI Finance,
with a 42.80% stake.

Since 2013, the Company’s Head
Office has been located in BFI Tower,
Sunburst CBD Lot 1.2, JI. Kapt.
Soebijanto Djojohadikusomo, BSD City,
South Tangerang, Banten Province.
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MILESTONES

e The Company
was founded
under the name of
PT Manufacturers
Hanover Leasing
Indonesia

¢ Obtained a finance
institution business
license (leasing)

1982

1990

50-103

company profile

e Conducted Limited
Public Offering |
(Rights Issue I) for
28,829,558 shares

1994

e Amended the Company’s
business license on 20 February
2006 to accommodate the
Company’s name change

¢ Full repayment of debts under
debt restructuring exercise

2006

2001

¢ Obtained a multifinance business *
license, which was renewed

in 1990

¢ Conducted an Initial Public
Offering on the Jakarta Stock O
Exchange and the Surabaya Stock
Exchange (now IDX) with share
ticker symbol of BFIN by issuing
25% of new shares (2,125,000
shares) offered to the public at
Rp5,750 per share with nominal
price of Rp1,000 per share

¢ The Company’s status and
name was changed to PT Bunas
Finance Indonesia Tbk

Completed financial
restructuring, resulting
in a change of majority
shareholder

The Company
changed its name
to PT BFI Finance
Indonesia Tbk

2007

¢ Conducted an initial

bond offering for
Obligasi BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahun
2007 Dengan
Tingkat Bunga
Tetap

Awarded Moody’s
Investors Service
rating of ‘Baal(id)’



e Trinugraha Capital & Co
SCA became a majority
shareholder with a
44.95% stake

¢ Obtained a rating
of ‘A(idn)’ from
Fitch Ratings

2011

2015

¢ Conducted stock
buyback program
to improve the
Company’s capital
management

e Obtained a rating
of ‘AA-(idn)’ with
Qutlook Stable
from Fitch Ratings
from the previous
‘A+(idn)” with
QOutlook Positive

2016

2017

e The Company obtained the license from OJK
to run the Sharia Business Unit by offering
products marketed via online and conventional
channels through its sharia representative
branches across Indonesia, and launched two
initial sharia financing products, i.e., for umrah
and halal travel

e PT FIT was registered on the OJK and
commenced operations officially via
www.pinjammodal.id platform

2018

¢ Establishment of a e The Company resolved all
subsidiary, PT Finansial . .

(FIT), a company that
provides IT-based

shareholder which took place

money borrowing and since 2003
lending services, based

on the peer-to-peer

(P2P) lending concept

o7
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GROW AND IMPROVE CONTINUOUSLY

Continuing to improve
oneself as a contribution to
the Company

This value is adapted into
three main behaviors, namely:
s Studious

* Innovative {

e Proactive ()

104-121 122-133

human capital business supporting unit

Cultivating mutual respect
and care to maintain a
positive work environment

This value is adapted into
three main behaviors, namely:
e Respectful @

* Positive Solutions -GF

e Caring il

RESPECT AND CARE

The Core Values underlying the Corporate Culture have been reviewed
comprehensively to keep them up to date with the Company’s dynamic business
development. The Board of Commissioners and the Board of Directors have
approved the Core Values and Corporate Culture to be the key guidelines for all
employees in achieving the Company’s objectives of its business activities.

TABLE 7_DISSEMINATION AND INTERNALIZATION OF CORPORATE CULTURE

Schedule Agenda

Place

Facilitator

Jan - Dec 2019 Townhall

Head Office and

Corporate Culture team (head office)

Meeting Branches and HC staff in branches

Jan - Dec 2019 Viog Head Office and Corporate Culture team (head office)
Competition Branches

Jan - Dec 2019 Leaders Branches Corporate Culture team (head office) /

Inspire

Division Heads
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> -
Giving the best service to E Maintaining integrity in n_: Maintaining a spirit
ensure internal and external 0] every action to maintain 35 of cooperation and
customers’ satisfaction Ll professional reputation of mutual trust to achieve
- oneself and the Company’s E mutual goals
This value is adapted into Z <
three main behaviors, namely: W This value is adapted into ||-|_J This value is adapted into
e Positive Attitude |5 three main behaviors, namely: O three main behaviors, namely:
* Responsive = e Honest I Z e Communicative @
‘ o e Consistent 5 < e Cooperative ':D
¢ Professional (7)) q_ﬁ -
e Complian L e Synergistic
m Compliant [ S isti
< -
o
=
. Number of
Purpose Participant Participant
Implementation of BFI Finance values Nationwide (all branches and head office) 377
Implementation of BFI Finance values Nationwide (all branches and head office) 377

Sharing and motivation

Staff in branches, Branch Managers, Area Managers/Regional Managers 10




CORPORATE IDENTITY
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Logotyre . FITN A NC E

The logo of BFI Finance has been designed to reflect
the Company’s identity and values. The logo comprises
three main elements, namely logogram, logotype, and
company name. In their usage for all kinds of purposes, the
logogram and the logotype are inseparable. The various
configurations of placement of the logogram, logotype,
and company name, along with the color palettes that
are allowed, are detailed in a Corporate Brand Guidelines
document of BFI Finance titled “Brand Visual Identity”.



Business ACtiVitieS The scope of business of each of the above is

carried out through these means:
In accordance with POJK No. 35/POJK.05/2018
(POJK 35) on Execution of Finance Companies’
Businesses, which amended the previous POJK

e Finance Lease;

e Sale and Leaseback;

LINE OF BUSINESS

29, the Company’s scope of business covers e |nstallment Financing, or also known as
the following: Consumer Financing;

¢ Investment Financing; ¢ Working Capital or Funding Facility;

¢ Working Capital Financing; e Factoring (with recourse);

e Multipurpose Financing; and ¢ Financing of projects, infrastructure,

e (Other business activities approved by OJK. and others.

Currently, the Company is engaged in the following business activities:.

TABLE 8_THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Means of Financing

Type of
Bﬁiiness Finance Sale and Consumer  Working Capital/ Factoring Project

. Lease Leaseback Financing Funding Facilit Financing
Activities 9 y

and Others

Investment N \ N X X X
Financing
Working X \ X N X X
Capital
Financing
Multipurpose \ X \ N X X
Financing
Other X X X X X X
Financing

The Company’s business scope was amended with the approval of Amendment to the Company’s
Articles of Association in the Company’s EGMS on 25 October 2017, notarized with the Deed No.

6 dated 25 October 2017 juncto Deed No. 7 dated 25 October 2017, both were made before Herna
Gunawan, S.H., M.Kn., a Notary in Tangerang, that decided, among others, to change Article 3 of
the Company’s Articles of Associations, namely to add a financing business activity of the Company
that is based on Sharia principles, which had been approved by the Minister of Law and Human
Rights of the Republic of Indonesia through Letter No. AHU-0024031.AH.01.02.TAHUN 2017 dated
16 November 2017.

— GRI'Index: 102-2
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Therefore, the Company may engage
in sharia-based financing activities
based on Article 4 of POJK No. 10/
POJK.05/2019 on Business Operations
of Sharia Finance Companies and
Sharia Business Units of Finance
Companies (POJK 10), comprising:

a. Sale and Purchase Financing;
b. Investment Financing; and/or

c. Services Financing.

Business Segments

In line with the division of business
activities in which the Company

is engaged, as explained above,

the types of business activities the
Company conducts, by segment, are
as follows:

Consumer Financing

Consumer Financing includes the
financing of new and used cars
purchased via dealers, and financing
backed by used cars and motorcycles.

1. Financing of Cars via Dealers

Cars financing via dealers has been
BFI's core business for more than
20 years. This product, offered

in almost all branches, provides
financing facilities for new and used
cars purchased via dealer partners.
The financing term ranges from
one to up to four years, with a fixed
interest rate.

2. Financing of Cars via Non-Dealer

Non-dealer financing was first introduced in 2006 to serve the financing needs
of the customers (car and motorcycle owners) directly, as well as existing
customers with repeat orders, new customers referred by existing customers
(Customer-Get-Customer program), or through independent sales agents

and telesales call centers (direct marketing and sales). The Company’s target
market is the low-to-middle income segment.

Finance Lease

Finance Lease business includes financial services aimed at individual and
corporate customers who purchase or engage in sale and leaseback of heavy
equipment, machineries, motor vehicles, and other equipment, in new or used
condition. Customers of the Company’s Finance Lease business generally come
from the mining, trading, construction, services, agriculture, manufacturing,
transportation, infrastructure, and othe sectors.

Benhi Kowiranata
Dealer and Owner of Auto Ben
Mobilindo, Baturaja, Lampung

“| first heard about BFI Finance
through the company promotion
program. My company has been
collaborating with BFI Finance and
| am happy with this partnership
as the fund disbursement process
was simple and quick. In addition,
BFI Finance’s advantages lie

in their competitive interest

rates and simple administrative
requirements, making it

superior compared with other
multifinance companies.”




Sharia-Based
Consumer Financing

Sharia-based financing began to

be engaged by the Company in

March 2018, based on the Copy of

the License for Opening the Sharia
Business Unit of Financing Company
PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk from
OJK, No. S-218/NB.223/2018 dated
14 February 2018. Referring to the
definition in POJK 10, the Sharia
Business Unit (SBU) is a work unit of
the head office of BFI Finance that
functions as both a headquarters of the
branches that conduct sharia financing
(called sharia representative branches).

Based on the Letter of Approval for

the Use of Sharia Financing Deed of
PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk from
OJK, No. S-219/NB.223/2018 dated

14 February 2018, OJK approved BFI
Finance’s SBU to carry out and market
the use of deeds from sharia-based
financing, namely:

1. ljarah contract for umrah financing;

2. ljarah contract for halal travel
financing; and

3. Murabahah contract for motorized
vehicle financing

In 2018, BFI Finance’s SBU launched
four sharia-based financing products
to directly address the needs of
consumers, both individual and
institutional, and in 2019 it added two
more sharia-based financing products.
These six products are:

1. My lhram for umrah financing;

2. My Safar for halal travel financing;
3. My Ta’lim for education financing;
4

. My Hajat for multipurpose financing
and financing of various services,
such as house/shophouse contract
services, home renovation,
and consultancy;

5. My Cars for financing of four-
wheeled motorized vehicles; and

6. My Faedah for multipurpose
financing and other needs for
the purchase of goods, such as
construction material, household
goods, and other goods that are
beneficial to society.

All the above financing contracts
are marketed online via BFI Finance
Syariah microsite, https://syariah.
bfi.co.id/, and conventionally via the
sharia representative offices across
45 locations in various regions

in Indonesia.
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According to Article 12 of POJK 10,
BFI Finance had established the Sharia
Products and Business Activities
Development Committee, with five
members led by the SBU Head.

Financing Product by
Asset Type

Consumer Financing and Finance
Lease business segments cover
the following product portfolio by
asset type:

1. New cars;
2. Used cars;
3. Used motorcycles;
4. Heavy equipment, consisting of:
e Heavy equipment;
e Truck and public transportation;
e Machinery;
e Others; and

5. Property.

Further explanation on the Company’s
product portfolio is presented in the
Management Discussion and Analysis
chapter of this Integrated Annual
Report (pages 138-145).
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Sumatra

Branches  Kiosks Sharia Branches  Kiosk Sharia

47 23 8 25 21 5

\

Greater Jakarta

Branches  Kiosks Sharia

22 28 8

Java, Bali & Nusa Tenggara

Branches Kiosks Sharia

95 89 19

— GRI'Index: 102-4, 102-6



134-185 186-299 300-313 314-336 338-443 6 5

management discussion good corporate corporate social corporate supporting annual financial
and analysis governance responsibility data statements

Eastern Indonesia
(Sulawesi, Maluku, Papua)

fBranches Kiosks Sharia

43 30 5

GRAPH 4_DISTRIBUTION OF BRANCHES, KIOSKS, AND SHARIA

2017 218 124
22
2018 228 173
45
2019 232 191

B Branches [ Kiosks M Sharia
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14-27

2019 performance
highlight

BFI Finance’s organization structure as at 31 December 2019

28-49

management reports

was as follows:

50-103
company profile

104-121

human capital

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Emmy Yuhassarie

Friso Palilingan
Edy Sugito

RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Johanes Sutrisno
Jono Effendy

HEAD OF CORPORATE
COMPLIANCE
Budi Darwan Munthe

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT
Fledy Rizmara

122-133

business supporting unit

GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

Kusmayanto Kadiman
Johanes Sutrisno
Alfonso Napitupulu
Emmy Yuhassarie
Dominic John Picone
Sunata Tjiterosampurno
Cornellius Henry Kho

PRESIDENT DIRECTOR

Francis Lay Sioe Ho

BUSINESS DIRECTOR
Sutadi

HEAD OF CHANNEL
Francis Lay Sioe Ho*

OPERATIONS &

HUMAN CAPITAL DIRECTOR

Andrew Adiwijanto

CONSUMER BUSINESS
Rudy Eddywidjaja

DIGITAL BUSINESS
(TBA)

HUMAN CAPITAL
Elisabeth Vivi Jeki Aryani**

COMMERCIAL BUSINESS

BUSINESS ALLIANCE

OPERATIONS DEVELOPMENT

Yoaa Arvant — ACQUISITION H & SERVICE QUALITY
oga Aryanto (TBA) Margaretha Tarigan
NETWORK DEVELOPMENT &
CHANN!EL ACQUISITION || MANAGEMENT
Riko Armanda
lwan
INSURANCE & OPERATIONS
SHARIA BUSINESS UNIT | SERVICES
Deni Nasri )
lka Santi

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
Yefta Bramiana

TELEMARKETING
Dani Reinhard

BUSINESS PROJECT & MIS
(TBA)

I

ESTATE & VEHICLE
MANAGEMENT
Ayu Pisani

BRANCH OPERATIONS

Pramudiyo Linggar




134-185 186-299
management discussion good corporate
and analysis governance

300-313

corporate social
responsibility

NOMINATION &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Sunata Tjiterosampurno

Alfonso Napitupulu
Priyambodo

SHARIA SUPERVISORY BOARD

Asrori S. Karni
Helda Rahmi Sina

CORPORATE SECRETARY
Sudjono*

HEAD OF PROJECT
MANAGEMENT OFFICE
Goklas

314-336

corporate supporting
data

338-443

annual financial
statements

67

HEAD OF CORPORATE
SECRETARIAT

FINANCE DIRECTOR
Sudjono

HEAD OF IT
Alexander Ekanayake

Budi Darwan Munthe*

ENTERPRISE RISK DIRECTOR

(INDEPENDENT)

Sigit Hendra Gunawan

Francisca Susilawati

Anton Rumayar

FINANCE & TREASURY IT BUSINESS ANALYST | | CREDIT OPERATIONS
Tonny Widjaja Natalia Sofianty Stephanus Taufan Wibowo
FINANCIAL PLANNING RISK
IT SOLUTIONS DELIVERY
| & CONTROL Alexander Ekanayake* B MANAGEMENT
Christo Effata Doludea 4 Agus Ghozali
CORPORATE IT CONTROL FUNCTION & AR MANAGEMENT &
-{  COMMUNICATION & CSR = INFRASTRUCTURE — RECOVERY

John Piter Sinaga

ASSET MANAGEMENT
T ANALJI/:CdS : PthQJECTS | RECOVERY
I Made Sunarti Djani Setiadi
TECHNOLOGY INNOVATION APU-PPT & KYC

Heri Setiawan

Agus Ghozali*

* Concurrent positions
** Joined on 2 December 2019

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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BFI Finance’s corporate structure as at 31 December 2019 was as follows:

42.80% 9.90% 6.28%

Trinugraha Capital NT Asian PT BFI Finance
& Co SCA Discovery Fund Indonesia Tbk*

122-133

business supporting unit

41.02%

Others
(each below 5%)

Others
FINANCE
99.96% 0.04%
, —
Finansial

Integrasi Teknologi

*Result of the Company’s stock buyback
program in line with the EGMS resolution on
15 April 2015



SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED ENTITIES

Subsidiaries

Up to the end of 2019, BFI Finance had
one subsidiary, i.e., PT Finansial Integrasi
Teknologi (FIT).

PT Finansial Integrasi Teknologi
(FIT)

BFI Tower 2nd Floor, Sunburst CBD Lot 1.2, Jalan
Kapten Soebijanto Djojohadikusumo, BSD City,
South Tangerang 15322

15 September 2017

Deed of Notary Herna Gunawan, S.H., M.Kn. No.
4 dated 15 September 2017, as approved by the
Minister of Law and Human Rights of the Republic
of Indonesia by the letter No. AHU-0043022.
AH.01.01.Tahun 2017 dated 29 September 2017.

Information technology-based lending services via
https:/pinjasmmodal.id

To provide easily accessible financial services
to the Indonesian society to contribute to the
improvement of public welfare

* Providing easy access to services for the public
by utilizing state-of-the-art technologies

e Providing competitive and practical
financial services to be used widely by the
Indonesian society

e Growing into a sound, strong, and
integrated company

e PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk  99.96%

e [ainnya 0.04%

No. S-588/NB.213/2018 dated 31 July 2018

Rp19 billion

Associated Entities

Up to the end of 2019, BFI Finance did not have
any associated entities.
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President Commissioner

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 65
Domicile: Tangerang, Banten

He serves as the Company’s President Commissioner pursuant to the Deed of
Minutes of AGMS No. 80 dated 15 June 2011, and was reappointed pursuant to the
Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25 April 2016 for the period 2016-2021.

He also serves as Vice President Commissioner of PT Adaro Power,
Commissioner of PT Tamaris Hidro, President Commissioner of PT Setiabudi
Investment Management, and Commissioner of PT Profesional Telekomunikasi
Indonesia (Protelindo).

Previously, he served as commissioner and adviser at several companies focusing
on natural resources and power generation since 2009, Minister of Research and
Technology of the Republic of Indonesia for the period 2004-2009, Chairman

of Asian—Europe University Network (ASEA-UNINET) in 2002-2004, Rector

of Bandung Institute of Technology (ITB) in 2001-2004, Head of Technology
Development Center of ITB (1998-2001), Head of ITB Control Laboratory
(1995-1998), Director of Business Group in Jakarta (1993-1995), and Director of I[TB
Computer Center (1990-1993).

He obtained his Doctor of Philosophy degree from the Australian National
University, Canberra, Australia, in 1988, and Bachelor of Physics Engineering from
[TBin 1977.
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Independent Commissioner

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 68
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as the Company’s Independent Commissioner
pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of AGMS No. 80 dated
15 June 2011 and was reappointed pursuant to the Deed
of Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25 April 2016 for the
period 2016-2021, and also as Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

He joined BFI Finance as a Credit Officer (1982-1991), then

Director (1991-1999) and President Commissioner (2000-2011).

He was Member of the Audit Committee of PT Bentoel
International Investama Tbk from March 2010 to 31 March
2016, Finance Director of PT Carsurin from April 2007

to June 2013, joined the Mutual International Finance
Corporation (1980-1982), and Auditor in SGV, Utomo, Mulia
& Co. (1973-1976).

He obtained his Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.)
degree from Gadjah Mada University, Yogyakarta, in 2009,
and Bachelor of Economics in Management (Drs.) from
Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, in 1980.

Independent Commissioner

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 69
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as the Company’s Independent Commissioner
pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of AGMS No. 80 dated

15 June 2011, and was reappointed pursuant to the Deed of
Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25 April 2016 for the period
2016-2021, as well as Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

He holds concurrent positions as Managing Partner at the
Law Office of Alfonso Napitupulu & Partners, Jakarta, since
1993, President Director of PT Nana Mandiri Dwikarya
since 1989, Independent Commissioner of PT Asuransi
Bringin Sejahtera Artamakmur (BRINS General Insurance)
since 2015, and Advisory Board of Indonesian Advocates
Association (Perhimpunan Advokat Indonesia/PERADI).

Prior to joining BFI Finance, he worked at the Law Office

of Alfonso, Giunseng & Kolopaking, Jakarta (1988-1993),
International Lawyer Practitioner at the Law Office of
Bronson & McKinnon, San Francisco, California, USA
(1984-1985), joined the Law Office of Gani Djemat & Partners
(1975-1988), and Legal Consultant Advocate for Capital
Market and Intellectual Property Rights (1976).

He obtained his Bachelor of Law degree (Civil Law) from
Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, in 1975.
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Independent Commissioner

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 69
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

She serves as the Company’s Independent Commissioner
pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of AGMS No. 80 dated 15
June 2011, and was reappointed pursuant to the Deed of

Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25 April 2016 for the period

20162021, as well as Chairwoman of the Audit Committee.

At present, she also serves as Chairwoman of the
Supervisory Board of Indonesian Institute of Corporate
Directorship (IICD), works as a Law Faculty Lecturer at
Universitas Indonesia, Law Faculty Lecturer at Prasetiya
Mulya University, and the Study Team of Asosiasi Emiten
Indonesia (AEI).

She once served as Commissioner of PT Indonesia Asahan
Aluminium (Persero) or INALUM (2007-2018), Special Staff
to the Minister of State-Owned Enterprises (2007-2012),
Domestic Consultant of the World Bank and Indonesia
National Committee of Good Governance (2004-2005).

She earned her Master of Law (L.L.M.) degree from
University of California (UC), Berkeley, USA, in 1982, and
Bachelor of Law from Universitas Airlangga, Surabaya,
in 1979.

Commissioner

Australian Citizen
Age: 41
Domicile: Singapore

He serves as the Company’s Commissioner pursuant to

the Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 44 dated 15 April 2015 in
conjunction with the Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement
No. 3 dated 6 July 2015 for the period 2015-2020.

He previously served as Member of the Audit Committee,
the Risk Management Committee as well as the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee from 2011 until March 2015.

Currently, he also holds positions as the Managing Director
and Partner at TPG Capital (S) Pte. Ltd. in Singapore, where
he has been working since 2005. Prior to that, he was an
Analyst in Investment Banking Division of Credit Suisse
First Boston in Melbourne, Australia (2004-2005), and held
various positions at Consumer Finance Division of ANZ
Bank, Australia (1998-2004).

He earned his Bachelor of Law in 2003 and Bachelor of
Commerce (Honours—Finance) in 2001 from University of
Melbourne, Australia.



Commissioner

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 47
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as the Company’s Commissioner pursuant to

the Deed of Minutes of EGMS No.44 dated 15 April 2015 in
conjunction with the Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement
No. 3 dated 6 July 2015 for the period 2015-2020, and also
as Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
Previously, he was Member of the Risk Management
Committee from May 2013 until September 2014.

Currently, he also holds positions as the Managing Director

of Northstar Advisors Pte. Ltd. started in 2006, President
Commissioner of PT Bukit Makmur Mandiri Utama since 2009,
Commissioner of PT Delta Dunia Makmur Tbk since 2011, and
Commissioner of PT Trimegah Sekuritas Indonesia since 2013.

He once served as Commissioner, member of the Audlit,
Risk Monitoring, and Remuneration and Nomination
Committees of PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional

Tbk (2008-2015), Director of Investment Banking of PT
Danareksa Sekuritas (2004-2006), and Consultant at Boston
Consulting Group, Jakarta (1998-2004). His career began
as Assistant Vice President for Equity Research of PT Lippo
Securities — SBC Warburg (1995-1998).

He obtained his Master of Finance (Merit) degree from
London Business School, UK, 2002, and Bachelor of
Business Administration (Distinction) from University of
Wisconsin-Madison, USA, in 1995.

Commissioner

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 53
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as the Company’s Commissioner for the period
2017-2022 pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 25
dated 18 April 2017 in conjunction with the Deed of Meeting
Resolutions Statement No. 15 dated 13 June 2017.

Previously, he had served as the Company’s Director
pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of AGMS No. 80 dated

15 June 2011, and was reappointed to the same position
pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25
April 2016 for the period 2016-2021, and later resigned on
31 January 2017.

He once served as the Operations Director which began
in May 2014 and supervised the Company’s Operations
Division, Network Development and Corporate Business,
as the Director that supervised various departments in

BFI Finance from 2007 until 2014, among others, Human
Capital until 2012, Finance and Treasury as well as Internal
Audit until 2014, and concurrently served as the Corporate
Secretary until June 2014. He was also Division Head of
Financial Control and Treasury of BFI Finance (1996-1997),
Financial Supervisor of BFI Finance (1992-1996), and Auditor
at Prasetio, Utomo and Co. (1989-1992).

He obtained his Bachelor of Economics degree in
Accounting from Trisakti University, Jakarta, in 1990.
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Francis Lay Sioe Ho
President Director

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 71
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He was appointed as Director of the Company in 1983 and later served as President
Director in 1986. He was reappointed to the same position pursuant to the Deed

of Minutes of AGMS No. 80 dated 15 June 2011 for the period 2011-2016 and the
Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25 April 2016 for the period 2016—-2021.

Prior to joining BFI Finance, he worked as Executive Officer at the Ministry of Finance in
Singapore in 1972-1973, then joined PT Indovest as a Treasury Officer in 1975, held a
position as Credit Manager until 1980, and Credit Department Head in 1980-1983.

He earned his Bachelor of Business Administration (B.B.A.) degree from University
of Singapore (now the National University of Singapore or NUS) in Singapore in
1972, and Master of Business Management (M.B.M.) from the Asian Institute of
Management (AIM) in Manila, Philippines, in 1975.
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Sudjono
Finance Director

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 49
Domicile: South Tangerang, Banten

He serves as the Company’s Finance Director pursuant to
the Deed of Minutes of AGMS No. 18 dated 6 May 2014 in
conjunction with Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement

No. 3 dated 25 June 2014 (period 2014-2019). He was then
reappointed for the period 2019-2024 pursuant to the Deed
of Minutes of EGMS No. 59 dated 28 May 2019 in conjunction
with the Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement No. 56
dated 25 June 2019. He concurrently holds the position as
Corporate Secretary based on the BOD Decree No. BOD-
BOC/VI/2014-0011 dated 24 June 2014.

Previously, he also concurrently served as Information
Technology Director from May 2014 to May 2017. Prior to

his appointment as Director, he held a position as Head of
Finance and Information Technology Division and various
other positions from 1993 to April 2014, as well as Member of
the Risk Management Committee from 2003 to 2013.

Prior to joining BFI Finance, he had served as Senior Auditor at the
Public Accounting Firm of Hans Tuanakotta Mustofa — member
firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu International in 1991-1993.

He obtained his Enterprise Risk Manager (ERM™) title

from Asia Risk Management Institute (ARiMI) and National
University of Singapore (NUS) in Singapore in 2009, Master of
Business Administration (M.B.A.) from Institut Pengembangan
Manajemen Indonesia (IPMlI), Jakarta, in 2006, and Bachelor
of Economics majoring in Accounting from Tarumanagara
University, Jakarta, in 1993.

Sutadi

Business Director

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 45
Domicile: Tangerang, Banten

He serves as the Company’s Business Director pursuant to
the Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 18 dated 6 May 2014 in
conjunction with the Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement
No. 3 dated 25 June 2014 (period 2014-2019). He was

then reappointed for the period 2019-2024 pursuant to the
Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 59 dated 28 May 2019 in
conjunction with the Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement
No. 56 dated 25 June 2019.

Previously, he served in various other positions at the
Company, among others, Retail Business Division Head
until April 2014, Department Head and Associate Division
Head (2008-2012), Regional Manager (2006—2008), Branch
Manager (2004-2006), Branch Establishment Manager
(2001-2004), and Branch Manager (2000—2001).

He also had served as Sales Executive in Marketing Export
of PT Tjiwi Kimia Pulp & Paper (1999-2000) and Collection
& Credit Analyst Officer of PT Bunas Finance Indonesia
(1997-1999).

He earned his Executive M.B.A. degree from IPMI
International Business School, Jakarta, in 2018, and
Bachelor of Industrial Engineering from Trisakti University,
Jakarta, in 1998.
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Andrew Adiwijanto
Operations and Human Capital Director

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 51
Domicile: Jakarta, Indonesia

He serves as the Company’s Operations and Human Capital
Director pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 25
dated 18 April 2017 in conjunction with the Deed of Meeting
Resolutions Statement No. 15 dated 13 June 2017 for the
period 2017-2022.

Previously, he was Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from April 2015 to April 2017,
Head of Operations & Control (2012-2017), and Head of
Compensation & Benefit (2014-2017).

He joined BFI Finance in 1993 as Marketing Officer and has
held various other positions, among others, Branch Manager
in Makassar, Denpasar, and Palembang, Regional Manager
for Sumatra Region, and Department Head of Quality
Service, Corporate Services, Human Resources, as well as
Branch Operations.

He earned his Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.)
degree from Gadjah Mada University, Jakarta, in 2013,
and Bachelor of Electrical Engineering from Sekolah Tinggi
Teknik Surabaya (STTS), East Java, in 1992. He obtained a
special certificate for joining “Human Capital Management:
Making HR & Business Partnership Work”, an intensive
course from the Asian Institute of Management (AIM) in
Manila, Philippines, in 2008.

Sigit Hendra Gunawan
Enterprise Risk Director (Independent)

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 51
Domicile: Tangerang, Banten

He joined the Company as Head of Enterprise Risk Division
in 2015 and then has been serving as the Company’s
Enterprise Risk Director (Independent) since April 2016
pursuant to the Deed of 2016 EGMS Minutes No. 43 dated
25 April 2016 for the period 2016-2021.

Previously, he worked at PT Astra Sedaya Finance (1994—
2005) with his last position as Account Management &
Credit Analyst Department Head (Fleet Division), and at
Adira Finance (2005-2015) with his last position as Deputy
Director — Head of Credit & Collection.

He obtained a Certificate of Master Class in “Enterprise Risk
Governance” from CRMS (Center for Risk Management &
Sustainability) Indonesia and a Certificate of Competence

in Risk Management — QRGP (Quialified Risk Governance
Professional) from Professional Certification Body of Mitra
Kalyana Sejahtera (LSP MKS), National Accreditation
Committee (KAN), and International Accreditation Forum
(IAF) in 2019. In addition, he also earned a Certified Business
Management in 2004 and Certified Business Management—
Operation in 2003, both from Prasetiya Mulya Business
School, Jakarta. He obtained his Bachelor of Industrial
Engineering degree from Trisakti University, Jakarta, in 1993.
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Chairman of Sharia Supervisory Board

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 44
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as the Company’s Chairman of Sharia
Supervisory Board pursuant to the Deed of Minutes

of EGMS No. 6 dated 25 October 2017 in conjunction
with the Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement No. 19
dated 21 December 2017 for the period 2017-2022.

He obtained his Competency Certificate as Sharia
Supervisor from the Professional Certification Agency
(LSP) of National Sharia Board — Indonesian Ulema
Council (DSN-MUI).

Currently, he is a Lecturer of Sharia Economics Study
Program at Universitas Nahdlatul Ulama Indonesia
(UNUSIA) Jakarta and Lecturer of Sharia and Law
Faculty at Syarif Hidayatullah State Islamic University
Jakarta (UIN), also serves as Vice Chairman of Qanuliyah
(Islamic Law) at Bahtsul Masail Institute of Nahdlatul
Ulama Great Administrator (LBM PBNU), and Chairman
of the Information and Communications Commission at
MUI Headquarters.

At the moment, he is taking a Doctoral Program in Law
Science at Diponegoro University, Semarang, Central
Java. He earned his Master of Laws degree majoring in
Economic Law from Universitas Indonesia in 2010, and
Bachelor of (Islamic) Religion from Sharia and Law Faculty
at Institut Agama Islam Negeri (IAIN) Syarif Hidayatullah;
now known as UIN Syarif Hidayatullah Jakarta, in 1998.

Member of Sharia Supervisory Board

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 46
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

She serves as the Company’s Member of Sharia
Supervisory Board pursuant to the Deed of Minutes of
EGMS No. 6 dated 25 October 2017 in conjunction with the
Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement No. 19 dated 21
December 2017 for the period 2017-2022.

Currently, her concurrent positions include as General
Secretary of Yayasan Pendidikan Fatahillah Jakarta (YPFJ),
Postgraduate Program Lecturer at Sekolah Tinggi llmu
Ekonomi Indonesia (STEI) Rawamangun, East Jakarta, and
Head of Consultation and Development Division for Sharia
Financial Program at International Center for Development
in Islamic Finance — Lembaga Pengembangan Perbankan
Indonesia (ICDIF-LPPI).

Previously, she was a Member of the Sharia Economics Expert
Board at Universitas Azzahra in East Jakarta (2010-2014),
worked as a Lecturer of Sharia Contracts & Products course for
the M.B.A. in Sharia Banking & Finance Program at Bandung
Institute of Technology or ITB (2009-2015), Head of Sharia
Financial Program Implementation Department at ICDIF-LPPI
(2008-2014), and President of Sekolah Tinggi Ekonomi Islam
Tiara (STEI Tiara) Rawamangun, East Jakarta (2006—2008).

She graduated from her Doctoral Program in Sharia
Economics from Universiti Malaya, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, in
2007, earned her Master in Islamic Economics (M.A.) degree
from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia in 2000, and Bachelor of
Syariah Islamiyyah (Lc) from the Faculty of Islamic Studies and
Arabic Language, Al-Azhar University in Cairo, Egypt, in 1996.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PROFILES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Emmy Yuhassarie

Chairwoman of the
Audit Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 69
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

Her position as Chairwoman of the
Audit Committee was confirmed

by the BOC Decree No. BOC/
SK/VI/2016-05 dated 21 June

2016 for the period 2016-2021.

She also serves as Independent
Commissioner, having been
reappointed pursuant to the Deed of
Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25
April 2016 for the period 2016-2021.
Her profile is presented in the BOC
Profiles section (page 72).

Friso Palilingan
Member of the Audit Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 36
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as Member of the Audit Committee pursuant to the BOC Decree
No. BOC/SK/IV/2015-0081 dated 13 April 2015 and was reaffirmed by the
BOC Decree No. BOC/SK/VI/2016-05 dated 21 June 2016 for the period
2016-2021.

At present, he also serves as Senior Partner at the Certified Public
Accounting Firm Paul Hadiwinata, Hidajat, Arsono, Retno, Palilingan &
Rekan (PKF Indonesia, member of PKF International), Vice Chairman at
NBP Capital, member of the Financial Accounting Standards Board of
Institute of Indonesia Chartered Accountants (IAl), and member of the Audit
Committees of PT Intiland Development Tbk, PT Duta Intidaya Tbk, PT
Medikaloka Hermina Tbk, and PT Asahimas Flat Glass Tbk.

Previously, he was a partner of a global top five accounting firm. He
obtained his Bachelor of Economics degree in Accounting in 2005 and
Master of Accounting in 2008, both from Kwik Kian Gie School of Business
(formerly Institut Bisnis dan Informatika Indonesia or IBIl) in Jakarta. He
earned his Certified Public Accountant (CPA) title in 2008 and Chartered
Accountant (CA) in 2013, both from IAl, as well as Certified Audit Committee
Practitioner from Indonesian Institute of Audit Committee (IKAl) in 2016.
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Edy Sugito

Member of the Audit Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 55
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as Member of the Audit Committee pursuant to the BOC Decree
No. BOC/SK/VI/2016-05 dated 21 June 2016 for the period 2016-2021.

He also serves as Chief Commissioner of PT Gayatri Kapital Indonesia and
as Independent Commissioner in several other companies, among others,
PT PP London Sumatra Indonesia Tbk, PT Wismilak Inti Makmur Tbk, and
PT Trimegah Sekuritas Indonesia Tbk.

Previously, he was the Director of Company Valuation of PT Bursa Efek
Indonesia (2000—2005), Director of PT Kliring Penjaminan Efek Indonesia
(2000-2005), and Director of PT Kustodian Sentral Efek Indonesia (1998-2000).

He earned his Bachelor of Economics degree in Accounting from Trisakti
University, Jakarta, in 1991.
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Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 68
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He was appointed as Chairman of
the Risk Management Committee
pursuant to the BOC Decree No.
BOC/SK/VI/2016-05 dated 21 June
2016 for the period 2016-2021.

He also serves as Independent
Commissioner, having been
reappointed pursuant to the Deed of
Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25
April 2016 for the period 2016-2021.
His profile is presented in the BOC
Profiles section (page 71).
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Member of the Risk Management Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 45
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as Member of the Risk Management Committee pursuant to the BOC Decree
No. BOC/SK/IV/2015-0081 dated 13 April 2015 and was reaffirmed by the BOC Decree
No. BOC/SK/VI/2016-05 dated 21 June 2016 for the period 2016-2021.

He is the Founder and Managing Director of PT Mudita Finansial Teknologi (since
September 2018), as well as Founder and President Director of PT Pasar Jasa
Profesional (since July 2019). Currently, he also serves as Independent Commissioner
and Chairman of the Risk Monitoring Committee of PT Commonwealth Life (since
November 2014), member of Audit Committee and member of Risk Monitoring
Committee of PT Bank Commonwealth (since March 2013).

He previously served as Managing Director of PT Kiran Resources Indonesia for 14 years,
and member of Audit Committee and Risk Monitoring Committee in several banks and
financial institutions, such as PT Bank BNP Paribas Indonesia (11 years), PT Bank Barclays
Indonesia (1 year), and PT BIl Finance Centre (2 years). From July 2001 to February 2004,
he held various positions at the Indonesian Bank Restructuring Agency (BPPN).

He began his career at PT Tanjung Johor Wood Industry, Jakarta (December 1993-July
1996) as an Accountant, then as Senior Auditor at Arthur Andersen, Jakarta (August 1996—
July 1998), and Senior Consultant at Deloitte Touche, Jakarta (December 1998—July 2001).

He obtained his Master’s degree in Finance from Pelita Harapan University, Tangerang,
in 2003, Bachelor of Economics in Accounting from Tarumanagara University, Jakarta, in
1996, Risk Management Certification Level 3 from Badan Sertifikasi Manajemen Risiko
(BSMR) in Indonesia, and International Certificate in Banking and Regulation from Global
Association of Risk Professionals (GARP) in 2011. He also earned the Risk Management
Certification for Insurance Company Level 5 from Asosiasi Ahli Manajemen Asuransi
Indonesia (AAMAI) in 2015, and Certified in Enterprise Risk Governance (CERG) from
Enterprise Risk Management Academy (ERMA), Singapore, in 2017.
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NOMINATION AND RE

Alfonso Napitupulu

Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 69
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

His position as Chairman of the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was confirmed by the
BOC Decree No. BOC/SK/IV/2015-
0081 dated 13 April 2015 and was
reaffirmed by the BOC Decree No.
BOC/SK/VI/2016-05 dated 21 June
2016 for the period 2016-2021.

He also serves as Independent
Commissioner, having been
reappointed pursuant to the Deed of
Minutes of EGMS No. 43 dated 25
April 2016 for the period 2016-2021.
His profile is presented in the BOC
Profiles section (page 71).
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Sunata
Tjiterosampurno

Member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 47
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as Member of the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee pursuant to the BOC
Decree No. BOC/VI/2017-0103
dated 2 June 2017 for the period

up to 2021. He also serves as
Commissioner, pursuant to the
Deed of Minutes of EGMS No. 44
dated 15 April 2015 in conjunction
with the Deed of Meeting
Resolutions Statement No. 3 dated 6
July 2015 for the period 2015-2020.
His profile is presented in the BOC
Profiles section (page 73).

314-336
corporate supporting
data

338-443
annual financial
statements

Priyambodo

Member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 66
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He serves as Member of the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee pursuant to the BOC
Decree No. BOC/SK/IV/2015-

0081 dated 13 April 2015, and was
reaffirmed by the BOC Decree No.
BOC/SK/VI/2016-05 dated 21 June
2016 for the period 2016-2021.

He joined BFI Finance from 1983 until
2013, with the latest position as Senior
Manager of Payroll Compensation,
and had held various other positions,
among others, Accounting Manager
and Payroll Unit Head. He earned his
Diploma in Accounting from Sekolah
Akademi Akuntansi Indonesia,
Jakarta, in 1980.
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The following are the Head Office Senior Management members under the Board of Directors:

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 52
Domicile: Tangerang, Banten

He joined BFI Finance in 1997, had served as Head of Commercial
Business covering Corporate Business and Inventory Management since
2016, and currently has been serving as Head of Asset Management
Recovery since 2019.

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 41
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He joined BFI Finance in 2001 and has been serving as Head of Project
Management Office since 2015.

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 41
Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He joined BFI Finance in 2003. He once served as Head of Channel
on 2017-2018, and appointed as Director of PT Finansial Integrasi
Teknologi (FIT), BFI Finance’s subsidiary focusing on financial
technology (fintech) peer-to-peer lending, since 2018.

Indonesian Citizen
Age: 49
Domicile: Tangerang, Banten

He joined BFI Finance in 1995, had served as Regional Manager covering
Palembang, Jambi, and Bandar Lampung areas since 2005 until early
2019, and currently has been serving as Head of Network Development
& Management.
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John Piter Sinaga
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 50

Domicile: Tangerang, Banten

He joined BFI Finance in 1997, had served as as Regional Manager
covering Bogor and Bekasi areas since 2017 until early 2019, and
currently has been serving as Head of AR Management & Recovery.

Tan Rudy Eddywidjaja
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 49

Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He joined BFI Finance in 1997 and has been serving as Head of
Consumer Business since 2017.

Tonny Widjaja

Indonesian Citizen

Age: 52

Domicile: Jakarta, DKI Jakarta

He joined BFI Finance in 1994 and has been serving as Head of Finance
& Treasury since 1996.

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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REGIONAL OFFICE

The following are the Head Office Senior Management as Regional Manager:

Sudi Hartono

Indonesian Citizen

Age: 48

Domicile: Medan, North Sumatra

He joined BFI Finance in 1994 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Medan and Pekanbaru areas since 2014, followed by
Batam area since 2018.

Sastero Wijaya Gunawan
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 40

Domicile: South Tangerang, Banten

He joined BFI Finance in 2002 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Palembang, Jambi, and Bandar Lampung areas
since 2019.

Susinto Tenggono Then
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 46

Domicile: South Tangerang, Banten

He joined BFI Finance in 1994 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Jakarta and Tangerang areas since 2017.
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Stefanus Wibowo
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 38

Domicile: Bandung, West Java

He joined BFI Finance in 2003 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Bandung and Cirebon areas since 2015.

Stanly Darisang
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 48

Domicile: Surabaya, East Java

He joined BFI Finance in 1996 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Surabaya and Kediri areas since 2019.

Khenriek Tjandra

Indonesian Citizen

Age: 46

Domicile: Makassar, South Sulawesi

He joined BFI Finance in 2002 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering South, West, Central, and Southeast Sulawesi
Provinces since 2015.
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Medy Mirdianata
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 46

Domicile: Surabaya, East Java

He joined BFI Finance in 1997 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Banjarmasin and Pontianak areas since 2019.

Rachmadi

Indonesian Citizen

Age: 49

Domicile: Semarang, Central Java

He joined BFI Finance in 2006 and has been serving as Regional
Manager of Central Java and Yogyakarta Special Region Provinces
since 2011,

Hernandi Kusno

Indonesian Citizen

Age: 51

Domicile: Samarinda, East Kalimantan

He joined BFI Finance in 1994 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering East and North Kalimantan Provinces since 2007.
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Tan Eng Han

Indonesian Citizen

Age: 44

Domicile: South Tangerang, Banten

He joined BFI Finance in 1997 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Bekasi and Bogor areas since 2019.

Augusnen Silalahi
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 47

Domicile: Tangerang, Banten

He joined BFI Finance in 1999 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Manado area in North Sulawesi Province, Ambon and
Papua areas since 2017.

| Kadek Tirtayasa
Indonesian Citizen

Age: 48

Domicile: Denpasar, Bali

He joined BFI Finance in 1997 and has been serving as Regional
Manager covering Bali and Nusa Tenggara areas since 2014, as well as
Malang area in East Java Province since 2019.
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Based on the Shareholders Register issued by PT Sirca Datapro Perdana as the Company’s Share Registrar,
the shareholders’ composition of BFI Finance as at 31 December 2019 was as follows:

TABLE 9_COMPOSITION OF SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

Price per Share Rp25

Description %
Total Shares Face Value (Rp) Shares

Authorized Capital 20,000,000,000  500,000,000,000 100.00
Issued and Fully Paid-up Capital 15,967,115,620 399,177,890,500 79.84
Share Capital in Portfolio 4,032,884,380  100,822,109,500 20.16
Shareholders:

Trinugraha Capital & Co SCA 6,835,249,660 170,881,241,500 42.80
NT Asian Discovery Fund 1,681,275,640 39,531,891,000 9.90
PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk* 1,002,732,000 25,068,300,000 6.28
Others (each below 5%) 6,547,858,320  163,696,458,000 41.02
Total 15,967,115,620 399,177,890,500  100.00
* Result of the Company’s stock buyback program in line with the EGMS resolution on 15 April 2015
Share ownership of members of the BOC and the BOD as at 31 December 2019 was as follows:

TABLE 10_SHARE OWNERSHIP OF MEMBERS OF THE BOC AND BOD
Name Position Total Shares % Shares

Francis Lay Sioe Ho President Director 389,885,080 2.44
Sudjono Director 33,380,000 0.21
Sutadi Director 21,382,800 0.14
Sigit Hendra Gunawan Director (Independent) 10,000,000 0.06
Andrew Adiwijanto Director 10,120,000 0.06
Johanes Sutrisno Commisioner (Independent) 2,480 0.00
Total 464,770,360 2.91
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PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk’s ownership structure, as at end of 2019, comprised a total of 1,754 individuals and institutions,
of which 81.62% were registered abroad and 18.38% locally. There are three institutions that own shares exceeding 5%, i.e.,
Trinugraha Capital & Co SCA, Luxembourg, with a 42.80% stake, NT Asian Discovery Fund with a 9.90% stake, and PT BFI
Finance Indonesia Tbk, with 6.28%. The shares in the name of PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk resulted from the Company’s
share buyback program.

GRAPH 5 _SHARE OWNERSHIP COMPOSITION BASED ON NATIONALITY

18.38%
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GRAPH 6 _SHARE OWNERSHIP COMPOSITION BY CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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@ PT BFI Finance Indonesia Tbk*

* Result of the Company’s stock buyback program in line with the EGMS resolution
on 15 April 2015
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Trinugraha Capital & Co SCA

Manager
Trinugraha Capital (TC Sarl)

Supervisory Board

Garibaldi Thohir
John Viola
Doug Puckett

Brief History

Trinugraha Capital & Co SCA (TC&Co) is a
company incorporated under the laws of

the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg with its
establishment made before Maitre Joseph
Elvinger, Notary in Luxembourg, and was listed
on The Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés
in Luxembourg under number B 160504. The
articles of association of TC&Co have been

amended several times with the latest amendment

being effective based on the resolutions of
TC&Co’s extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders, dated 20 May 2011, made before
Maitre Joseph Elvinger, Notary in Luxembourg.

Objectives and Interests of TC&Co

TC&Co’s objectives and interests are in
participating, in any form, in companies,
partnerships, or other forms of business entity.
TC&Co has the capability to be involved in all of

the commercial, technical, financial, or operational

aspects, either directly or indirectly, in order to
successfully achieve its objectives.

Managers and Supervisors of
TC&Co

In accordance with its articles of association,
TC&Co is managed by one or more managers
who are the unlimited liability shareholders/
commandite. TC Sarl, a societe a responsabilite
limitee, was appointed as the sole manager of
TC&Co. All matters related to TC&Co and their
financial condition including in particular the
bookkeeping and accounts are overseen by the
TC&Co Supervisory Board



CHRONOLOGICAL LISTING OF SHARES AND CHANGES IN NUMBER OF SHARES

Chronology of Share Listing

Based on Deed No. 57 on 7 April 1982, and
amended by Deed No. 40 dated 6 October
1982, both made before Kartini Muljadi, S.H.,
Notary in Jakarta, the authorized capital of the
Company was Rp3,000,000,000 divided into
100 preferred shares and 1,900 common shares,
each with a nominal value of Rp1,500,000, while
the issued and fully paid-up capital amounting

to Rp1,500,000,000, divided into 100 preferred
shares and 900 common shares.

Based on Deed No. 80 dated 22 November
1989 and Deed No. 27 dated 8 March 1990,

the authorized capital of the Company when

the Company was about to conduct a public
offering increased from Rp3,000,000,000 divided
into 100 preferred shares and 1,900 common
shares each with a nominal value of Rp1,500,000
to Rp15,000,000,000 divided into 15,000,000
ordinary shares each having a nominal value of
Rp1,000, while the issued and fully paid-up capital
amounting to Rp8,500,000,000, consisting of
8,500,000 shares.

In 1990, the Company made an initial public
offering of 2,125,000 shares with a par value
of Rp1,000 per share through the stock
exchanges in Indonesia at the offering price of
Rp5,750 per share

On 16 May 1990, the Company listed
2,125,000 shares on the Jakarta Stock
Exchange and the Surabaya Stock Exchange
(now IDX).

Based on Deed No. 31 made before Sutjipto,
S.H., dated 8 April 1993, the shareholders
approved a stock dividend of Rp1,062,500,000
or 1,062,500 shares to registered shareholders
on 11 May 1993 by issuing one new share for
every ten shares held.

The Company listed 1,062,500 of its shares

on the Jakarta Stock Exchange and Surabaya
Stock Exchange on 14 June 1993 and 11 June
1998, respectively.

Based on Deed No. 32, dated 8 April 1993,
made before Sutjipto, S.H., Notary in Jakarta,
the authorized capital was increased from
Rp15,000,000,000 divided into 15,000,000
shares with a nominal value of Rp1,000
amounting to Rp30,000,000,000, divided
into 30,000,000 shares with a nominal value
of Rp1,000. Of the authorized capital the
issued and fully paid-up shares amounted to
Rp10,625,000,000 consisting of 10,625,000
shares. In addition, the shareholders also
approved to capitalize the capital by issuing
bonus shares for 17 shares for every 20
shares owned. The total number of bonus
shares distributed on 17 September 1993
was 9,934,668 shares with a nominal value of
Rp9,934,668,000.

The Company listed 9,934,668 shares of its
shares the Jakarta Stock Exchange and the
Surabaya Stock Exchange on 22 September
1993 and 13 September 1993, respectively.
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In 1998, in accordance with the
approval letter No. S-303/BEJ.1.1/
XI/1993 dated 30 November
1993 and No. 177/EMT/LIST/BES/
XI/93 dated 19 November 1993,
the Jakarta Stock Exchange and
Surabaya Stock Exchange agreed
to list as many as 8,500,000
additional shares with a nominal
value of Rp8,500,000,000 per
similar share listed the shares on
the Jakarta Stock Exchange and
Surabaya Stock Exchange on 6
December 1993 and 2 December
1993 respectively.

Thus, the number of shares
the Company had recorded
was 21,622,168 on the Jakarta
Stock Exchange and Surabaya
Stock Exchange.

Based on Deed No. 107 dated 22
January 1994, made by Sutjipto,
S.H., Notary in Jakarta, the
stockholders approved, among
others, to approve the distribution
of share dividends totaling
Rp7,207,390,000 or the amount
of 7,207,390 shares, with a 3:1
calculation, i.e., for every three
shares owned by shareholders
whose names were registered in
the register of shareholders on 21
February 1994, one new share will
be given as dividend.

50-103
company profile

The Company listed 7,207,390 of
its shares on the Jakarta Stock
Exchange and Surabaya Stock
Exchange on 22 March 1994 and
21 March 1994, respectively.

Based on Deed No. 2, dated 1
December 1993, made before
Sutjipto, S.H., Notary in Jakarta,
the authorized capital was
increased from Rp30,000,000,000,
divided into 30,000,000 shares
with a nominal value of Rp1,000
amounting to Rp100,000,000,000,
divided into 100,000,000 shares
with a nominal value of Rp1,000.
Of that authorized capital, the
authorized issued and fully
paid-up capital amounted to
Rp21,622,168,000, divided into
21,622,168 shares.

On 18 April 1994, the Company
obtained an effective statement
from the Capital Market
Supervisory Agency (later changed
to the Capital Market and Financial
Institutions Supervisory Agency or
Bapepam-LK and then as OJK)
through letter No. S-639/PM/1994
with regard to the First Limited
Public Offering (Rights Issue I) with
Preemptive Rights (HMETD) of the
Company for 28,829,558 shares,
whereby each one share was
entitled to one new share.

On 9 May 1994, the Company
listed 28,829,558 of its shares
on the Jakarta Stock Exchange
and Surabaya Stock Exchange,
bringing the Company’s

total outstanding shares to
57,659,116 shares.

On 17 January 1997, the
Company obtained an effective
statement from Bapepam-

LK through letter No. S-71/
PM/1997 in the framework of the
Company’s Second Limited Public
Offering (Rights Issue ll) totaling
115,318,232 shares at an offering
price of Rp1,000 per share, with
every one share was entitled to two
new shares.

On 12 February 1997, the
Company listed 115,318,232 of

its shares on the Jakarta Stock
Exchange and Surabaya Stock
Exchange, bringing the Company’s
total outstanding shares to
172,977,348 shares.

Based on Deed No. 97 dated

17 June 1997, the Company’s
shareholders approved a stock
split from Rp1,000 per share to
Rp500 per share, resulting in the
increase in the total outstanding
shares of the Company

from 172,977,348 shares to
345,954,696 shares.



On 3 November 1997, after the
said Stock Split, the Company
listed 172,977,348 of its shares on
the Jakarta Stock Exchange and
Surabaya Stock Exchange, bringin
the Company’s total outstanding
shares to 345,954,696 shares.

In the framework of the debt
restructuring, the Company’s
shareholders in the Extraordinary
GMS dated 27 January 2000
approved the issuance of
Mandatory Convertible Bonds
(MCB) to be converted into

as many as 414,384,585
Company shares.

Based on Deed No. 67 dated

9 August 2006 the entire MCB
has converted into 414,384,585
ordinary shares making the
Company’s total outstanding
shares 760,339,281 shares.

The Company listed 414,384,585
of its shares in the Jakarta Stock
Exchange and Surabaya Stock
Exchange on 11 May 2006 and 5
June 2006 respectively.

Based on Deed No. 65 dated 21
June 2012 by Fathiah Helmi, S.H.,
Notary in Jakarta, the shareholders
approved the amendment of
Article 4 paragraph 1 and 2

of the Company’s Articles of
Association regarding the change
of the par value of the Company’s
shares (stock split), from Rp500
per share to Rp250 per share,
resulting in an increase in the
number of outstanding shares of
the Company, from 760,339,281
shares to 1,5620,678,562 shares.

The stock split obtained
approval from IDX by letter No.
S-05439/BEI.PPJ/07-2012 dated
31 July 2012.

On 10 August 2012, after the
said Stock Split, the Company
listed 760,339,281 of its shares
on IDX, bringing the Company’s
total outstanding shares to
1,520,678,562 shares.
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Based on Deed No. 65 dated

21 June 2012 by Fathiah Helmi,
S.H., Notary in Jakarta, the
Company issued shares for the
implementation of MESOP for
Phase | in IDX for 60,826,400
shares with a nominal value of
Rp250 per share for the period until
20 June 2014.

IDX, through letter No. S-04847/
BEI.PPJ/07-2012 dated 6 July
2012, approved the listing of the
Company’s shares resulting from
the implementation of MESOP
Phase | for pre-listing on IDX.

On 31 May 2013, the Company
issued 5,936,000 new shares
for the implementation of
MESOP Phase | — Grant Date
1, which was executed so that
the total outstanding shares

of the Company became
1,526,614,562 shares.

On 30 May 2014, the Company
issued 23,320,000 new shares
for the implementation of

MESOP Phase | — Grant Date 2,
which was executed so that the
total outstanding shares of the
Company became 1,549,934,562.



Based on Deed No. 18 dated

6 May 2014 by Aryanti Artisari,
S.H., Notary in Jakarta, the
Company issued shares for the
implementation of MESOP for
Phase Il in IDX. The amount of
shares for MESOP Phase Il would
include the remaining shares that
have been allocated to MESOP but
not yet implemented from Phase |
plus Option Rights of Phase .

IDX, through letter No.S-02280/
BEI.PGI/06-2014 dated 6 June
2014, approved the listing of the
Company’s shares as the result
of the implementation of MESOP
Phase Il for pre-registration on
IDX for 46,777,000 shares with a
nominal value of Rp250 per share.

On 29 May 2015, the Company
issued 16,025,000 new shares
for the implementation of MESOP
Phase Il — Grant Date 1, which
was executed so that the total
outstanding shares of the
Company became 1,565,959,562.

50-103
company profile

On 31 May 2016, the Company
issued 30,752,000 new shares
for the implementation of MESOP
Phase Il — Grant Date 2, which
was executed so that the total
outstanding shares of the
Company became 1,596,711,562.

On 15 April 2015, the EGMS
approved the repurchase of
outstanding shares of the
Company up to a maximum of
10% of the total shares issued and
fully paid-up of the Company, or a
maximum of 154,993,456 shares.
The funds being reserved for
shares repurchase for a maximum
period of eighteen months since
the EGMS were not to exceed
Rp341,000,000,000.

By 31 December 2016, the
Company had repurchased
100,273,200 shares

with a purchase value of
Rp252,160,169,658.

Based on the Deed No. 25 dated
18 April 2017 made before Aryanti
Artisari, S.H., M.Kn., Notary

in Jakarta, the shareholders

of the Company approved the
amendment to Article 4 paragraphs
1 and 2 of the Company’s Articles
of Association concerning the
changes in par value of the
Company’s share (stock split)

from Rp250 per share to Rp25 per
share, thus resulting in the increase
in the total Company’s outstanding
shares from 1,5696,711,562 shares
to 15,967,115,620 shares.

The stock split was approved

by IDX by virtue of letter No.
S-02820/BEI.PP1/05-2017 dated
23 May 2017.

On 5 June 2017, after said

Stock Split, the Company listed
14,370,404,058 of its shares at
IDX, thus resulting in the total
Company’s outstanding shares of
15,967,115,620.
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Changes in Number of Shares

Based on the above description, the chronological listing of shares and the change in the number of outstanding shares of the
Company are summarized in the following table:
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TABLE 11_CHRONOLOGICAL LISTING OF SHARES AND CHANGES IN THE NUMBER OF OUTSTANDING SHARES

. Stock . . Total Listed Total Nominal
Corporate Action Exchange Listing Date Listed Shares Shares (Rp)

Initial Public Offering (IPO) BEJ & BES 16 May 1990 2,125,000 2,125,000 2,125,000,000

Share Dividend BEJ & BES 14 June 1993, 1,062,500 3,187,500 3,187,500,000
11 June 1993

Bonus Share BEJ & BES 22 September 1993, 9,934,668 13,122,168 13,122,168,000
13 September 1993

Company Listing BEJ & BES 6 December 1993, 8,500,000 21,622,168 21,622,168,000
2 December 1993

Share Dividend BEJ & BES 22 March 1994, 7,207,390 28,829,558 28,829,558,000
21 March 1994

Limited Public Offering | BEJ & BES 9 May 1994 28,829,558 57,659,116 57,659,116,000

(Right Issue I)

Limited Public Offering Il BEJ & BES 12 February 1997 115,318,232 172,977,348 172,977,348,000

(Right Issue Il)

Stock Split BEJ & BES 3 November 1997 172,977,348 345,954,696 172,977,348,000

New Shares from BEJ & BES 11 May 2006, 414,384,585 760,339,281 380,169,640,500

MCB Conversion 5 June 2006

Stock Split IDX 7 August 2012 760,339,281 1,5620,678,562 380,169,640,500

Issuance of Shares for IDX 31 May 2013 5,936,000 1,526,614,562 381,6583,640,500

Implementation of MESOP

Phase | - Grant Date 1

Issuance of Shares for IDX 30 May 2014 23,320,000 1,549,934,562 387,483,640,500

Implementation of MESOP

Phase | - Grant Date 2

Issuance of Shares for IDX 29 May 2015 16,025,000 1,5665,959,562 391,489,890,500

Implementation of MESOP

Phase Il - Grant Date 1

Issuance of Shares for IDX 31 May 2016 30,752,000 1,596,711,562 399,177,890,500

Implementation of MESOP

Phase Il - Grant Date 2

Stock Split IDX 5 June 2017 1,596,711,562 15,967,115,620 399,177,890,500
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. Amount
Debt Securities Issued Date Listed on Effective Date Bo'nd Tot.al' Issued Due Date Status
IDX Ratings (Rp million) L
(Rp million)
Obligasi Series A: 10 March 2014 28 February 2014 AA-(idn) 500,000 225,000 17 March
Berkelanjutan I/ (No. 8-121/D.04/2014) 2015
BF Finance Series B: 55,000 7 March .
Indonesia Tahap 2016 Paid
| Tahun 2014 e REE—
Series C: 220,000 7 March
2017
Obligasi Series A: 20 March 2015 28 February 2014 AA-(idn) 1,000,000 345,000 29 March
Berkelanjutan Il (No. S-121/D.04/2014) 2016
BFfFinance g B; 105000  19March  Paid
Indonesia Tahap 2017
Il Tahun 2015 —
Series C: 550,000 19 March
2018
Obligasi Series A: 26 February 2016 28 February 2014 AA-(idn) 1,000,000 200,000 5 March
Berkelanjutan Il (No. S-121/D.04/2014) 2017
BF Finance Series B: 142,000 25 February  Paid
Indonesia Tahap 2018
Il Tahun 2016~ ————
Series C: 658,000 25 February
2019
Obligasi Series A: 26 October 2016 17 October 2016 A+(idn) 1,000,000 317,000 5 November
Berkelanjutan Il (No. S588/D.04/2016) 2017 )
BFI Finance . Paid
) Series B: 550,000 25 October
Indonesia Tahap 2019
| Tahun 2016 —_—
Series C: 133,000 25 October  Not yet
2021 due
Obligasi Series A: 3 March 2017 17 October 2016 A+(idn) 1,000,000 540,000 12 March Paid
Berkelanjutan Il (No. 2018
BFi Finance Series B: S-588/D.04/2016) 460000  2March ot vet
Indonesia Tahap 2020 Y
I Tahun 2017 due
Obligasi Series A: 10 November 17 October 2016 A+(idn) 835,000 335,000 19
Berkelanjutan Il 2017 (No. November
BFl Finance S-588/D.04/2016) 2018 Paid
Indonesia Tahap ~ggies B; 100,000 9 November
Il Tahun 2017 2019
Series C: 400,000 9 November  Not yet
2020 due
Obligasi Series A: 7 March 2018 17 October 2016 A+(idn) 2,165,000 946,000 16 March )
, Paid
Berkelanjutan (No. 2019
;” 5” F'f,'af;clj Series B: S-588/D.04/2016) 253,000  6March
ndonesia Tahap 2020
IV Tahun 2018 —— Not yet
Series C: 966,000 6 March due

2021
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Date Listed on

Bond

Total

Amount

Debt Securities Issued Effective Date . . Issued Due Date Status
IDX Ratings (Rp million) L
(Rp million)
Obligasi Series A: 27 June 2018 7 June 2018 A+(idn) 740,000 188,000 6 July 2019 Paid
Berkelanjutan — geieq B: (No. $-67/D.04/2018) 552,000 26 June
IV BFI Finance 2021 Not yet
Indonesia Tahap due
| Tahun 2018
Obligasi Series A: 25 February 2019 7 June 2018 A+(idn) 1,000,000 500,000 2 March
Berkelanjutan (No. S-67/D.04/2018)” 2020 Not yet
IV BFl Finance  amn g Y
i Series B: 500,000 22 February due

Indonesia Tahap 2022

Il Tahun 2019

2014

Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2014 Series
A, Series B, and Series C, at a nominal
value of Rp500 billion, were listed

on Indonesia Stock Exchange on

10 March 2014. These bonds were
rated ‘AA-(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan
Il BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap |
Tahun 2074 was supported by the
following institutions and capital
market professionals:

PT Danareksa Sekuritas

Gedung Danareksa, 1t Floor

JI. Medan Merdeka Selatan No. 14
Jakarta 10110, Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 350 9777, 350 9888
Fax: (62-21) 350 0989, 350 1817

PT Indo Premier Securities

Wisma GKBI, 7t" Floor, Suite 718

JI. Jend. Sudirman No. 28

Jakarta 10210, Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 5793 1168, 2806 1168
Fax: (62-21) 5793 2076, 5793 1220

PT Kresna Graha Sekurindo Tbk

Kresna Tower, 6™ Floor

Parc 18 Sudirman Central Business
District (SCBD)

JI. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 52-53
Jakarta 12190, Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 2555 7000

Fax: (62-21) 2939 1950, 2939 1951

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

Gedung Artha Graha, 18" & 19 Floors
JI. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 52-53

Jakarta 12190, Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 2924 9088

Fax: (62-21) 2924 9168

PT Bank Mega Tbk

Menara Bank Mega

JI. Kapten Tendean Kav. 12-14A
Jakarta 12790, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 7917 5000

Fax: (62-21) 799 0720

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi & Rekan

Prudential Tower, 17" Floor
JI. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 79
Jakarta 12910, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 5795 7300
Fax: (62-21) 5795 7301

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners*

JI. Arteri Kedoya No. 8

Kedoya Selatan, Kebon Jeruk
Jakarta Barat 11520, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 2254 4117 ext. 107
Fax: (62-21) 2254 436

New address is listed in the bond issuance info 2017



Fathiah Helmi, S.H.

Graha Irama, 6™ Floor, Suite 6C

JI. HR Rasuna Said Blok X-1 Kav. 1-2
Jakarta Selatan 12950, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 5290 7304-06

Fax: (62-21) 526 1136

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

Prudential Tower, 20" Floor

JI. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 79
Jakarta Selatan 12910, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 5795 7755

Fax: (62-21) 5795 7750

As of 17 March 2015, the Company
had fully repaid the entire outstanding
principal of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI
Finance Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2014
Series A.

As of 17 March 2016, the Company
had fully repaid the entire outstanding
principal of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI
Finance Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2014
Series B.

As of 7 March 2017, the Company had
fully paid all of the principal balance of
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2014 Series C.

As of 31 December 2017, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balances

of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2014 Series A,
Series B, and Series C.

50-103
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2015

Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2015
Series A, Series B, and Series C, at
a nominal value of Rp1 trillion, were
listed on Indonesia Stock Exchange
on 20 March 2015. These bonds were
rated ‘AA-(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan
Il BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il
Tahun 2015 was supported by the
following institutions and capital
market professionals:

PT Danareksa Sekuritas
PT Indo Premier Securities
PT Kresna Graha Sekurindo Tbk

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

PT Bank Mega Tbk

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi & Rekan

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Fathiah Helmi, S.H.

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

As of 29 March 2016, the Company
had fully repaid the entire outstanding
principal of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI
Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2015
Series A.

As of 19 March 2017, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance
of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI
Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2015
Series B.

As of 19 March 2018, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance
of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI
Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2015
Series C.

As of 31 December 2018, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance
of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2015 Series
A, Series B, and Series C

2016

Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2016 Series
A, Series B, and Series C, at a nominal
value of Rp1 trillion, were listed on
Indonesia Stock Exchange on 26
February 2016. These bonds were
rated ‘AA-(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan
Il BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il
Tahun 2016 was supported by the
following institutions and capital
market professionals:



management diSCUSSIC

and analysis governance

PT Danareksa Sekuritas
PT Indo Premier Securities

PT Mandiri Sekuritas

Plaza Mandiri 28" Floor

JI.Jend. Gatot Subroto Kav. 36-38
Jakarta 12190, Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 526 3445

Fax: (62-21) 526 3603, 526 3507

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

PT Bank Tabungan Negara
(Persero) Tbk

Menara BTN 18" Floor
JI. Gajah Mada No. 1
Jakarta 10130, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 633 6789
Fax: (62-21) 634 6873

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang
& Rekan

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Ir.Nanette Cahyanie Handari Adi
Warsito, S.H.

JI. Panglima Polim V/11
Kebayoran Baru

Jakarta 12160, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 739 2801
Fax: (62-21) 726 5090

a corporate

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

As of 5 March 2017, the Company had
fully paid all the principal balance of
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2016 Series A.

As of 25 February 2018, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance

of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2016 Series B.

As of 25 February 2019, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance

of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2016 Series C.

As of 31 December 2019, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance
of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2016 Series A,
Series B, and Series C.

2016

Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2016 Series
A, Series B, and Series C, at a nominal
value of Rp1 trillion, were listed on
Indonesia Stock Exchange on 26
February 2016. These bonds were
rated ‘AA-(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan
Il BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il
Tahun 2016 was supported by the
following institutions and capital
market professionals:

PT Danareksa Sekuritas
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PT DBS Vickers Securities Indonesia

DBS Bank Tower 32nd Floor Ciputra
World Jakarta 1

JI. Prof. Dr. Satrio Kav. 3-5

Jakarta 12940, Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 3003 4900

Fax: (62-21) 3003 4944

PT Mandiri Sekuritas

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

PT Bank Tabungan Negara
(Persero) Tbk

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang
& Rekan

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Ir. Nanette Cahyanie Handari Adi
Warsito, S.H.

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

As of 5 November 2017, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance
of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2016 Series A.

As of 25 October 2019, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance
of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFl Finance
Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2016 Series B.

As of 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal balance of
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2016 has
amounted to Rp133 billion.
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2017

Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2017 Series
A, Series B, and Series C at a nominal
value of Rp1 trillion, were listed at

the Indonesian Stock Exchange on

3 March 2017. These bonds were
rated at ‘A+(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il
BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun
2017 was supported by the following:

PT Danareksa Sekuritas
PT DBS Vickers Securities Indonesia
PT Mandiri Sekuritas

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

PT Bank Tabungan Negara
(Persero) Tbk

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang
& Rekan

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Menara BCA (Grand Indonesia)
50t Floor

JI. M.H. Thamrin No.1

Jakarta Pusat 10310, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 2254 4117 (Hunting)
Fax: (62-21) 2254 4367
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Ir.Nanette Cahyanie Handari Adi
Warsito, S.H.

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

As of 12 March 2018, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance
of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2017 Series A.

As of 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal balance of
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2017 has
amounted to Rp460 billion.

2017

Obligasi Berkelanjutan lll BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2017 Series
A, Series B, and Series C at a nominal
value of Rp835 billion, were listed at
the Indonesian Stock Exchange on 10
November 2017. These bonds were
rated at ‘A+(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il
BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun
2017 was supported by the following

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

104-121

human capital

122-133

PT Bank Tabungan Negara
(Persero) Tbk

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang
& Rekan

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Ir. Nanette Cahyanie Handari Adi
Warsito, S.H.

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

As of 19 November 2018, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance

of Obligasi Berkelanjutan lll BFI Finance

Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2017 Series A.

As of 9 November 2019, the Company
had fully paid all the principal balance

of Obligasi Berkelanjutan lll BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap lll Tahun 2017 Series B.

As of 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal balance of
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2017 has
amounted to Rp400 billion.

business supporting unit
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2018

Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap IV Tahun 2018 Series
A, Series B, and Series C at a nominal
value of Rp2.165 trillion, were listed

at the Indonesian Stock Exchange

on 7 March 2018. These bonds were
rated at ‘A+(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan
Ill BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap IV
Tahun 2018 was supported by the
following institutions and capital market
professionals:

Underwriters

PT Danareksa Sekuritas

PT DBS Vickers Sekuritas Indonesia
PT Mandiri Sekuritas

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

Trustee

PT Bank Tabungan Negara
(Persero) Tbk

Public Accountant

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang
& Rekan

Legal Consultant

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Notary
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corporate social
responsibility

314-336

data

Ir.Nanette Cahyanie Handari Adi
Warsito, S.H.

Bond Rating Agency

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

As of 16 March 2019, the Company

had fully paid all the principal balance

of Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap IV Tahun 2018 Series A.

As of 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal balance of Obligasi
Berkelanjutan lll BFI Finance Indonesia
Tahap IV Tahun 2018 has amounted to
Rp1.219 trillion.

2018

Obligasi Berkelanjutan IV BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2018 Series
A and Series B at a nominal value

of Rp740 billion, were listed at the
Indonesian Stock Exchange on

27 June 2018. These bonds were
rated at ‘A+(idn)’. Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan
IV BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap |
Tahun 2018 was supported by the
following institutions and capital market
professionals:

Underwriters
PT Danareksa Sekuritas

PT DBS Vickers Sekuritas Indonesia
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PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

Trustee

PT Bank Tabungan Negara
(Persero) Tbk

Public Accountant

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang
& Rekan

Legal Consultant

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Notary

Ir. Nanette Cahyanie Handari Adi
Warsito, S.H.

Bond Rating Agency

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

As of 6 July 2019, the Company had fully
paid all the principal balance of Obligasi
Berkelanjutan IV BFI Finance Indonesia
Tahap | Tahun 2018 Series A.

As of 31 December 2019, the outstanding
principal balance of Obligasi Berkelanjutan
IV BFl Finance Indonesia Tahap | Tahun
2018 has amounted to Rp552 billion:
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2019

Obligasi Berkelanjutan IV BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2019 Series

A and Series B at a nominal value of

Rp1 trillion, were listed at the Indonesian
Stock Exchange on 25 February 2019.
These bonds were rated at ‘A+(idn)’.
Penawaran Umum Berkelanjutan Obligasi
Berkelanjutan IV BFI Finance Indonesia
Tahap Il Tahun 2019 was supported by the
following institutions and capital market
professionals:

Underwriters
PT Danareksa Sekuritas
PT DBS Vickers Sekuritas Indonesia

PT Trimegah Sekuritas
Indonesia Tbk

Trustee

PT Bank Tabungan Negara
(Persero) Thk

Public Accountant

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang
& Rekan

management reports
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Legal Consultant

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Notary

Ir.Nanette Cahyanie Handari Adi
Warsito, S.H.

Bond Rating Agency

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

DBS Bank 24" Floor, Suite 2403
JI. Prof. Dr. Satrio Kav. 3-5
Jakarta 12940, Indonesia
Phone: (62-21) 2988 6800

Fax: (62-21) 2988 6822

As of 31 December 2019, the outstanding
principal balance of Obligasi Berkelanjutan
IV BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun
2019 has amounted to Rp trillion.

122-133
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PT Bank Tabungan Negara (Persero) Tbk
Menara BTN

JI. Gajah Mada No. 1

Jakarta 10130

Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 633 6789 ext. 1844-1847
www.btn.co.id

Fee for the assignment period 2016-2022 ranged

from 0.0025%-0.0088% of the total bonds issued.

Jusuf Indradewa & Partners

Menara BCA (Grand Indonesia) 50" Floor
JI. M.H. Thamrin No. 1

Jakarta Pusat 10310

Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 2254 4117 (Hunting)

Fax: (62-21) 2254 4367
www.jusufind.com

Fee for the assignment period 2019-2022 was
approximately 0.0138% of the total bonds issued.

Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang & Rekan

Prudential Tower 17" Floor
JI. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 79
Jakarta 12910

Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 5795 7300
Fax: (62-21) 5795 7301
www.bdo.co.id

Fee for the 2019 assignment period was
Rp742.5 million.

PT Sirca Datapro Perdana

Wisma Sirca

JI.Johar No. 18, Menteng

Jakarta 10340

Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 314 0032, 390 0645

Fax: (62-21) 314 0185, 390 0652, 390 0671

Fee for the assignment period 2019-2020 was
Rp118.8 million.

PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia

DBS Bank Tower 24" F|, Suite 2403
JI. Prof. Dr. Satrio Kav. 3-5

Jakarta 12940

Indonesia

Phone: (62-21) 2988 6300

Fax: (62-21) 2988 6822
www.fitchratings.com/site/indonesia

Fee for the 2019 assignment period was
Rp385 million.
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human ca| pital

HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

“By assigning the right people
with suitable competencies

and expertises, the Company
can ensure that each individual
delivers their best performance.”
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Human Capital (HC) integrity and
quality enable BFI Finance to create
added value to improve the well-
being of the community and quality

of the surrounding environment.

By assigning the right people with
suitable competencies and expertises,
the Company can ensure that

each individual delivers their best
performance.

The Company’s transformation has
been made possible by the proper
functioning of the HC Department and
the top management in sustainably
managing HC. The adaptability and

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3

314-336 338-443

corporate supporting annual financial

responsibility data statements

capability of HC to deal with changes relate closely with the organization’s
resilience and agility in implementing policies and manage business dynamically,
keeping it always adaptive to change.

GRAPH 7_HUMAN CAPITAL FRAMEWORK

2019:

More Meaningful

2020:

Optimization of
Technology-based
Processes in People
Development

Learning &
HC Technology
Utilization

This begins with Decign and planning of the HC organization in accordance
with the organization’s goals, effective and creative recruiting strategy, relevant
competence-based talent management, transformation-driven internalization of
culture, development of performance-based reward, implementation of qualified
HC Business Partner, all of which are supported by the application of HC

latest technologies.

These five factors serve as HC Department’s strategy in managing HC to drive
the Company into its intended transformation path. The management continues
to align its recruiting techniques to draw more attention of the current generation,
in order to identify and provide optimal talent development programs. The main
characteristic of the young generation, which is highly adaptive to technology
trends, is empowered to the maximum extent so as to introduce an agile
management style to appropriately respond to the Company’s business dynamics
and work rhythm. To this end, the management proviDec ample opportunity to

all generations to innovate and develop themselves, to propel the Company’s
competitiveness in the multifinance industry.

Company Culture

The core values of GREAT along with role-modeling by the Leaders of the

organization is continuously internalized to all employees, so that they always apply

the GREAT core values in their day-to-day activities. This culture internalization
process combines such activities with digital media. The culture internalization is
carried out in the head office and all branches through the following programs:

107
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e | eaders’ visit to branches in the

Leaders Inspire program;
e Town Hall Meeting;

e Annual Kick-Off;

e GREAT Video Competition (once

every two months);

e Creation of vlogs by the Leaders

through the BFI Captain’s
Vlog program;

e Captains Inspire, an e-flyer

containing Leaders’ quotes; and

e Short videos of daily activities,

titted BFldaily.

These culture internalization materials
are disseminated through digital media,
such as e-mail, WhatsApp group, and

28-49
management reports

50-103

company profile

in line with their business strategy,
SWA magazine collaborates with

the Management Institution of the
Faculty of Business and Economics of

Universitas Indonesia to hold the annual

HR Excellence Award. In 2019, for

the first time BFI Finance entered the
competition and won in two categories,
namely “HR Technology (AA Rating)’
and “HR Transformation (A Rating)”.

BFI Finance was also included
among the top nine Employers of
Choice by employees’ preferences.
This was based on the Employer of
Choice Survey done by Korn Ferry,
involving 2,000 employees from BFI
Finance branches and head office as
the respondents.

official social media channels managed

by BFI Finance’s HC Department
(#BFlners) on Instagram and YouTube.

Human Capital

Achievements in 2019

In addition, the Company also won,
for the third time in a row (2017-2019),
the HR Asia Award Indonesia “Best
Companies to Work for 2019” from HR
Asia magazine, as a recognition of its
excellent human capital management.
HR Asia Awards uses the employee
engagement index as a basis of

122-133

business supporting unit
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Captain’s Vlog

Hella
Greal People!

f'qn.fﬁ.h-.:r "L'I;la el i n'h'.:.-poﬂ'nl alek
bapak Toni seloba feeo Mowsger 30,
Fak Tani membahas mengenGd E‘n‘nﬂf aimed Care,

e ok yiden anlmpdugms &

Wallr Gyroal
Hili

The success of an organization is
determined by the quality of its human
capital. As a recognition of companies
that have successfully executed their
human capital strategic management

the assessment.

Captain’s Inspire

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3
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<<5,: To meet the demands arising from its growing e Collaboration with startups and coding
<ZE business, BFI Finance conducts periodic schools (Tech in Asia, Hacktiv8, Purwadhika,
= recruitment to fill strategic positions, field and Glints) to obtain talents with specific
— functions, as well as trainees. Recruitment for technology qualifications; and
E str.ateglc positions E?md trame.es |s. heldatthe head , p,oyision of scholarships to secure potential
= office, and that for field functions is performed at innovators, data scientists, and web
= the branches. developers, in an aim to drive the Company’s
o In recruiting employees, the management digital peer-to-peer lending carried out by FIT.
L adjusts its recruiting technique to capture the The Company sources for excellent and reliable
oc millennial generation and expert specialists. The

talents through collaboration with external
parties, as well as by engaging its internal staff’s
network. In 2019, the recruitment program with
¢ Demand analysis using an the highest join rate was through the network of

anticipative approach; BFI Finance employees, via the employee-get-
employee program. The Company also teams
up with universities across Indonesia through
scholarships, internships, campus recruitments,
and campus awareness programs.

effectiveness of recruitment has been improved
through technological approach, namely:

e Dissemination of job vacancies through social
media, such as Facebook, Twitter, Instagram,
Career.com, LinkedIn, and JobStreet;

e Utilization of digital platforms of BFI Jobs and
Applicant Tracking System to receive and
process job applications;

R Excerlence
Y ard le

& STAATEDY | ; 3 PILIHAN KARYAWAN

P ATIEN J f f X : 1

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3
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The provision of high-quality HC in alignment with
business growth has been the greatest challenge
for the Company in HC management. With a
total number of employees of 12,127 personnel
spread across 423 outlets in Indonesia, the
Company continues to ensure that its employees’
competencies are being developed evenly.

In 2019, the Company conducted 16 training
programs involving a total of 26,574 participants,
up by 7.65% from 2018 with 24,685 participants,
coming from all levels, employment statuses,
functions, and branches throughout Indonesia.

The HC development programs are coordinated
and facilitated by BFI Learning Institute, who
formulates training programs in accordance with
the needs and challenges of the business, in
attractive and effective delivery methods for the
participants’ augmented understanding.

BFI Learning Institute encourages all employees
to actively use the M-BEAT (Mobile BFI Edustream

company profile

104-121
human capital

122-133

& Training) platform. One of M-BEAT features is
the Video Library that proviDec more than 266
learning modules in video format. In addition, the
interactive Mobile Video Streaming feature is also
accessible by every employee to participate in the
Company’s important events. M-BEAT facilitates
the preferences of the millennial generation, as it
allows them to learn via their smartphones.

The Company maintains its conventional (offline)
training programs both internally as well as
externally. These programs, among others, are:

e Sharing Session/Leader’s Talk;

e Great Leaders Program (GLP) for career
preparation and orientation;

e Competence Enhancement Programs, in
synergy with GLP;

e External training and certifications; and

e Professional Education Assistance.

business supporting unit
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In 2019, total expenditures for training
programs amounted to Rp12.8 billion,
comprising competence and capability
development, as well as training
accommodation and other supporting
components. The decline in training
expenditures in 2019 was primarily due
to the Company’s initiative to more
optimally utilize its digital channels
through M-BEAT, which allows various

dan ﬁﬂﬂyﬂk training sessions to be conducted

online, via mobile means. BFI Learning
ﬂ fur bﬂl" u Institute also takes advantage of

technology (Zoom) to conduct video
conferences, allowing employees in
branches to perform their training
project presentation without the need
to be at the head office.

VARICGUS

OF COMTENT

TABLE 13_HC DEVELOPMENT METRICS

2018 2019 Comparison with Last Year

Training Cost Rp32.3 billion Rp12.8 billion -Rp19.5 billion
Number of Participants 24,685 26,574 1,889
Number of Training Programs 56 16 -40

TABLE 14_TRAINING AND EDUCATION PROGRAMS
Type of Training Number of Programs Number of Participants
Internal Training 7 24,855
External Training 9 1,719

Total 16 26,574
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TABLE 15_TRAINING PARTICIPANTS BY POSITION LEVEL

Position Level

Internal Training

104-121
human capital

External Training

Number of Participants

BOC & BOD - 7 7
Senior Managers 237 258 495
Junior Managers 304 139 443
Officers 8,906 383 9,289
Staff 15,408 932 16,340
Total 24,855 1,719 26,574
TABLE 16_AVERAGE TRAINING HOURS PER EMPLOYEE PER YEAR
Male Female
Average
N Average Average Training
Position Level Training Number of Training Training Number of Training Hours per
Hours  Employees Hours per Hours  Employees Hours per Employee
Employee Employee
BOC & BOD 95 1 9 9 1 9 8.7
Senior Manager 5,634 367 15 1,428 93 15 154
Junior Manager 11,665 269 43 3,339 77 43 43.4
Officer 136,458 2,342 58 53,021 910 58 58.3
Staff 167,232 6,042 28 55,439 2,003 28 27.7
Total 321,084 9,031 36 113,236 3,084 37 35.8

1.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

— GRI Index: 404-1

Employee Goal Setting:

To ensure that every employee delivers their top
performance, BFI Finance implements a number
of performance management mechanisms
persistently, with the phases of implementation
as follows:

Employees formulate their Key Performance

Indicators (KPI).

The KPI is cascaded down from the
superior to staff to ensure correlation
of performance.

The superior proviDec their inputs and
approval of their staff’s KPI.

2.

Performance Review: the superior carries

out the mid-year evaluation of their staff’s
KPI achievements

. Performance Appraisal: the superior carries

out the yearly evaluation of their staff’s KPI

achievements to determine the incentives
and profit sharing schemes for those having
outstanding performance.
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In 2019, the KPI structure in BFI Finance was revamped to accommodate the aspect of “leaders’ role in developing their team”,
and to improve the aspect of “presence of successors”. This rendered the KPI structure more balanced in terms of management,
leadership, and transformation, than the previous KPI structure.

In addition, in 2019 the Company developed the Employee Dashboard for leaders, to glean the information about the
composition of their teams, their employment status, and their real-time productivity. This innovation enables performance
monitoring, as well as quick and proper response in finding solutions to the performance issues that are encountered.

TABLE 17_EMPLOYEE PRODUCTIVITY

Comparison with Last Year

Deccription 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Number of Employees 11,171 12,127 956 8.6%
Number of Outlets 401 423 22 5.5%
Employees/Outlet 27.9 28.7 0.9 2.9%
Number of New Deals/Number of Employees 39.3 40.2 0.9 2.3%

|_

=

Ll

=

o

3 BFI Finance strives to fully realize the potential talents of its employees in well-directed manner, by

g implementing a career development mechanism that is managed together with the employees and the

Ll management (through the HC Department) and is divided into two phases: GREAT Talent Review and

= People Development.

(a'm

ﬁ In the GREAT Talent Review phase, the employee’s potential talents are mapped using the Human

ECE Asset Value (HAV) method and are projected on to their own competence, encompassing leadership,

(&) functional, and technical aspects.

For highly potential and top-performing employees (called talents), the management specifically
develops them through the Talent Development programs, which include bootcamps, flex-learning, and
regular coaching from the Board of Directors and Senior Management, via direct meetings as well as
digital media.

— GRI Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 401-1
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Lily Listyani Ongkodjojo

Corporate Manager Surabaya Branch

“Humble is a word that came into mind when | joined BFI Finance
and saw the BOD sat and enjoyed a meal together with us at the
employee canteen. March 2013 marked the beginning of my career
as Marketing at BFI Finance Surabaya Branch. Knowledge from BFl
Finance’s training sessions has been extremely valuable to us all. Up
to the moment | took the position as Corporate Business Manager for
Surabaya Branch, | see a strengthening of values within me, such as
the spirit to keep improving and growing without limits. By upholding
these values, and tempered by the dynamics of the business, | have
become a dauntless professional in facing any situation. | am grateful
to have become a part of the dynamics of PT BFI Finance Indonesia
Tbk, in responding to every change in the economy.”

TABLE 18_PARTICIPANTS OF TALENTS MANAGEMENT AND SUCCESSION PROGRAMS

. 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Comparison with Last Year
Education Level
Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage

Managerial and above 110 44 154 172 40 212 58 37.7%
Supervisor 243 51 294 844 278 1,122 828 281.6%
Total 353 95 448 1,016 318 1,334 886 197.8%

=

<C

(a'm

S

()

5 To increase productivity, strengthen employee Salary structure and performance bonuses are

L loyalty and engagement to the Company, as calculated based on the manpower regulations

(a'm well as to encourage their optimal performance, related to remuneration and minimum wage, and

E BFI Finance implements competitive standards take into consideration some basic factors (such

d in formulating the remuneration structures and as position) and others (such as their contribution

; packages that are applied equally to all employee to their own, their team’s, and the organization’s

wl levels. The remuneration policy is modified from achievements). In 2019, the Company established

g time to time in accordance with the needs and a remuneration structure whose provisions have

3 developments in the multifinance industry and the  been gradually disseminated to employees.

o labor market in the Company’s operational areas.

=

L

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 404-3
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Toni Hanafir Nanda
Operational Quality Assurance Unit Head, Head Office

“There have been many opportunities that BFI Finance has given
for my career development since joining the Company in 2010

as BOSH. Subsequently | was promoted to Regional Operation,
Branch Manager, Network Management, and until recently to QA
Unit Head. In my journey, BFI Finance has consistently provided
various choices of training, including for my soft skills. In addition to
a great career opportunity, a welcoming atmosphere, and a strong
sense of family, the Management has paid a substantial attention to
employee welfare, and this is why | intend to continue growing with
BFI Finance.”

The Company’s remuneration package for its permanent employees comprises:
1. Basic salary;

2. Employee allowances, including:
a. Housing allowance;
b. Transportation allowance;
¢. Hardship allowance;
d. Religious festivity allowance, once a year;

e. Medical allowance (hospital reimbursement);

Motorcycle Ownership Program (MOP) and Car Ownership Program (COP);

Occupational facility ownership program;

Maternal leave;

Membership in BRPJS Ketenagakerjaan (Occupational Accident Insurance, Pension, Life Insurance) schemes;

Personal insurance and life insurance; and

© N o ok w

Performance bonuses (optional).

Employee motivation highly correlates to their performance. Recognizing this, the Company actively conducts activities
to foster fellowship among the employees and to remove boundaries between different position levels through informal

interactions. In 2019 these informal activities consisted of sports events (badminton, basketball, table tennis, futsal, zumba
dance, and running), video making competition (with the corporate culture implementation as the theme), outbound, outing,

and community events (music corner, movie night, iftar).

— GRIIndex: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 401-3 PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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INDUSTRIAL RELATION

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

BFI Finance aims to foster a productive and
mutual beneficial industrial relation with all of its
employees. Therefore, BFI Finance strives to abide
by all laws and provisions related to employment
as well as encourages the Company Regulations
to be applied without exception.

The Company Regulations cover important
aspects of employment, namely working
condition, dialog, competence development,
equality of rights, and legal assistance. The
Company Regulations protect all the rights of the
employees.

In 2019, BFI Finance registered these Company
Regulations with an effective period of three years
as ratified by the Ministry of Justice and Human
Rights of the RI.

The Company strives to provide a safe,
comfortable, and conducive workplace to boost
employee productivity. In recognition of this, BFI
Finance implements an Occupational Health
and Safety (OHS) Management System under
the management of the HC Department and
the Infrastructure Development Unit under the
Operations Division.

The OHS-related clauses are incorporated into the
Company Regulations, specifically in the clauses
about Prevention and Mitigation. The Company
requires all its employees to prevent and avoid

to the best of their ability any potential event of
rioting, occupational accident, or incident in the
workplace that may result in losses having to

be borne by the Company. It also encourages
employees to mitigate any such incident should
they encounter it in the workplace.

BFI Finance employees are protected by several
insurance schemes, including the Work Accident
Insurance from BPJS Ketenagakerjaan, health

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 402-1, 403-1, 403-4
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BFI Finance does not have any Labor Unions, as it
has been generally considered by the employees
that establishing a union to express their
aspirations is not necessary.

Every complaint and grievance submitted by the
employees related to the fulfillment of their rights
and any breach of agreement stipulated in the
Company Regulations is to be addressed directly
to the management, either verbally or in writing,
and then be resolved in line with the organizational
structure of BFI Finance.

insurance, and personal accident insurance, from
partnering insurance companies.

BFI Finance ensures that the safety standards and
permits of buildings and office facilities it uses are
secured and updated at all times. Every support
system and infrastructure of the buildings (such
as elevators, generators, and waste treatment
facilities) are to be periodically checked to ensure
their proper functioning, and their licences are
updated regularly. Meanwhile, vital assets,
including customer files in the Custodian Center,
are secured in an earthquake-proof and fire-proof
storage vault located at the BFI Finance Head
Office (BFI Tower).

BFI Finance periodically conducts evacuation
drills, fire drills, and building routine maintenance.
Fire Extinguisher and First Aid Box are installed on
every floor. Emergency teams are on standby at
all times to respond to emergency situations and
to prepare employees to remain alert and take
proper actions during emergency situations.



Field staff, who conduct, among others, sales, collection, and operational activities, often spend most of their work hours
on the road. To protect them from possible traffic accidents, BFI Finance continues to ensure that they comply with traffic
regulations, and equipped them with sufficient protective equipment while driving.

TABLE 19_0CCUPATIONAL ACCIDENTS

Occupational Accident Rate Field Staff Non-Field Staff Total
Major Accidents 1 2 3
Minor Accidents 15 9 24
Total Number of Accidents 16 1 27

BFI Finance encourages all employees to take care of their health and their surrounding environment and learn the possible

illnesses that arise from work and daily routines. In 2019, the Company conducted health campaigns that included

medical examinations, sharing on epidemic diseases, environmental conditions that compromise health, and promotion of

healthy lifestyles.

In 2019, HC Department created a breakthrough in providing information access for internal employees,
called BELLA (BFI Employee Personal Assistant). BELLA is a virtual assistant Decigned specifically for
BFI Finance employees that is accessible via LINE. BELLA proviDec latest news, and is the fastest and
most dependable resource for HC-related inquiries from employees.

To apply effective learning methods for the employees, especially the millennial generation, learning
methods involve the digital mobile application M-BEAT. All employees can access and join it via their
smartphone wherever they are and at any time. The Company also proviDec HC Dashboard where
employee-related information can be obtained through a mobile application in real time. The Company
continues to improve its Human Capital Information System (HCIS) to enhance accessibility and
streamlining of employee information and related transactions.

The entire HC management in BFI Finance is underpinned by the HCIS as an integrated information
system. HCIS features are improved, enhanced, and updated every year. The goal is to automate an
optimal and effective HC management for the Company.

HUMAN CAPITAL TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT

Employees can utilize the employee self-service convenience provided by HCIS’s features, among
others the facility to apply for leave, overtime, medical reimbursement, profile update, and business
trip permit.

Leaders and senior management can monitor the productivity of every team and individual in real time,
via the Human Capital Dashboard, enabling them to take strategic decisions and prepare the business
plans in a more accurate and expedited manner.

— GRI Index: 403-2, 403-3
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N In 2019 BFI Finance recruited a number
(&) of employees to fill new positions
g arising from business expansion and
L also to fill vacant positions created by
é former employees leaving the Company
o for various reasons. BFI Finance’s BFI
= total employee headcount by the end E.F.T'EDLG}"EE
of 2019 increased by 956 personnel
. . personaL
or 8.6% from the figure as at the end =
of 2018. Assistant
Mo re than 90% of new employees
recruited in 2019 came from the
millennial generation. Such a condition
is reflected by the demographic profile
of BFI Finance employees that are
predominantly young and agile, and are
responsive to the latest trends in digital
technology developments.
TABLE 20_TOTAL EMPLOYEES
L Comparison with Last Year
Description 31 December 2018 31 December 2019
Total Percentage
Total Employees 11,171 12,127 956 8.6%
TABLE 21_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY DIRECTORATE
L 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Comparison with Last Year
Description
Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage
BOC 7 2 9 7 2 9 0 0%
BOD 5 - 5 5 = 5 0 0%
CEO Directorate 146 57 203 224 124 348 145 71.4%
(President Director)
Business Directorate 4,319 805 5124 4,271 872 5143 19 0.4%
Operations & HC 731 1,477 2,208 1,087 1,580 2,667 459 20.8%
Directorate
Enterprise Risk Directorate 2,917 448 3,365 3,204 484 3,688 323 9.6%
Finance Directorate 204 53 257 218 49 267 10 3.9%

Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%




TABLE 22_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY EMPLOYMENT STATUS

31 December 2018

31 December 2019

Comparison with Last Year

Employment Status

Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage
Permanent 4,797 1,849 6,646 4,933 1,918 6,851 205 3.1%
Non-Permanent 3,632 993 4,525 4,083 1,193 5,276 751 16.6%
Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%

TABLE 23_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

Employment

31 December 2018

31 December 2019

Comparison with Last Year

119

Contract Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage
Full Time 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%
Part Time - - - - - - - -
Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%
TABLE 24_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY REGION

Region 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Comparison with Last Year

Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage
Head Office 499 398 897 610 480 1,090 193 21.5%
Greater Jakarta 830 232 1,062 892 269 1,161 99 9.3%
Java & Bali 3,417 1,043 4,460 3,717 1,145 4,862 402 9.0%
Sumatra 1,400 476 1,876 1,455 486 1,941 65 3.5%
Kalimantan 790 243 1,083 883 270 1,153 120 11.6%
Eastern Indonesia 1,393 450 1,843 1,459 461 1,920 77 4.2%
Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%

TABLE 25_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY EDUCATIONAL LEVEL
31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Comparison with Last Year
Educational Level
Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage

Master’s & Doctoral degrees 36 16 52 37 18 55 3 5.8%
Bachelor’s degree 4,775 2,029 6,804 5,350 2,274 7,624 820 12.1%
Diplomas 2,831 727 3,558 889 413 1,302 (2,256) -63.4%
High School and below 687 70 757 2,740 406 3,146 2,389 315.6%
Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%

— GRI'Index: 102-8
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TABLE 26_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY POSITION LEVEL
. 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Comparison with Last Year
Position Level
Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage
BOC & BOD 12 2 14 12 2 14 0 0%
Senior Manager 142 37 179 162 44 206 27 15.1%
Junior Manager 447 102 549 494 134 628 79 14.4%
Officer 2,099 822 2,921 2,368 922 3,290 369 12.6%
Staff 5,629 1,879 7,608 5,980 2,009 7,989 481 6.4%
Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%
TABLE 27_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Comparison with Last Year
Age Group
Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage
< 25 years 2,077 1,217 3,294 1,559 1,011 2,570 (724) -22.0%
25-30 years 3,965 1177 5142 4,401 1,447 5,848 706 13.7%
31-40 years 2,041 391 2,432 2,730 584 3,314 882 36.3%
41-50 years 222 49 271 290 52 342 71 26.2%
> 50 years 24 8 32 36 17 53 21 65.6%
Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.56%
TABLE 28_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY TENURE
T 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Comparison with Last Year
enure
Male Female Total Male Female Total Total Percentage
< 3 years 5,508 1,708 7,216 6,097 1,951 8,048 832 11.5%
3-5 years 1,450 536 1,986 1,347 488 1,835 (151) -7.6%
6-10 years 1,020 437 1,457 1,173 490 1,663 206 14.1%
> 11 years 351 161 512 399 182 581 69 13.5%
Total 8,329 2,842 11,171 9,016 3,111 12,127 956 8.6%
GRAPH 8_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES GRAPH 9_NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
BY DIRECTORATE BY EMPLOYMENT STATUS
2.2% | *2.9% 9
30.4% 42.4% 56.5%
® BOC &BOD
® CEO Directorate
(President Director) ® Permanent
Business Directorate Non-Permanent
Operations & HC Directorate
® Enterprise Risk Directorate
® Finance Directorate
22.0% 43.5%

— GRI'Index: 102-8
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

“Information Technology (IT) plays
a crucial role in BFI Finance’s
organizational strategy, primarily
as catalyst and enabler of
change management within

the Company.”
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Information Technology (IT) plays

a crucial role in BFI Finance’s
organizational strategy, primarily

as catalyst and enabler of change
management within the Company.
Extensive and tactical use of IT
applications—along with the associated
solutions, infrastructure, mechanisms,
and governance—is accelerating

BFI Finance’s evolution towards a
more agile and resilient leader in the
multifinance industry.

IT Strategic Blueprint

IT Department’s strategic blueprint to
facilitate BFI Finance’s transformation
encompasses three interacting areas:
People, Process, and Technology.

In People area, IT continuously improves
its competitiveness by recruiting new
talents with specific skillsets, such as
Data Analytics, Data Governance, Agile
Coach, Technology Innovation, Solutions
Architect, Network & Infrastructure
Specialist, DevOps, etc. This is also
supported by hosting sharing session
about agile methodology by holding a
regular event called BFI Agile Thought
Community (BATC, pronounced ‘batik’)
as BFI Finance’s contribution to the

[T community.

corporate supporting
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In the Process area, IT Department
implements Scrum framework involving
various sections to make their work
processes more agile, starting within

[T Department and aiming towards the
Company agility. IT Department has built
cross-functional software development
squad working collaboratively toward
specific business priorities. IT vendor
management, IT BCP (Business
Continuity Plan), and IT compliance
processes were also optimized as

part of [T governance improvement.
The work process is also improved by
introducing Continuous Integration —
Continuous Development (CI/CD) in

the Company’s software development
lifecycle, by enabling automation tools
for software building, versioning, testing,
and deployment.

In terms of Technology, IT Department

is currently in the stage of rendering

the Company’s existing systems and
architecture to be less monolithic

and more flexible that emphasizes
microservices architecture, building
communication backbone infrastructure,
Robotics Process Automation (RPA), and
Data Analytics ecosystem capability.
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The changes and updates which the Company implemented in

its IT in 2019 were remarkably significant, with total expenditures

amounting to around Rp60 billion, to improve and enhance IT
systems and infrastructure.

In terms of Data, the Company started the development of
Data Management, which involves aspects of data governance,
data analytics modelling, data analytics infrastructure, as well
as building a data-oriented culture, developing organizational
structure, implementing data quality and data governance
SOPs, and creating an Enterprise Data Governance

Operating Model.

Key Achievements in 2019
In 2019, IT Department’s key achievements are as follows:

e Started assessment and gathered functionality of new
Loan Origination System to support more versatile
business process;

e Selected a solution for credit scoring platform powered
by decision engine, to be easily customized by risk
management functions;

e Started the software development lifecycle process
modernization by having squads working towards specific
business priorities, with 10 squads built within 6 months;

e Built and deployed an application communication
backbone (i.e., API gateway and message broker)
infrastructure to support microservices architecture and
Open AP initiative, to enable the Company to expose its
digital services to external partners;

e Started the legacy modernization towards microservices
architecture, and use of the same framework for
new services;

e Held the first BFI Agile Thought Community (BATC)
in December;

50-10
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e Mini Hackathon held at AMIKOM Yogyakarta, and as
a guest speaker in several institutions, such as Unika
Soegijapranata Semarang and ITHB Bandung;

¢ FEstablished data governance organization that has data
modelling capability and ensuring data quality across
the organization by completing 30 use cases and
analytics models;

e Strengthened our Data Center and Disaster Recovery
Center by implementing multi-tier firewall system and
security operation center, expanding IT infrastructure,
e.g., servers, backup & restore, storage capacity,
and conducting penetration testing of several critical
applications; and

e Collaborated with Human Capital (HC) Department to
make further developments in the systems used for
managing people. These include M-BEAT, LMS, and
BELLA ChatBot features.
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2020 Work Plans

As BFI Finance is transforming to become an agile,
data-driven, and predictive enterprise, support from IT
Department will take shape in the following key actions
in 2020:

e Continue execution of new Loan Origination System
supported by more advanced data analytics and credit
scoring capabilities;

e Improve flexibility of data utilization with prudent data
security applied to produce more accurate Data Analytics
models which will apply in all aspects of business
processes from customer acquisition until collection
and recovery;

e Continue legacy modernization for incentive, insurance,
and collection modules;

e Devise Agile development program for Squads, Scrum
Master, and Product Owner as part of our journey
towards company agility;

¢ Implement Agile toolchain for Squads, project
management, and IT support;

Continue regular BATC event as our commitment to
enhance Agile knowledge and practices;

Expand the utilization of Open API for more partners and
use cases;

Deploy CI/CD pipeline for all modernized modules;

Implement a Document Management System to support
Operations and new Loan Origination System;

Develop Analytics Technology (Data Analytics
Ecosystem: Data Hub, Data Ingestion, Data Quality,
Master Data Management, Data Virtualization tools);

Build Data Governance awareness (data quality and
data security for data consumer inline with Information
Security Management standards) involving all
components of the Company in terms of Culture and
People; and

Further improve our Data Center via data replication
modernization, network and end-point security
reinforcement, and monitoring system enrichment.
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NETWORK AND OPERATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

“The opening of new
outlets, mainly in the second
half of 2019, was part of

the Company’s strategy

of business network
Intensification.”



BFI Finance’s business network
expansion in 2019 involved opening a
total of 26 new outlets in various areas
across Indonesia deemed potential
for propelling growth. Factors such
as economic scale, competition level,
population density, and presence of
universities in targeted areas were
the basis of the Company’s business
expansion. Of these new outlets, 22
were new kiosks and 4 were new
branches, expanding BFI Finance’s
operational points from 228 branches
and 173 kiosks by end of 2018 to

232 branches and 198 kiosks by end
of 2019.

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3

The opening of new outlets, mainly in
the second half of 2019, was part of
the Company’s strategy of business
network intensification. In the first half
of 2019, BFI Finance focused more on
improving asset quality and shifting its
primary business model, from dealer
financing to non-dealer financing. Such
concerted initiatives resulted in the
Company’s satisfactorily low NPL at
0.85%, far lower than industry average
of 2.40% in 2019.

As a strategic measure to boost
effectiveness, efficiency, and
productivity, BFI Finance developed
its infrastructure through utilization
and optimization of its integrated

and updated information technology
systems involved across its entire
business processes. It also took into
account the latest developments in the
multifinance industry’s landscape and
its potentials. This has been carried
out in order to capably respond to
customers’ needs, which vary and
change rapidly.

The Company’s human capital
competence improvement has
enabled the Company’s infrastructure
development to take place without any
significant hindrance. Transformation
within BFI Finance’s workforce guided
them to thrive hand in hand with the all-
encompassing digital transformation.
This helped the Company to
standardize and streamline various
procedures, especially in smaller

branches, leading to effectiveness and
efficiency improvement.

In 2017, BFI Finance initiated three
pillars of network and operations—
consisting of centralization of
business process, outlet function
automation, and cashless transactional
ecosystem—and continued to uphold
them in 2019. The Company started
facilitating its customers with digital
payment technology by collaborating
with a number of multi-service
platforms, such as Gojek through its
GoBills feature, and Tokopedia.

In 2019, a new digital archive system
was being developed internally to be
further expanded into a full-fledged
Document Management System (DMS)
in the near future. This system aims

to improve productivity and efficiency
as part of the digital transformation
initiative in its exploratory stage, and will
be fully implemented in 2020.

BFI Finance’s Business Continuity Plan
(BCP) was put to the test in the 2018

in the overseeing and execution of the
rehabilitation and relocation of assets
damaged due to natural disasters that
occurred in that year. The disaster relief
plan had been updated since, and in
2019 it was evaluated for immediate
deployment to mitigate adverse events
in the future.
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CUSTOMER SERVICE

The Company’s customer service SUStaiﬂiﬂg Service InS|ght
initiatives adhere to Law No. 8/1999

on Customer Protection, POJK The Service Insight core value is inculcated in all

No. 1/POJK.07/2013 on Customer employees, especially those in direct contact with
Protection in Financial Services customers. Aligned with one of the Company’s
Sector, and other relevant regulations. Core Values, i.e., Excellent Service, Service Insight
The efforts and strategic measures calls for the best service to satisfy both internal and
to provide customers with the best external customers, and is applied in the five service
level of service are summarized in the dimensions:

Company’s Service Quality Strategy o

Tangibles: Physical facilities appearance,

framework. The framework aims to equipment, employees, and

comprehensively improve the quality

of the Company’s services and

thus to sustain its business amidst

more formidable competition in the

multifinance industry. e Responsiveness: Sincerity in helping customers and providing
fast service;

communication materials;

¢ Reliability: Ability to deliver the promised services reliably
and accurately;

BFI Finance’s Service Quality Strategy

, , e Assurance: Knowledge and courteousness of employees that
framework comprises four main steps:

make them trustworthy;

1. Sustaining Service Insight; . .
e Empathy: Special attention and care to customers.

2. Customer Relationship
& Engagement;

3. Converting Customer Service into Customer Re|a’[ionship & Engagemen’[

Sales; and
Updated competencies and understanding of service quality

and customer needs identification are instilled in all employees,
frontliners, and marketing staff, to provide a more comprehensive
and each of which, along with and excellent service to all customers, as well as to maintain the
the initiatives taken in 2019, in the customers’ strong loyalty to the Company.

next section.

4. Complaint Handling &
Service Recovery

To help boost customer service quality, a number of training
programs were held, as detailed below:

e Service awareness trainings, related to the five service
dimensions, i.e., Responsiveness, Assurance, Tangible,
Empathy, and Reliability, which in their implementation for
establishing the employee service standard are grounded upon
the core values of excellent service, namely positive attitude,
responsiveness, and professionalism. These trainings took the
form of Service Star and Service Insight programs.

— GRI Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3
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In 2019, to manifest its service to
the general public, the Company
participated in the consumer
appreciation event that coincided
with the National Customer Day.
This activity focused on improving
service awareness, introducing the
Company’s products and corporate
branding to the general public,
and showing passion to improve
future services.

To ensure excellent service, the
inculcation of a Service Mindset
was performed. Area Service
Quality Specialist (ASQS) in each
area throughout Indonesia played

a substantial role at the forefront of
service strategy, therefore adequate
skills and creativity are needed in
order to perform service excellence.
To that end, regular trainings

were performed on a yearly basis
to improve the skill and service
mindset, and also to cultivate the
potentials and creativity of the
ASQS in performing and ensuring a
standard level of service at all of the
Company’s branch offices.

300-313
corporate socia
responsibility

314-336
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Special treatment as a form of
appreciation to loyal customers
was delivered through the
following programs:

“Maju Berkat Pembiayaan” on the
APPI Level, involving two candidates
from Cawang (East Jakarta) and
Banjarmasin branches.

corporate supporting
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On special moments such as

BFI Finance Anniversary, Eid al-
Fitr, National Customer Day, and
customer birthday, BFI Finance
delivered a special treatment by
paying them a visit or giving them
a surprise, or an invitation to dinner
at a gathering event. In addition,

as a form of appreciation to priority

Pitriya
Motorcycle Financing
Customer, Jambi

“I heard about BFI Finance from
my relative and now | have been

a customer since 2012. | am very
happy with BFI Finance’s service
because of their quick and simple
procedures of service and also
their staff’s meticulous attention in
serving customers. The staff are
also knowledgeable and capable
in providing information required by
the customers, and this makes the
financing process even smoother.”
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customers, the Company awarded
special cards to priority customers
which give the cardholders a
privilege to receive additional
benefits.

e To appreciate customers on the
2019 National Customer Day, the
entire branch management up to the
Board of Directors of the Company
directly served customers at BFI
Finance’s branches. This activity
has become an annual program of
greeting customers and listening
to their needs, in order to improve
service excellence.

BFI Finance expanded its
communication channels in 2019. In
addition to telephone, customers are
encouraged to engage the Company
through social media platforms, namely
Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter.

management reports
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Converting Customer
Service into Sales

Sales Promotion Advisor (SEPIA)

was developed as a program to

boost booking value at the branches,
especially via Customer Service
booking. SEPIA’s existence practically
separates the roles and functions

of frontliners at the branches into
regular Customer Service who

serves walk-in customers requiring
operational assistance and SEPIA
Customer Service specifically geared
to handle walk-in customers requiring
information about financing. This role
and function separation is intended

to make both parties focus on their
respective job description and achieve
the predetermined targets. New SEPIA
units were added in 2019, making

a total of 20 SEPIA units in large
branches by the end of the year.

In 2019, BFI Finance’s customers
are given easier and quicker access
to download the digital copy

of their contracts. This is in line

104-121

human capital
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with the Company’s measures in
streamlining procedures and improving
effectiveness and productivity. Going
forward, BFI Finance plans to develop
a one-touch point for a much simpler
access to credit application for its
potential customers.

Complaint Handling &
Service Recovery

In cooperation with the relevant units,
the Customer Care Unit immediately
follows up all complaints received by
BFI Finance to ensure a fast, accurate,
thorough, and satisfying response.

In this case, apt communication and
integration between the Customer
Care Unit and related branch

offices is essential in day-to-day
business activity.

business supporting unit
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In 2019, BFI Finance received 15,130
feedbacks in the form of complaints
and suggestions, which specifically
required further information on the
characteristics of BFI Finance’s
products. There were no complaints
from customers related to cases of
violation of customer privacy rights and
customer data.

In line with the Company’s internal
policies and the prevailing regulations in
Indonesia, BFI Finance has determined
a Service Level Agreement (SLA)

in the form of a response period

for every complaint it receives. BFI
Finance’s SLA achievement in 2019
was demonstrated by the full resolution
of every complaint received within

20 days.

In 2019, service strategy was focused
on the customer through the Listen to
Our Customer methodology. The aim
was to make the Company understand
its customers’ needs and expectations
more closely, so as to continue
improving its customer service quality
and create a positive experience for
each customer.

__ GRIlIndex: 417-2, 417-3

314-336
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In addition, customers can directly
give a feedback of their satisfaction
with the service as they come to the
branch office, simply by filling out the
SRS (Smart Rating System) form on
the tablet smartphone available at
the branches.

Customer Satisfaction
Measurement

Success of the Company’s customer
service initiatives is periodically
measured using a Customer
Satisfaction Index (CSl). In 2019, BFI
Finance received input from 158,772
new customers who have completed
the survey as respondents in the
customer satisfaction measurement,

corporate supporting
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resulting in a CSI score of 4.48. This
number was equal to the CSI score of
the previous year’s.

Internal Customer Care

Aiming to improve service quality

for its internal customers, namely,
fellow employees, BFI Finance has
established an Internal Customer
Care program to gather complaints
from internal customers. Complaints
may include assessments by branch
employees of their head office
colleagues’ performance, and vice
versa. This program provides a
picture of the satisfaction level of
each work unit within the Company’s
organizational structure, and the result
is then taken into consideration in
devising improvement measures.

Maman Muhammad Yamin
Car Financing Customer,
Cilegon, Banten

“I heard about BFI Finance through
their telemarketing, and have been

their customer since 2019. | am
very satisfied with BFI Finance’s
services as their service procedures
are quick and simple. The staff are
very responsive to the customers’
needs, and so as a customer | feel
very cared for. BFI Finance will
remain my choice for my future
financing needs.”
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“In spite of this weaker growth, we
saw better asset quality across
the board with a decline in NPF of
the industry, improved from 2.71%
iNn 2018 to 2.40% in 2019.”
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Global Macroeconomic
Situation

The global jitters arising from the trade
war between the world’s two largest
economies, the United States (US)

and China, simmered through most of
2019. The trade tension played on, only
showing signs of abatement nearing
the year’s close, with the prospect

of the two countries reaching a truce
through the phase one trade deal.
Precarious geopolitical situations,

most notably in Hong Kong and the
Middle East, exacerbated a sentiment
of uncertainty that was already
widespread, as most parts of the world
were grappling with soaring debt levels.

314-336
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In major economies, activity slowed
more considerably than previously
expected. Anemic manufacturing
activity hindered advanced
economies’ growth trajectory, while
policy uncertainties, which involved
unpredictable tariffs, had not only
weighed on trading activities between
the US and China, but also rippled
through the world. While China’s
growth rate reached 6.00%, lowest in
three decades, many export-oriented
countries had to deal with lower
prices for their commodities. Such
developments hampered the health
of global economy, whose growth
weakened to an estimated 2.4% in
2019 according to the World Bank.

The US Federal Reserve (The Fed)

cut interest rates three times in 2019,
leaving it at 1.5-1.75% by end of

year, to spur the American economy.
Bank Indonesia (BI) followed suit as it
slashed its 7-Day (Reverse) Repo Rate
(7DRR) four times in the second half of
2019 and kept it at 5%, as it sought to
encourage domestic economic growth
amid slowing global trend.

Indonesia’s 2019
Economic Review

Lower coal prices and weaker
purchasing power had impeded
investors’ confidence in entering the
domestic market in the runup to the
2019 General Elections. However, once

corporate supporting
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the election results had taken shape,
and the political divide seemingly
bridged by President Joko Widodo’s
cabinet selections, confidence returned
to the market.

Throughout 2019, Rupiah gained
momentum against US Dollar by
reaching an average of Rp14,000/USD,
2.3% lower than the government’s
target in the State Revenue and
Expenditure Budget of Rp14,400/USD.
This occurred in part due to stable
inflation and a drastic reduction in the
trade balance deficit in 2019 compared
to 2018.

Indonesia’s GDP growth is estimated
to reach 5.02% in 2019 amid the
global tensions and the country’s
political volatility, but bolstered by
government spending in infrastructure
and deregulation initiatives to enhance
ease of doing business in the country.
Annual inflation rate was 2.72%, lowest
since 1999 and far below the forecast
of 3.11%.

The growth in Indonesian automobile
industry for cars slowed down in 2019
compared to the previous year. Total
sales in 2019 was 1,030,126 units,
compared with 1,151,291 in 2018.
Motorcycle sales, on the other hand,
showed some light for the industry,
gaining about 1.6% growth with sales
of 6,487,460 units for the whole year.
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Multifinance Industry Developments
in 2019

Total value of bank lending in Indonesia increased by 6.1%

in 2019 over the same period in 2018, below the previous
year’s two-digit growth of 12%. Such decline was due to

the cautious approach among most lenders in response to
tightening liquidity and caution on political tension prior to the
general election and overall global market slowdown.

The multifinance industry receivables grew by 3.7% in 2019,
with total financing receivables reaching Rp452.2 trillion.

This growth slowdown, versus 5.2% recorded in 2018, was
in line with an overall weak economic and financial growth
for the country, coupled with some threat from new digital
players. In spite of this weaker growth, we saw better asset
quality across the board with a decline in NPF of the industry,
improved from 2.71% in 2018 to 2.40% in 2019.

Of such growth, total conventional financing took as much
as Rp436,294 billion of the total in 2019, increasing by 4.7%
from Rp416,794 billion in 2018. This consists of multipurpose
financing, which grew from Rp256,417 billion in 2018 to
Rp274,836 billion in 2019; investment financing amounting to
Rp134,825 billion in 2019 from Rp136,208 billion in 2018; and

The Company’s business activities cover the
financing of cars, motorcycles, heavy equipment,
machinery and other equipment, as well as asset-
backed financing secured by cars, motorcycles,
and property.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company conducts its business in
accordance with POJK No. 29/POJK.05/2014 as
amended by POJK No. 35/POJK.05/2018 on the
Business Operations of Financing Companies.

working capital and others from Rp24,037 billion in 2018 to
Rp26,474 billion in 2019. The value of sharia-based financing,
on the other hand, declined to Rp15,922 billion in 2019 from
Rp19,472 billion in 2018.

GRAPH 15_MULTIFINANCE INDUSTRY RECEIVABLES (RP BILLION)

2017 2018 2019

As per such regulations, the scope of a finance
company may comprise investment financing,
working capital financing, multipurpose financing,
and other financing activities under OJK’s
approval. In addition to these four areas, a finance
company may perform operating lease and/or
fee-based activities as long as it is not in conflict
with the prevailing regulations in the financial
services sector.
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TABLE 29_NEW FINANCING BY TYPES OF ASSETS

Comparison With Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Used Cars Financing 11,226 10,641 (585) -5.2%
New Cars Financing 301 161 (140) -46.5%
Cars Financing 11,527 10,802 (725) -6.3%
Used Motorcycles Financing 2,388 2,820 432 18.1%
Heavy Equipment Financing 2,309 1,998 (311) -13.5%
Property Financing 145 219 74 51.0%
Sharia Financing 3 57 54 1,800.0%
Total 16,372 15,896 (476) -2.9%
Percentage of Total:
Used Cars Financing 68.6% 66.9% n/a -1.7%
New Cars Financing 1.8% 1.0% n/a -0.8%
Cars Financing 70.4% 67.9% n/a -2.5%
Used Motorcycles Financing 14.6% 17.7% n/a 3.1%
Heavy Equipment Financing 141% 12.6% n/a -1.5%
Property Financing 0.9% 1.4% n/a 0.5%
Sharia Financing 0.0% 0.4% n/a 0.4%
Total 100.0% 100.0%
Description (unit)
Used Cars Financing 121,040 117,607 (3,533) -2.9%
New Cars Financing 1,491 838 (653) -43.8%
Cars Financing 122,531 118,345 (4,186) -3.4%
Used Motorcycles Financing 331,426 381,258 49,832 156.0%
Heavy Equipment Financing 3,515 3,344 (171) -4.9%
Property Financing 455 682 227 49.9%
Sharia Financing 176 2,724 2,548 1,447.7%
Total 458,103 506,353 48,250 10.5%

New Financing

BFI Finance recorded Total New Financing of Rp15,896 billion in 2019, declining by 2.9% from Rp16,372 billion of
Total New Financing in 2018.

In 2019, 67.9% of Total New Financing was derived from Cars Financing, amounting to Rp10,802 billion, in which Used Cars
Financing made up the majority of Cars portfolio, as the amount reached Rp10,641 billion or 98.5% of the total. Used Motorcycles
contributed 17.7%, Heavy Equipment contributed 12.6%, Property contributed 1.4%, and Sharia contributed 0.4% to the total.
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TABLE 30_NEW FINANCING OF CARS (NEW AND USED) BY SOURCE OF ORIGINATION

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Non-Dealer Financing 8,730 9,998 1,268 14.5%
Dealer Financing

Used Cars Financing 2,496 643 (1,853) -74.2%

New Cars Financing 301 161 (140) -46.5%
Total 11,527 10,802 (725) -6.3%
Description (unit)
Non-Dealer Financing 97,485 111,394 13,909 14.3%
Dealer Financing

Used Cars Financing 23,555 6,113 (17,442) -74.0%

New Cars Financing 1,491 838 (653) -43.8%
Total 122,531 118,345 (4,186) -3.4%

TABLE 31_NEW FINANCING OF CARS (NEW AND USED) BY CAR CATEGORY AND TYPE

Comparison With Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Passenger Car 8,900 8,349 (651) -6.2%
Commercial Car 2,627 2,453 (174) -6.6%
Total 11,527 10,802 (725) -6.3%
Percentage of Total:

Passenger Car 77.2% 77.3% n/a 0.1%
Commercial Car 22.8% 22.7% n/a -0.1%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Minibus/MPV 5,982 5,619 (363) -6.1%
Jeep 2,132 2,056 (76) -3.6%
Truck 1,406 1,298 (108) T77%
Pick-up 1,128 1,068 (60) -5.3%
Sedan 785 675 (110) -14.0%
Bus 94 86 ®) -8.5%
Total 11,527 10,802 (725) -6.3%
Percentage of Total:

Minibus/MPV 51.9% 52.0% n/a 0.1%
Jeep 18.5% 19.0% n/a 0.5%
Truck 12.2% 12.0% n/a -0.2%
Pick-up 9.8% 9.9% n/a 0.1%
Sedan 6.8% 6.3% n/a -0.5%
Bus 0.8% 0.8% n/a 0.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%
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TABLE 32_NEW FINANCING OF CARS (NEW AND USED) BY BRAND

141

Comparison With Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Toyota 4,249 4,017 (232 -5.5%
Mitsubishi 1,717 1,576 (141) -8.2%
Honda 1,526 1,453 (73) -4.8%
Daihatsu 1,486 1,389 97) -6.5%
Suzuki 1,066 962 (104) -9.8%
Isuzu 159 160 1 0.6%
Other Japanese Brand 990 918 (72) -7.3%
Non-Japanese Brand 334 327 (7) -2.1%
Total 11,527 10,802 (725) -6.3%
Percentage of Total:
Toyota 36.9% 37.2% n/a 0.3%
Mitsubishi 14.9% 14.6% n/a -0.3%
Honda 13.2% 13.4% n/a 0.2%
Daihatsu 12.9% 12.9% n/a 0.0%
Suzuki 9.2% 8.9% n/a -0.3%
Isuzu 1.4% 1.5% n/a 0.1%
Other Japanese Brand 8.6% 8.5% n/a -0.1%
Non-Japanese Brand 2.9% 3.0% n/a 0.1%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Cars Financing

Car sales in Indonesia in 2019 declined by 11.8%, from
1,151,291 units in 2018 to 1,030,126 units. These sales
consisted of 244,587 units of commercial vehicle and
785,539 units of passenger car. Commercial car sales
declined 13.1% from 276,631 units while passenger car sales
decreased by 11.3% from 874,677 units in 2018.

BFI Finance’s Cars Portfolio consists of New and Used Cars
with different financing purposes, i.e., for the purchase of
New and Used Cars, as well as Financing backed by Used
Cars as collateral.

Total Car Financing disbursed by the Company in 2019 was

Rp10,802 billion, contributing 67.9% to Total New Financing.

There was a decline in Cars Financing by 6.3% in 2019, from
Rp11,527 billion recorded in 2018. This was in line with the

weakness in national car sales, as well as overall economic
and political condition throughout the year. It was also the
Company’s intention to take a cautionary stance toward
growth, and focus on asset quality instead.

BFI Finance’s Total New Financing of Cars in 2019 consisted
of 118,345 units of both used and new cars, down by 3.4%
from the number in 2018. In terms of source of origination, a
majority or 92.6% of Total Cars Financing was derived from
Non-Dealer Financing, with a total of 111,394 units financed
in 2019. Its corresponding financing value grew by 14.5%

in 2019, from Rp8,730 billion in 2018 to Rp9,998 billion,
while that of Dealer Financing went down by 74.2% and
46.5% from their 2018 figures for Used Cars and New Cars,
respectively. Total Dealer Financing’s portion out of the total
accordingly went down from Rp2,797 billion or 24.3% in 2018
to Rp804 billion or 7.4% of the total in 2019.
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Minibus/MPV made up 52.0%, or Rp5,619 billion, the largest portion of Cars Financing based on Type. Second in rank were

Jeeps, making up 19.0% of Total Cars Financing, and followed by Trucks, at 12.0%.

Cars Financing in 2019 remained dominated by Japanese brands, which made up 97.0% of total, with Toyota brand
contributing 37.2% to New Total Cars Financing in 2019.

TABLE 33_NEW FINANCING OF USED MOTORCYCLES BY BRAND

Comparison With Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Honda 1,292 1,634 342 26.5%
Yamaha 924 1,012 88 9.5%
Suzuki 114 109 ) -4.4%
Others 58 65 7 121%
Total 2,388 2,820 432 18.1%
Percentage of Total:

Honda 541% 57.9% n/a 3.8%
Yamaha 38.7% 35.9% n/a -2.8%
Suzuki 4.8% 3.9% n/a -0.9%
Others 2.4% 2.3% n/a -01%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Motorcycles Financing

In 2019, Total New Financing of Used
Motorcycles amounted to Rp2,820
billion, up 18.1% from the previous
year’s tally of Rp2,388 billion, owing
to a greater penetration in the relevant
segments through the Company’s
targeted marketing initiatives
throughout the year.

Of the Total New Financing of Used
Motorcycles, 93.8% was contributed
by Honda and Yamaha, the two

most popular motorcycle brands in
Indonesia. Honda strengthened its
lead with 57.9% (up 3.8% from 2018),
followed by Yamaha with 35.9% (down
2.8% from 2018).

BFI Finance’s motorcycles business
focused on Financing backed by

Used Motorcycles as collateral. Used
Motorcycles Financing has been driven
by the multipurpose needs among

the middle-to-low-income class.

The Company does not finance the
purchase of motorcycles, and therefore
this business does not directly correlate
with new motorcycle sales.
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TABLE 34_NEW FINANCING OF HEAVY EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT BY INDUSTRY

Comparison With Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Construction 590 591 1 0.2%
Mining 634 499 (135) -21.3%
Industrial and Manufacturing 255 305 50 19.6%
Services 311 273 (38) -12.2%
Plantation 163 104 (49) -32.0%
Forestry 156 75 (81) -51.9%
Trade and Distribution 100 63 (37) -37.0%
Others 110 88 (22) -20.0%
Total 2,309 1,998 (311) -13.5%
Percentage of Total:

Construction 25.6% 29.6% n/a 4.0%
Mining 27.4% 25.0% n/a -2.4%
Industrial and Manufacturing 11.0% 15.3% n/a 4.3%
Services 13.5% 13.7% n/a 0.2%
Plantation 6.6% 5.2% n/a -1.4%
Forestry 6.8% 3.7% n/a -3.1%
Trade and Distribution 4.3% 3.1% n/a -1.2%
Others 4.8% 4.4% n/a -0.4%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

TABLE 35_NEW FINANCING OF HEAVY EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT BY EQUIPMENT TYPE

Comparison With Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Excavator 1,120 869 (251) -22.4%
Truck 302 272 (30) -9.9%
Bulldozer 90 79 (11) -12.2%
Wheel Loader 45 44 ) -2.2%
Forklift 48 36 12) -25.0%
Other Heavy Equipment 156 138 (18) -11.5%
Total Heavy Equipment 1,761 1,438 (323) -18.3%
Machinery 524 530 6 1.1%
Others 24 30 6 25.0%
Total 2,309 1,998 (311) -13.5%
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TABLE 35_NEW FINANCING OF HEAVY EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT BY EQUIPMENT TYPE

Description (Rp billion)

Comparison With Last Year

2018 2019

Total Percentage

Percentage of Total:

Excavator 48.5% 43.5% n/a -5.0%
Truck 13.1% 13.6% n/a 0.5%
Bulldozer 3.9% 4.0% n/a 0.1%
Wheel Loader 1.9% 2.2% n/a 0.3%
Forklift 21% 1.8% n/a -0.3%
Other Heavy Equipment 6.8% 6.9% n/a 0.1%
Total Heavy Equipment 76.3% 72.0% n/a -4.3%
Machinery 22.7% 26.5% n/a 3.8%
Others 1.0% 1.5% n/a 0.5%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Financing of Heavy
Equipment, Machinery, and
Other Equipment

BFI Finance’s Financing of Heavy
Equipment, Machinery, and Other
Equipment business covers a range
of industries in Indonesia. In 2019,
these industries included Mining,
Construction, Services, Industrial and
Manufacturing, Agriculture, as well as
Trade and Distribution.

The Company’s New Financing of
Heavy Equipment, Machinery, and
Other Equipment in 2019 reached
Rp1,998 billion, dropping by 13.5%
from 2018’s figure of Rp2,309 billion.

This was in line with the relatively
sluggish growth of the economic
sectors in general over the course of
2019, owing to a cautious sentiment of
business owners and investors in the
run-up to the 2019 General Elections as
well as continued sluggish commodities
demand and export.

However, the Company managed

to expand its New Financing of
Heavy Equipment, Machinery, and
Other Equipment in Industrial and
Manufacturing Sector by 19.6%. As a
result, this particular sector became
the third largest contributor to Total
New Financing of Heavy Equipment,
Machinery, and Other Equipment,
making up 15.3% of the total.

Construction Sector took over the top
contributor position in New Financing
of Heavy Equipment, Machinery, and
Other Equipment, making up 29.6% of
the total in 2019. This was consistent
with the Indonesian government’s
determined drive to boost infrastructure
development as part of its overarching
long-term growth strategy for the
nation. The Mining Sector, which
topped the list in 2018, came second
in 2019 with 25.0% contribution to

the total.

In terms of Equipment Type, Excavators
Financing contributed 43.5% to the
Total Heavy Equipment, Machinery, and
Other Equipment Financing, amounting
to Rp869 billion, in 2019.
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TABLE 36_NEW FINANCING OF PROPERTY BY TYPE

Comparison With Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
House 139 214 75 54.0%
Shophouse 6 5 1) -16.7%
Total 145 219 74 51.0%
Percentage of Total:
House 95.9% 97.7% n/a 1.8%
Shophouse 41% 2.3% n/a -1.8%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Property-Backed Financing

BFI Finance’s New Property-Backed
Financing demonstrated improvement
after undergoing a series of product
enhancement and launching several
pilot projects in 2018. Its total figure
rose by 51.0%, from Rp145 billion in
2018 to Rp219 billion in 2019, or only
1.4% of Total New Financing for the
year. The majority of new bookings
were derived from Financing with
House as collateral, at 97.7% of the
total. This achievement was supported
by the Company’s agency-driven
marketing scheme.

Sharia Financing

BFI Finance’s Sharia Financing in 2019
amounted to Rp57 billion. This marked
an 18-fold increase from Rp3 billion
booked in 2018 when the sharia
financing business was initiated and
sharia products were just launched.
Despite its high relative growth, Sharia
Financing’s portion in the Company’s
New Financing is still the smallest,

at only 0.4% of the total. Growth in

BFI Finance’s Sharia Financing was
attributable to the Company’s opening
of new sharia branches throughout
the year, and partnerships with various
businesses adopting the sharia
principle in Indonesia.
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MARKETING

Target Market and
Marketing Strategy

BFI Finance’s marketing strategy is set according
to geographical and demographical criteria as
well as the current trends in customer behavior.
This market segmentation strategy is evaluated
regularly, enabling the Company to provide
financing to a vast range of sectors, including
MSME in various industries such as general
trading, services, infrastructure, commodity,
printing, manufacturing, food and beverage,
transportation, and many others. Given its strong
foothold in even the more remote areas of the
archipelago, BFI Finance’s customer base is
spread all over Indonesia.

The main channels that BFI Finance activates in its
marketing strategy are:

e Dealer/Supplier: for marketing of cars, heavy
equipment, and machinery financing;

e Agency: for marketing of multipurpose
financing with car, motorcycle, or house or
shophouse ownership certificate as collateral;

® In-house Telemarketing: as a direct
communication channel to reach customers
in promoting the Company’s products and
services via phone, short message service
(SMS) and hotline at 1500018; and

¢ Social Media: social networks such as
Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, and YouTube
are engaged as marketing channels to allow a
more direct communication with customers.

In 2019, BFI Finance’s marketing strategy

involved scaling down its dealer financing and
expanding its non-dealer financing. This was
intended to diversify financing portfolio and
improve asset quality. Through such strategic
measures, the Company managed to strengthen
its financial position as well as raise the number its
financing accounts.

Network Development

As at end of 2019, BFI Finance was operating 423
outlets, consisting of 232 branches (excluding

45 sharia representative branches) and 191 kiosks
throughout Indonesia. Compared to 2018, there
was a 5% increase, with an additional 22 outlets.

A majority of BFI Finance’s outlets, 55% of the
total, are located on Java and Bali. This was
followed by Sumatra, Eastern Indonesia (including
Sulawesi, Maluku, and Papua), and Kalimantan, at
17%, 17%, and 11% of the total, respectively.

Database Management and
Digital Marketing

In line with BFI Finance’s digital transformation
initiatives on the corporate scale, various
digital media were employed as part of its
marketing strategy to directly penetrate target
markets. This translates to augmented digital
marketing campaigns, social media exposure,
as well as profiling based on geographical
and demographical criteria, and customer
qualifications and history.

The database management initiative helps the
Company to boost its marketing capability and
efficacy, while reaching out to potential target
markets within a much larger geographical scope.
In 2019, BFI Finance strengthened its presence

in social media platforms (Facebook, Instagram,
Twitter, and YouTube), enabling them as marketing
channels to make customers feel closer to

BFI Finance.

The Company maintains strong partnerships with
almost 50 registered online partners including
Tokopedia, Cermati, Julo, etc. They bring
awareness and presence of BFI Finance as a key
player in the multifinance industry to the digitally-
empowered customers.
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In 2019, the Company started building
a Search Engine Optimization capability
to respond to the Indonesian market’s
changing behavior, where consumers
now start their purchase journey

first by looking for information on the
internet. Strategic partnerships are
being cultivated with Google and
Facebook Indonesia to obtain the
best optimization and insights on the
latest digital customer trends. The
results were heartening: in 2019, a
year of heightened political tension
and challenging economic situation,
the Company managed to generate
about 33.5% more leads and 30.1%
more new contracts, compared to the
previous year, in its digital channel, all
with 10% lower marketing cost.

Telesales Channel
Enhancement

BFI Finance involves 330 in-house
telemarketing personnel to keep
customers well-informed on the
Company’s promoted products,
services, and financing process. In
addition to accommodating customers’
feedbacks on the Company’s services,
the telesales channel—which is
focusing more on customer retention—
also helps the Company to offer special
arrangements. The aim is to deliver
additional value to loyal customers and
to improve efficiency and productivity
through a more streamlined
underwriting process.

BFI Finance’s One Stop Solution,

a telesales channel through the
1500018 hotline, gives easy access

to customers to obtain quick and
accurate information on all products.

It can also be used for submitting
application and filling out surveys,

as well as transferring funds, all through
a single channel.

In addition to enabling the Company
to improve its operational efficiency,
marketing enhancement through
telemarketing has boosted BFI
Finance’s business, as reflected

by its contribution to bookings in
car financing by 69%, and 59% in
motorcycle financing.

Dealer Partnership

As part of BFI Finance’s intensification
measures to improve asset quality,
despite gradually limiting its exposure
to dealer financing, BFI Finances
continued to maintain strong and fruitful
partnership with select dealers for
marketing its car financing. Up to the
end of 2019, BFI Finance had partnered
with 861 car dealers across Indonesia.

Relationship with Agents

BFI Finance engages in cooperation
with agents to market its multipurpose
financing product. The initiative focuses
more on attracting new customers.
Currently, BFI Finance’s network is one
of the widest in the industry, thanks to
the Company’s acquisition model that
does not rely on any third party. The
number of agents cooperating with BFI
Finance was on average 2,772 active
car agents and 6,327 active motorcycle
agents, at any given month in 2019.

Appreciation rewarded to agents for
their contribution to the Company’s
marketing includes:

e Financial bonus: application bonus,
monthly bonus, and quarterly
bonus, whose amount is adjusted to
each agent’s achievement;

¢ Non-financial bonus: trips, cars, and
motorcycles for the best national
agents; and

* Privilege Program:
high-performing agents receive
benefit in the form of prioritization of
application processing.
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Corporate Business
Development

BFI Finance maintains strong
commitment, professionalism, and
integrity in providing its highest

level of service via partnership with
suppliers and customers of heavy
equipment, machinery, and other
commercial equipment. BFI Finance’s
position among the top 3 in the
market is testament to its corporate
business partners’ perception on the
Company’s reliability.

In 2019, BFI Finance’s machinery
financing was relatively stable. The
Company intensified its communication
of the machinery brands it offers to
finance through various exhibitions.
Furthermore, the Company has been
engaging an industry diversification
strategy, by entering into healthcare,
laundry, and F&B industries.

Zainal Abidin
Motorcycle Financing Customer, Batam,
Riau Islands

“I have been a customer of BFI Finance since 2015
and have always been satisfied with the service, as
the administration requirements are very simple.
The customer service officers always service us
with great care and attention without discriminating
our social status, making me feel comfortable
throughout the financing process. | will continue to
go to BFI Finance to obtain future financing needs.
May in the future there are more reward programs

for repeat financing customers.”

Despite the challenging situation for
heavy equipment business in 2019
due to sluggish commaodity prices,

BFI Finance progressively diversified
the suppliers by acquiring brands that
are becoming increasingly accepted
by the market, thanks to an improved
market perception of their quality

and low prices. In 2019, spare part
financing was developed and marketed
in light of the fact that due to extended
challenges in the commodity markets,
many business owners preferred

to repair or overhaul their heavy
equipment to purchasing new ones.

BFI Finance is intensively harnessing
its customer database by applying
analytical capabilities on it, in particular
the data of its priority customers.
Certain special treatments, such as a
more streamlined approval process in
the financing procedure, are provided
to them. It is a gesture of the Company
to reward those customers that hold

a vast potential for growth in the
Company’s heavy equipment and
machinery financing.

Marketing of Sharia
Financing

The SBU of BFI Finance enacted an
integrated digital marketing strategy,
intensified via social media presence,
to reach out to a more extensive target
market for sharia financing. As at end
of 2019, the Company had 45 sharia
representative branches as per its
operating license. SBU’s engagement
in partnership with third parties for
marketing its sharia financing products
was expanded in 2019 through
cooperation with various umrah tour
and travel agents, event organizers,
wedding organizers, building renovation
companies, building materials

stores, etc.
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Property-Backed
Financing (PBF)
Product

After a series of product enhancements
and pilot projects in 2018, BFI Finance’s
Property-Backed Financing (PBF)
product has demonstrated a positive
progress. This is reflected by its solid
acquisition model and a significant
improvement in its risk profile. Growth
of PBF in 2019 was mainly supported
by agency-driven marketing, given that
the largest proportion of agency growth
is from PBF operations.

Education and
Leisure Financing

The BFI Education and BFI Leisure
financing are Multipurpose Financing
products which provide financial
solutions for education and travel to
the community. The levels of education
funded by BFI Education range from
the earliest formal education level up
to university level, as well as informal
forms of education such as language
courses and programming Courses.
Meanwhile, BFI Leisure product offers
financing for those keen on traveling
to various tourist destinations. No
collateral is required to secure the two
financing products, and customers
simply need to carry out an online
survey. Both products were launched
in Mid—2018, and market uptake for
both has been encouraging: as at end
of 2019 their assets had grown by more
than 350%.

Customer Appreciation

In 2019, BFI Finance rebranded its customer loyalty program with a new name:
“KEMILAU BFI”, with a slogan “Maksimum Cairnya, Kemilau Hadiahnya”. This new
program was built upon its previous customer appreciation program called “UBER
MILYARAN”, which had been carried out since 2015 as part of the Company’s
marketing campaign in new medium.

The objectives of KEMILAU BFl are:
e Giving appreciation to active customers of BFI Finance (“Sahabat BFI”);

e Maintaining sound relationship between customers and BFI Finance;

e Opening new business opportunities for collaboration between customers and
BFI Finance; and

¢ Increasing BFI Finance’s brand awareness through drawing and media
placement activities.

Whereas previously in the UBER MILYARAN program the drawing mechanism took
place in every area, starting in 2019, the lottery grouping of KEMILAU BFI Program
was based on four consumer area bases, i.e., Java-Bali, Kalimantan, Sulawesi,
and Eastern Indonesia. The coupon drawing mechanism is as follows:

Product Lucky Draw Coupon
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Motorcycle Financing Every 1 contract and its multiples = 1 coupon

BFI Education Financing Every 1 contract and its multiples = 1 coupon

(minimum Rp5 million)

BFI Leisure Financing

Car Financing

Every Rp25 million and its multiples = 1 coupon
Property Financing

Machine Financing

Every Rp50 million and its multiples = 1 coupon
Heavy Equipment Financing

Marketing Focus in 2020

BFI Finance’s marketing strategy and initiatives in the future will be more data-
driven to optimize customer penetration. Supported by the Company’s improved
data management system, which helps to improve analysis of customer data and
behavior, BFI Finance’s marketing strategy will be more streamlined and customer-
centric, and thus more effectively targeted.
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“BFIl Finance’s Total Income In
2019 rose 4.4% from Rp5,018
billion in 2018 to RpH,241
billion in 2019.”
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets

TABLE 37_TOTAL ASSETS

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Cash and Cash Equivalents 755 660 (95) -12.6%
Net Financing Receivables 17,281 17,396 15 0.7%
Net ljarah Assets 2 43 41 2,050.0%
Total Net Receivables 17,283 17,439 156 0.9%
Other Receivables - Net 198 154 44) -22.2%
Derivative Assets 110 0 (110) -100.0%
Prepaid Expenses and Advances 54 73 19 35.2%
Fixed Assets - Net 530 541 ik 21%
Intangible Assets - Net 32 30 2 -6.3%
Deferred Tax Assets 68 110 42 61.8%
Other Assets 87 83 @ -4.6%
Total Assets 19,117 19,090 (27) -0.1%
Percentage of Total:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.9% 3.5% n/a -0.4%
Net Financing Receivables 90.4% 91.1% n/a 0.7%
Net ljarah Assets 0.0% 0.2% n/a 0.2%
Total Net Receivables 90.4% 91.3% n/a 0.9%
Other Receivables - Net 1.0% 0.8% n/a -0.2%
Derivative Assets 0.6% 0.0% n/a -0.6%
Prepaid Expenses and Advances 0.3% 0.4% n/a 0.1%
Fixed Assets - Net 2.8% 2.9% n/a 0.1%
Intangible Assets - Net 0.2% 0.1% n/a 0.1%
Deferred Tax Assets 0.4% 0.6% n/a 0.2%
Other Assets 0.4% 0.4% n/a 0.0%

Total Assets 100.0% 100.0%

BFI Finance’s Total Assets stood at Rp19,090 billion at 31 December 2019, stable from the
previous year’s position of Rp19,117 billion.

Total Net Receivables contributed the largest portion to Total Assets in 2019, making up
Rp17,439 billion or 91.3% of Total Assets. This was a rise of 0.9% from the previous year’s
Total Net Receivables, which amounted to Rp17,283 billion (90.4% of 2018’s Total Assets).
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In the previous reporting period, Net Receivables consisted only of Net Finance Lease Receivables, Net Consumer Financing
Receivables and Net fjarah Assets. Since 2019, there has been an additional component in Net Receivables, i.e., Net
Murabahah Financing Receivables. This contributed Rp4 billion to the total as at end of 2019.

Total Net Receivables in 2019 amounted to Rp17,439 billion, up by 0.9% from 2018’s amount of Rp17,283 billion.

TABLE 38_NET RECEIVABLES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Net Financing Receivables 17,281 17,396 115 0.7%
Net ljjarah Assets 2 43 41 2,050.0%
Total Net Receivables 17,283 17,439 156 0.9%

Total Net Receivables is derived from Total Managed Receivables less the portion of Joint Financing booked by third
parties, which grew from Rp682 billion in 2018 to Rp715 billion in 2019, and after adjustment for Allowance for Impairment
Losses which amounted to Rp355 billion as at end of 2019, a decline of 6.1% from Rp378 billion in 2018. This is shown in
Table 39 below.

Allowance for Impairment Losses is explained in detail on page 158.

TABLE 39_MANAGED RECEIVABLES VS NET RECEIVABLES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage

Financing Receivables 18,340 18,466 126 0.7%
ljarah Assets 3 43 40 1,3338.3%
Total Managed Receivables 18,343 18,509 166 0.9%
Less Joint Financing - o
booked by third parties (682) (715) (33) 4.8%
Total Receivables 17,661 17,794 133 0.8%
Before Allowance

Allowance for Impairment Losses 378 855 (23) -6.1%
Total Receivables - Net 17,283 17,439 156 0.9%

For a more thorough and representative analysis, discussions of Receivables are focused on Total Managed Receivables
based on Asset Type. This more clearly reflects the Company’s business classification.
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TABLE 40_DIVERSIFICATION OF FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY ASSET TYPE

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage

Used Cars Financing 12,959 12,868 91) -0.7%
New Cars Financing 554 397 (157) -28.3%
Cars Financing 13,513 13,265 (248) -1.8%
Heavy Equipment Financing 2,802 2,776 (26) -0.9%
Used Motorcycles Financing 1,720 2,058 338 19.7%
Property Financing 305 363 58 19.0%
Sharia Financing 3 47 44 1,466.7%
Total Managed Receivables 18,343 18,509 166 0.9%
Percentage of Total:

Used Cars Financing 70.6% 69.5% n/a -1.1%
New Cars Financing 3.0% 2.2% n/a -0.8%
Cars Financing 73.6% 71.7% n/a -1.9%
Heavy Equipment Financing 16.3% 15.0% n/a -0.3%
Used Motorcycles Financing 9.4% 11.1% n/a 1.7%
Property Financing 1.7% 2.0% n/a 0.3%
Sharia Financing 0.0% 0.2% n/a 0.2%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

The largest portion in Total Managed Receivables in 2019, making up 71.7%, was Cars Financing, both Used and New,
amounting to Rp13,265 billion. This consisted of Rp12,868 billion in Used Cars Financing and Rp397 billion in New Cars
Financing. The remainder, 28.3% of the total Managed Receivables, was composed of Heavy Equipment Financing (15.0%),
followed by Used Motorcycles Financing (11.1%), Property Financing (2.0%), and Sharia Financing (0.2%).
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Used Cars Financing and New Cars Financing contributions to Total Managed Receivables in 2019 were 69.5% and 2.2%,
respectively. Used Cars Financing experienced a slight downward performance of 0.7%, from Rp12,959 billion in 2018 to
Rp12,868 billion in 2019, while New Cars Financing, due to the Company’s strategy from the year before to reduce focus on
the New Cars Financing business, dropped by 28.3% from Rp554 billion to Rp397 billion as at end of 2019.

The Company’s Cars Financing include Minibus/MPV, Truck, Pick-up, Jeep, Sedan, and Bus. More than half of total Cars
Financing portfolio was dominated by Minibus/MPV, making up 52.6% of the total, followed by Jeep at 17.8% and Truck at
12.5%. Further details are provided in the following table.

TABLE 41_DIVERSIFICATION OF CARS FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY CAR TYPE

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Minibus/MPV 7,072 6,978 (94) -1.3%
Jeep 2,306 2,365 59 2.6%
Truck 1,738 1,659 (79) -4.5%
Pick-up 1,392 1,303 (89) -6.4%
Sedan 899 849 (50) -5.6%
Bus 106 111 5 4.7%
Total 13,513 13,265 (248) -1.8%
Percentage of Total:

Minibus/MPV 52.3% 52.6% n/a 0.3%
Jeep 171% 17.8% n/a 0.7%
Truck 12.9% 12.5% n/a -0.4%
Pick-up 10.3% 9.8% n/a -0.5%
Sedan 6.6% 6.4% n/a -0.2%
Bus 0.8% 0.9% n/a 0.1%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

Japanese brands continued to dominate the business, with 97.3% of the Company’s total managed Cars Financing portfolio
as at end of 2019. This proportion was unchanged from the end of 2018. Toyota remained the top contributor to the total, with
a 37.3% share. It was followed by Mitsubishi, Daihatsu, and Honda, at 14.7%, 13.4%, and 12.9%, respectively.
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TABLE 42_DIVERSIFICATION OF CARS FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY BRAND

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Toyota 4,970 4,944 (26) -0.5%
Mitsubishi 2,043 1,944 (99) -4.8%
Daihatsu 1,809 1,776 (39) -1.8%
Honda 1,692 1,705 13 0.8%
Suzuki 1,303 1,223 (80) -6.1%
Isuzu 180 176 @) -2.2%
Other Japanese Brand 1,151 1,132 (19) 1.7%
Non-Japanese Brand 365 365 - 0.0%
Total 13,513 13,265 (248) -1.8%
Percentage of Total:
Toyota 36.8% 37.3% n/a 0.5%
Mitsubishi 15.1% 14.7% n/a -0.4%
Daihatsu 13.4% 13.4% n/a 0.0%
Honda 12.5% 12.9% n/a 0.4%
Suzuki 9.7% 9.2% n/a -0.5%
Isuzu 1.3% 1.3% n/a 0.0%
Other Japanese Brand 8.5% 8.5% n/a 0.0%
Non-Japanese Brand 2.7% 2.7% n/a 0.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

The Company’s Total Managed Receivables of Used Motorcycles as at end of 2019 reached Rp2,058 billion, a rise of 19.7%
from Rp1,720 billion as at end of 2018. Such growth was supported mostly by the increase in Honda motorcycles, by 28.2%

or Rp265 billion compared with the previous year’s figure. Honda brand made up 58.5% of the Total Used Motorcycles

Financing Portfolio as at 31 December 2019. Yamaha brand’s share, the second largest contributor to Total Used Motorcycles

Financing, was 35.5%, amounting to Rp730 billion.

TABLE 43_DIVERSIFICATION OF USED MOTORCYCLES FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY BRAND

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Honda 940 1,205 265 28.2%
Yamaha 660 730 70 10.6%
Suzuki 79 7 @) -2.5%
Others 41 46 5 12.2%
Total 1,720 2,058 338 19.7%
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TABLE 43_DIVERSIFICATION OF USED MOTORCYCLES FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY BRAND

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Percentage of Total:
Honda 54.6% 58.5% n/a 3.9%
Yamaha 38.4% 35.5% n/a -2.9%
Suzuki 4.6% 3.8% n/a -0.8%
Others 2.4% 2.2% n/a -0.2%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

BFI Finance provides Financing of Heavy Equipment, Machinery, and Others. This business shrank by 0.9% by end
of 2019, from Rp2,802 billion in 2018 to Rp2,776 billion in 2019, in line with the slower export growth, especially
in the first half of the year.

The largest component in this segment by end of 2019 was Excavators, which made up 46.1% of the segment’s total portfolio
amounting to Rp1,280 billion worth of managed receivables. Total Heavy Equipment Financing in 2019 contributed Rp2,091
billion, or 75.4% of the segment’s total portfolio, with 23.5% of the remainder contributed by Financing of Machinery, and 1.1%
of Others.

The largest contributor to Heavy Equipment, Machinery, and Others Financing Portfolio by Industry was the Construction
sector, with 28.7% of the total managed portfolio in this segment. This sector’s contribution grew 12.1% from Rp712 billion
in 2018 to Rp798 billion in 2019. Other top contributors, in descending order, was the Mining sector with 26.6%, the Service
sector with 13.0%, and the Industrial and Manufacturing sector with 12.7% of the total.

TABLE 44_DIVERSIFICATION OF HEAVY EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, AND OTHERS FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY ASSET TYPE

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Excavator 1,297 1,280 a7 -1.3%
Truck 402 382 (20) -5.0%
Bulldozer 119 108 (1) -9.2%
Wheel Loader 53 59 6 11.3%
Forklift 59 52 (7) -11.9%
Other Heavy Equipment 207 210 3 1.4%
Total Heavy Equipment 2,137 2,091 (46) -2.2%
Machinery 639 654 15 2.3%
Others 26 31 5 19.2%

Total 2,802 2,776 (26) -0.9%
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TABLE 44_DIVERSIFICATION OF HEAVY EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, AND OTHERS FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY ASSET TYPE

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Percentage of Total
Excavator 46.3% 46.1% n/a -0.2%
Truck 14.3% 13.8% n/a -0.5%
Bulldozer 4.3% 3.9% n/a -0.4%
Wheel Loader 1.9% 21% n/a 0.2%
Forklift 21% 1.9% n/a -0.2%
Other Heavy Equipment 7.4% 7.6% n/a 0.2%
Total Heavy Equipment 76.3% 75.4% n/a -0.9%
Machinery 22.8% 23.5% n/a 0.7%
Others 0.9% 1.1% n/a 0.2%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

TABLE 45_DIVERSIFICATION OF HEAVY EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, AND OTHERS FINANCING PORTFOLIO BY INDUSTRY

Comparison with Last Year

157

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Construction 712 798 86 121%
Mining 762 738 (24) -3.1%
Services 400 360 40) -10.0%
Industrial and Manufacturing 300 354 54 18.0%
Plantation 166 158 8) -4.8%
Forestry 206 152 (54) -26.2%
Trade and Distribution 115 88 27) -23.5%
Others 141 128 (13) -9.2%
Total 2,802 2,776 (26) -0.9%
Percentage of Total
Construction 25.4% 28.7% n/a 3.3%
Mining 27.2% 26.6% n/a -0.6%
Services 14.3% 13.0% n/a -1.3%
Industrial and Manufacturing 10.7% 12.7% n/a 2.0%
Plantation 5.9% 5.7% n/a -0.2%
Forestry 7.4% 5.5% n/a -1.9%
Trade and Distribution 41% 3.2% n/a -0.9%
Others 5.0% 4.6% n/a -0.4%
Total 100.0% 100.0%
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BFI Finance’s Property-Backed Financing grew 19.0%, from Rp305 billion as at end of 2018 to Rp363 billion as at end of
2019. Of the Total Property-Backed Financing, 97.0% was contributed by Financing with House as collateral, which increased
by 20.5% to reach Rp352 billion as at end of 2019.

TABLE 46_DIVERSIFICATION OF PROPERTY PORTFOLIO BY TYPE

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

House 292 352 60 20.5%
Shophouse 13 11 2 -156.4%
Total 305 363 58 19.0%
Percentage of Total

House 95.7% 97.0% n/a 1.3%
Shophouse 4.3% 3.0% n/a -1.3%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

The Company’s ljarah Assets (including ljarah Receivables) as at end of 2019 amounted to Rp43 billion, compared with
Rp3 billion as at end of 2018. The Company started to market jjarah product in 2018 which continue to grow during 2019.

Allowance for Impairment Losses is a value set aside from Total Managed Receivables to anticipate future potential losses of
Receivables. The value is statistically computed, and calculated individually for specific exposures and types of assets.

Allowance for Impairment Losses as at end of 2019 showed a decline by 6.1%, from Rp378 billion one year earlier to
Rp355 billion, aligned with the improvement of asset quality and NPF.

TABLE 47_ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Total Managed Receivables 18,343 18,509 166 0.9%
NPF (including Joint Financing) 222 157 (65) -29.3%
Allowance for Impairment Losses 378 855 (23) -6.1%

NPF Coverage 1.7 x 2.3 x n/a 55.8%
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As at 31 December 2019, BFI Finance’s Cash and Cash Equivalents amounted to Rp660 billion, a 12.6% drop from
Rp755 billion recorded on 31 December 2018. The Company consistently maintains adequate cash balance to support its
ongoing business.

The Company records Other Receivables in the form of, among others, Receivables in the Settlement Process (book value of
asset collateral returned by or repossessed from customers unable to continue serving their obligations), Customer Installment
Receipt Receivables (where payment has been made by customers and received by BFI Finance’s payment point partners,
but only credited to the Company’s bank account the following business day), Employee Receivables, MESOP Receivables,
and Insurance Premium.

The amount of Other Receivables recorded on 31 December 2019 was Rp154 billion, 22.2% lower than Rp198 billion in 2018.
Such decline was largely due to the decline in Customer Installment Receipt Receivables, which went down by 42.6% or Rp26
billion from Rp61 billion on 31 December 2018 to Rp35 billion on 31 December 2019, followed by the decline in Receivables in
Settlement Process from Rp93 billion to Rp81 billion.

TABLE 48_OTHER RECEIVABLES

Comparison with Last Year
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Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Receivables in the Settlement Process - Net 93 81 (12) -12.9%
Customer Installment Receipt Receivables 61 35 (26) -42.6%
Employee Receivables 22 20 @) -91%
MESOP Receivables 8 6 2 -25.0%
Insurance Premium 2 4 2 100.0%
Other Receivables 12 8 @) -33.3%
Total 198 154 (44) -22.2%

Derivative Assets (Liabilities) are derived from the swap arrangements that the Company makes to hedge its foreign currency
loans—in particular offshore loans denominated in USD—as one of its funding sources, to mitigate interest rate and currency
exchange risks. The Company mitigates these risks, as part of its comprehensive risk management, by implementing a strict
hedging policy for loans in foreign currencies and with floating interest rates. All hedging is performed through cross currency
swap agreements with reputable banks. At present, all foreign currency loans are fully hedged with no open exposure against
foreign currency and interest rate risks.
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Derivative Liabilities of Rp130 billion were recorded on 31 December 2019, as opposed to Rp110 billion of Derivative Assets at
the end of 2018. Details of Derivative Assets and Liabilities are provided in the following table.

TABLE 49_DERIVATIVE ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

2018 2019
Description USD Notional Deriv.ati\.n.a Assets USD Notional Deriv.ati\_n.a .Assets
Amount (Liabilities) Amount (Liabilities)

(full amount) (Rp billion) (full amount) (Rp billion)
Standard Chartered Bank, 42,000,000 48 155,000,000 (74)
Jakarta Branch
PT Bank ANZ Indonesia - - 67,500,000 (29)
PT Bank Permata Tbk - - 65,000,000 (38)
MUFG Bank, Ltd.,Jakarta Branch 56,500,000 47 30,500,000 9
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk 14,833,333 15 6,166,667 2
Total 113,333,333 110 324,166,667 (130)

Prepaid Expenses and Advances increased by 35.2% from the last year mainly due to the prepaid expenses related to quota
purchase on information access to credit bureau, which will be amortized as per usage.

BFI Finance’s Fixed Assets — Net rose by 2.1% in 2019, reaching Rp541 billion on 31 December 2019, compared with Rp530
billion recorded one year prior. The largest contributor to this addition in Fixed Assets was in the form of Vehicles and Office
Equipment, whose net carrying amount by end of 2019 had reached Rp128 billion and Rp69 billion. Details will be explained

further in the Material Capital Expenditures section.

Intangible Assets consist of software spending. As at 31 December 2019, BFI Finance’s Intangible Assets — Net declined by
6.3% from Rp32 billion in the previous year to Rp30 billion.

BFI Finance recorded Deferred Tax Assets amounting to Rp110 billion on 31 December 2019, up by 61.8% from Rp68 billion
on 31 December 2018, mainly due to timing difference in tax recognition for Other Comprehensive Income.
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Liabilities

TABLE 50_TOTAL LIABILITIES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Fund Borrowings 6,900 7,730 830 12.0%
Securities Issued - Net 5,196 3,758 (1,438) -27.7%
Accrued Expenses 283 797 514 181.6%
Post-employment Benefits Liabilities 202 258 56 27.7%
Derivative Liabilities - 130 130 n/a
Taxes Payable 67 73 6 9.0%
Other Payables 265 262 3) -1.1%
Total 12,913 13,008 95 0.7%
Percentage of Total
Fund Borrowings 53.4% 59.4% n/a 6.0%
Securities Issued - Net 40.2% 28.9% n/a -11.3%
Accrued Expenses 2.2% 6.1% n/a 3.9%
Post-employment Benefits Liabilities 1.6% 2.0% n/a 0.4%
Derivative Liabilities 0.0% 1.0% n/a 1.0%
Taxes Payable 0.5% 0.6% n/a 0.1%
Other Payables 21% 2.0% n/a -0.1%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

BFI Finance’s Total Liabilities on 31 December 2019 stood at Rp13,008 billion, slightly increased by 0.7% from the previous
year’s liabilities amounting to Rp12,913 billion. The largest portion of Total Liabilities was in the form of Fund Borrowings and
Securities Issued — Net, contributing 59.4% and 28.9%, respectively, to the total.

TABLE 51_SOURCE OF FUNDS

Comparison with Last Year
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Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Fund Borrowings

Foreign Currency Borrowings 1,851 4,481 2,630 1421%
Rupiah Borrowings 5,049 3,249 (1,800) -35.7%
Total Fund Borrowings 6,900 7,730 830 12.0%
Securities Issued

Bond Payable 5196 3,758 (1,438) -27.7%
Total Securities Issued - Net 5,196 3,758 (1,438) -27.7%
Total Source of Funds 12,096 11,488 (608) -5.0%
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Total Fund Borrowings recorded on 31 December 2019 stood at Rp7,730 billion, a 12.0% increase compared with 2018’s
Rp6,900 billion. A large increase was noted in Fund Borrowings in US dollar, amounting to Rp2,630 billion or 142.1%, from
Rp1,851 billion in 2018 to Rp4,481 billion in 2019. On the other hand, Fund Borrowings in Rupiah declined by Rp1,800 billion

TABLE 52_DETAILS OF FUND BORROWINGS

or 35.7%, as the Company took advantage of better rates and availability of offshore funding.

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019 Wclt‘;]"l‘_‘:;'f(‘:;r
Borrowings (US Dollar)

Syndicated Loan (Agent: PT Bank Central Asia Tbk) - 2,688 2,688
Secured Term Loan Facility (Agent: Standard Chartered Bank) - 1,036 1,036
Syndicated Loan (Agent: Standard Chartered Bank) 1,274 532 (742)
MUFG Bank, Ltd., Jakarta Branch 145 139 6)
PT Bank CTBC Indonesia 154 74 (80)
JA Mitsui Leasing Singapore Pte. Ltd. 60 12 48)
PT Bank ANZ Indonesia 218 - (218)
Total Borrowings (US Dollar) 1,851 4,481 2,630
Borrowings (Rupiah)

PT Bank Mandiri (Persero) Tbk 1,782 1,164 (618)
PT United Tractors Tbk 1,032 856 (176)
PT Bank Central Asia Tbk 622 601 21)
PT Bank ANZ Indonesia - 218 218
PT Bank Permata Tbk 446 188 (258)
PT Bank Pan Indonesia Tbk 225 91 (134)
ggrsr?;:ngzgirgi? Indonesia Tbk (formerly PT Bank Nusantara 136 66 (70)
PT Bank KEB Hana Indonesia 253 29 (224)
PT Bank Bukopin Tbk - 25 25
PT Bank Pembangunan Daerah Jawa Barat & Banten Tbk 108 11 97)
Standard Chartered Bank, Jakarta Branch 340 - (340)
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk 66 = (66)
Bank of China Limited, Jakarta Branch 37 - (87)
PT Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Thk 2 - (2]
Total Borrowings (Rupiah) 5,049 3,249 (1,800)
Borrowings - Net 6,900 7,730 830
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Aside from bank borrowings, BFI Finance also raised funding from debt capital markets in the form of shelf-registered Rupiah
Bonds. On 31 December 2019, Securities Issued — Net totaled Rp3,758 billion, declining by 27.7% from Rp5,196 billion in 2018
as the Company borrowed more from banks than the capital markets. Details of the Company’s issued securities are provided

in the following table.

TABLE 53_SECURITIES ISSUED

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Bonds

Obligasi Berkelanjutan Il BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap lll Tahun 2016 658 -
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2016 683 133
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2017 460 460
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2017 500 400
Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap IV Tahun 2018 2,165 1,219
Obligasi Berkelanjutan IV BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap | Tahun 2018 740 552
Obligasi Berkelanjutan IV BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2019 - 1,000
Total Nominal Value 5,206 3,764
Less Unamortized Bond Issuance Cost 10 6
Total - Net 5,196 3,758
Total Securities Issued 5,196 3,758

The increase in Accrued Expenses was due to a part of Settlement Agreement with PT Aryaputra Teguharta on 20 November
2019—which is detailed on page 273, in the Good Corporate Governance chapter, as well as Item 37, page 90 of the Notes

to the Financial Statements—which had been accrued and not yet paid as at the financial reporting date, as this was pending
the fulfillment of the settlement of obligations as stipulated in said Settlement Agreement. As at the date of the audit report, all

Accrued Expenses related to the Settlement Agreement had been fully paid.

The increase in Post-Employment Benefits Liabilities was owing to the change in the discount rate in calculating the present
value of the Company’s Post-Employment Benefits Liabilities, from 8.8% in 2018 to 8.2% in 2019.
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Taxes Payable increased by 9.0% from Rp67 billion in 2018 to Rp73 billion in 2019.

Other Payables mainly consist of Customer Deposits, Insurance Premium, Payables to Suppliers, Fixed Asset and Intangible
Asset Acquisition, and Others. Total Other Payables as at 31 December 2019 amounted to Rp262 billion, 1.1% lower than

Rp265 billion in 2018.

TABLE 54_OTHER PAYABLES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Customer Deposits 120 144 24 20.0%
Insurance Premium 27 37 10 37.0%
Payables to Suppliers 5 25 20 400.0%
Fixed Asset and Intangibl

haset Aoquiston 5 1 57) -98.3%
Other Payables 55 68 - 0.0%
Total 265 262 (3) -1.1%

BFI Finance has Joint Financing arrangements with a reputable Indonesian bank. The Company’s portion of Joint Financing
ranges from 5 to 10% and the rest are finances by the corresponding banks. In these Joint Financing arrangements, the
Company acts as a servicer, responsible for among others; collecting and receiving payments from customers, forwarding
payments received to the lending banks, and as a custodian for the documents of assets used as collateral.

BFI Finance’s Joint Financing arrangements by end of 2019 amounted to Rp726 billion, an increase of 6.1% from Rp684 billion
one year prior. The increase was exclusively contributed by partnership with PT Bank Rakyat Indonesia (Persero) Tbk which
increased by Rp60 billion from 2018’s figure to Rp726 billion in 2019.

Details of the Company’s Joint Financing arrangement is provided in the following table.

TABLE 55_JOINT FINANCING

BFl Finance’s Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019 Portion Total Percentage
PT Bank Rakyat Indonesia (Persero) Tbk 666 726 5% 60 9.0%
PT Bank Mandiri (Persero) Thk 12 - 5% (12) -100.0%
PT Bank Tabungan Pensiunan Nasional Tbk 6 - 10% 6) -100.0%

Total 684 726 42 6.1%
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Equity

TABLE 56_TOTAL EQUITY
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Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Share Capital 399 399 - 0.0%
Additional Paid-in Capital - Net 553 553 - 0.0%
Treasury Stock (252) (252) - 0.0%
Other Comprehensive Income
Cumulative Gain (Loss) on Derivative Instrument for i o
Cash Flows Hedges - Net 2 () (90) 4,500.0%
Loss on Defined Benefit Actuarial Program (42) (54) (12 28.6%
Retained Earnings
Appropriated 86 100 14 16.3%
Unappropriated 5,458 5,422 (36) -0.7%
Total 6,204 6,080 (124) -2.0%

BFI Finance’s Total Equity on 31 December 2019 stood at Rp6,080 billion, slightly declining by 2.0% from Rp6,204 billion by
end of 2018. Such decline was mainly due to the Cumulative Loss on Derivative Instrument for Cash Flows Hedges — Net
which was Rp88 billion as at end of 2019 compared with Cumulative Gain on Derivative Instrument for Cash Flows Hedges —

Net amounting to Rp2 billion as at end of 2018.

On 31 December 2019, the Company recorded Additional Paid-up Capital of Rp553 billion, unchanged from the previous

year’s amount.

There was no change to the amount of Treasury Stock, which stood at Rp252 billion (corresponding to 1,002,732,000 shares)
on 31 December 2019 and 2018. Treasury Stock resulted from a buyback program conducted in 2015 and 2016 based on

EGMS resolution on 15 April 2015.

TABLE 57_TREASURY STOCK

Description

Number of Shares

Percentage

Treasury Stock

1,002,732,000

6.28%
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The Company implemented a MESOP program based on the EGMS resolution on 21 June 2012, which ended on
30 June 2016.

Total new shares issued during the program represent 5% of the Company’s Paid-up Capital and were granted to eligible
management personnel and employees upon shareholders’ approval.

TABLE 58_SHARE OWNERSHIP OF MEMBERS OF THE BOC AND THE BOD

Shareholders Position Total Shares % Shares
Francis Lay Sioe Ho President Director 389,885,080 2.44
Sudjono Director 33,380,000 0.21
Sutadi Director 21,382,800 0.14
Andrew Adiwijanto Director 10,120,000 0.06
Sigit Hendra Gunawan Director (Independent) 10,000,000 0.06
Johanes Sutrisno Commissioner 2,480 0.00
Total 464,770,360 2.91

The Company’s total Retained Earnings in 2019 amounted to Rp5,522 billion, 0.4% lower than 2018’s Retained Earnings in
2018 worth Rp5,544 billion.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Other Comprehensive Income

BFI Finance posted Profit for the Year amounting to Rp712 billion in 2019, down by 51.5% from Rp1,468 billion in 2018.

Income

The Company’s Income was derived from Financing Income, Finance Income, and Other Income. BFI Finance’s Total Income
in 2019 rose 4.4% from Rp5,018 billion in 2018 to Rp5,241 billion in 2019.

Financing Income mostly comprises of interest income from financing activities, fee-based income from new financing
disbursement and also ongoing transaction fees such as late charges and prepayment penalties. In 2019, Financing Income
(net of Joint Financing) reached the Rp5-trillion mark, up by 2.2% from Rp4,894 billion in 2018. This increase came in spite
of flat loan growth, mainly due to the Company’s success in improving financing receivables composition and maintaining
interest margin level which contribute to the increase in income.
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TABLE 59_INCOME

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage

Income
Own & Joint Financing 4,937 5,082 145 2.9%
Other Income 124 241 17 94.4%
Total 5,061 5,323 262 5.2%
Less Joint Financing 43) (82) 39) 90.7%
Total Income 5,018 5,241 223 4.4%
Income (Own Financing)
Financing Receivables

Financing Income 3,739 3,838 99 2.6%

Administration 679 639 (40) -5.9%

Late Charges 314 339 25 8.0%

Termination 161 180 19 11.8%
TRZt:;ifl:]l)aIg(s:ilr‘ngcome Lo el S ik
Sharia Financing 1 4 3 300.0%
Total Financing Income 4,894 5,000 106 2.2%
Other Income 124 241 17 94.4%
Total Income 5,018 5,241 223 4.4%

Administration charges in 2019 was Rp639 billlion compared to Rp679 billion in 2018, down 5.9%. This was the
impact of lower new financing disbursement during 2019. Late charges and Termination charges increased 8.0% and
11.8% respectively.

Similar to the analysis of Total Managed Receivables, this discussion on Financing Income will also be broken down by
Asset Type, where the largest contributor in 2019 was Used Cars Financing, amounting to Rp3,393 billion, representing
66.8% of Total Financing Income. Income from Used Cars Financing slightly increased by 0.7% compared with the previous
year’s figure of Rp3,371 billion. However, the largest increase in amount in 2019 was seen in Used Motorcycles Financing
component, which rose by Rp144 billion or 15.6% from its 2018 amount, in line with the asset growth in this category.

This is consistent with the Company’s strategy to focus on Used Car and Used Motorcycle as Collateral Financing, whilst
downplaying the focus on Dealer Financing.



168

TABLE 60_FINANCING INCOME BY ASSET TYPE

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Breakdown by Asset Type

Used Cars Financing 3,371 3,393 22 0.7%
Used Motorcycles Financing 921 1,065 144 15.6%
Heavy Equipment Financing 435 454 19 4.4%
New Cars Financing 139 95 (44) -31.7%
Property Financing 70 71 1 1.4%
Sharia Financing 1 4 3 300.0%
Total Financing Income (including Joint Financing) 4,937 5,082 145 2.9%
Asset Type in Percentage

Used Cars Financing 68.3% 66.8% n/a -1.5%
Used Motorcycles Financing 18.7% 21.0% n/a 2.3%
Heavy Equipment Financing 8.8% 8.9% n/a 0.1%
New Cars Financing 2.8% 1.9% n/a -0.9%
Property Financing 1.4% 1.4% n/a 0.0%
Sharia Financing 0.0% 0.0% n/a 0.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Other Income represents all non-core income sources derived from the Company’s non-financing main activities such as
interest from cash in bank, as well as other activities consisting of recovery of receivables which have been written-off,
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets — Net, and Others. In 2019, BFI Finance’s Other Income grew by 94.4% from Rp124 billion
in 2018 to Rp241 billion. This was driven mostly by Recovery on Written-off Receivables and Receivables in Settlement
Process which grew by 83.5% from Rp91 billion to Rp167 billion, thanks to an intensive recovery effort as well as better

inventory management.

TABLE 61_OTHER INCOME

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage
Recovery on Written-off Receivables and Receivables in o1 167 76 83.5%
the Settlement Process

Finance 20 58 33 165.0%
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets - Net 9 1 2 22.2%
Others 4 10 6 150.0%
Total 124 241 117 94.4%
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Expenses

TABLE 62_EXPENSES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Salaries and Benefits 1,075 1,217 142 13.2%
Interest and Financing Charges 1,036 1,008 (28) -2.7%
General and Administrative 542 705 163 30.1%
Provision for Impairment Losses 509 426 (83) -16.3%
Others 16 793 777 4,856.3%
Total 3,178 4,149 971 30.6%

BFI Finance’s Total Expenses in 2019 amounted to Rp4,149 billion. The two largest contributors to Total Expenses in 2019
were Salaries and Benefits (of Rp1,217 billion) and Interest and Financing Charges (of Rp1,008 billion), each representing
29.3% and 24.3% of the total.

There is a 30.6% increase in Total Expenses compared to 2018, driven primarily by Other Expenses, followed by General and
Administrative and Salaries and Benefits.

Salaries and Benefits consisted of all Salaries and Benefits paid throughout the current year, including all benefits like
performance bonus, employee incentives and accrual for retirement compensation which have been provisioned in
accordance with the prevailing accounting standards.

Salaries and Benefits increased by 13.2% from Rp1,075 billion in 2018 to Rp1,217 billion in 2019. Such increase was in line
with the Company’s higher employee headcount by 8.6%, from 11,171 personnel to 12,127 in 2019.

TABLE 63_SALARIES AND BENEFIT EXPENSES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Salaries and Employee Benefits 1,016 1,158 142 14.0%
Post-employment Benefits 59 59 - 0.0%

Total 1,075 1,217 142 13.2%
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Interest and Financing Charges are derived from the Company’s funding activities, both from borrowings and issued
securities, and related fees and charges.

The Company’s Fund Borrowings in 2019 rose by 12.0% to Rp7,730 billion in 2019, while total Securities Issued — Net went
down by 27.7% to Rp3,758 billion. An overall lower Total Borrowings in 2019 led to the decline of Interest and Financing
Charges in 2019 by 2.7%, from Rp1,036 billion in 2018 to Rp1,008 billion. Average Cost of Funds during the year was 8.8%, or
0.2% higher than in 2018, which was 8.6%. Bank Indonesia’s 7-Day Repo Rate was stable for the first six months of the year,
and started declining in July 2019, closing with 5.0% in December 2019. There is typically a time lag in interest rate effect for
the Company due to the fixed rate nature of the Company’s borrowings.

TABLE 64_BORROWINGS, INTEREST AND FINANCING CHARGES, AND COST OF FUNDS

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Fund Borrowings 6,900 7,730 830 12.0%
Securities Issued - Net 5,196 3,758 (1,438) -27.7%
Total Borrowings 12,096 11,488 (608) -5.0%
Interest and Financing Charges 1,036 1,008 (28) -2.7%
Average Cost of Fund 8.6% 8.8% 0.2%

General and Administrative Expenses comprise of expenses that support the Company’s operational activities and
business growth.

TABLE 65_GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Professional Fees 41 125 84 204.9%
Installment Collection Expense 56 85 29 51.8%
Depreciation of Fixed Assets 75 82 7 9.3%
Repairs and Maintenance 61 70 9 14.8%
Travel and Transportation 47 53 6 12.8%
Marketing 38 34 (] -10.5%
Training and Education 32 34 2 6.3%
Courier, Postage and Stamp Duty 25 28 3 12.0%
Office Expense 21 27 6 28.6%
Office and Warehouse Rental 23 26 3 13.0%
Communications 20 23 3 15.0%
Membership and Subscription 22 19 3 -13.6%
Electricity and Water 16 18 2 12.5%
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TABLE 65_GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Insurance 15 16 1 6.7%
Outsourced Service Expenses 6 11 5 83.3%
Amortization of Intangible Assets 9 10 1 1.1%
Legalized Document and Photocopy 3 9 2 66.7%
Bank Administration Charges 2 2 - 0.0%
CSR Programs 2 2 - 0.0%
Others 28 B 7 25.0%
Total 542 705 163 30.1%

General and Administrative in 2019 amounted to Rp705 billion, 30.1% higher than Rp542 billion recorded in 2018. The largest
component in 2019 came from Professional Fees, which rose from Rp41 billion in 2018 to Rp125 billion in 2019. Professional

fees comprised mostly fees due to management consultants engaged during the year to advise the Company on operational
and strategic improvements, as well as legal fees incurred during the year. Another substantial increase was from Installment
Collection Expense, in line with the Company’s more intense collection strategy during the year. This expense was related to,
amongst others, asset repossession cost.

Provision for Impairment Losses is an amount provisioned based on the evaluation of the Company’s Financing Receivables
value of both individually and collectively calculated on a monthly basis to ensure the adequacy of the Provision for Impairment
Losses in Receivables stated in the Statements of Financial Position, which represent the fair value in accordance to
applicable accounting standards (IFRS 39/PSAK 55).

Provision for Impairment Losses as at end of 2019 amounted to Rp426 billion, declining by 16.3% from Rp509 billion in 2018.
This was in line with improvement of overall asset quality, including improvement in NPF from 1.21% to 0.85%.

TABLE 66_PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019 Comparison with Last Year
Total Percentage

Plrowsw.on for Impa\rment Losses - 509 496 (83) 16.3%

Financing Receivables

Total 509 426 (83) -16.3%

Other Expenses comprise of expenses that are not typical or in direct support the Company’s operational activities and
business growth.

Other Expenses in 2019 amounted to Rp793 billion, whilst in 2018 it was Rp16 billion. The large increase was due to a Rp774
billion one-off Litigation Settlement Related Expense, pursuant to the signing of Settlement Agreement with PT Aryaputra
Teguharta dated 20 November 2019, and detailed on page 273, in the Good Corporate Governance chapter, as well as ltem
37, page 90 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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TABLE 67_OTHER EXPENSES

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Litigation Settlement Related Expenses - 774 774 n/a
Written-off Receivables in the 14 03 9 64.3%
Settlement Process
Provision (Recovery) for Impairment
Losses of Receivables in the 2 4) 6) -300.0%
Settlement Process
Total 16 793 777 4,856.3%

Profit for the Year

TABLE 68_PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Profit Before Tax 1,840 1,092 (748) -40.7%
Income Tax Expense 372 380 8 2.2%
Profit for the Year 1,468 712 (756) -51.5%
Income Tax Expense Ratio 20.2% 34.8% n/a 14.6%

Profit Before Tax was derived from the Total Income, which increased by Rp223 billion from the previous year’s figure,
deducted by Total Expenses, which increased by Rp971 billion over the same period. Thus, the Company’s Profit Before Tax
in 2019 was lower Rp748 billion or 40.7% as compared to 2018, from Rp1,840 billion to Rp1,092 billion in 2019.

Accordingly, Profit for the Year, obtained by deducting Profit Before Tax with Income Tax Expense, was down by 51.5%, from
Rp1,468 billion in 2018 to Rp712 billion in 2019.

Income Tax Expense was up by 2.2%, in spite of the large drop in Profit Before Tax because the Litigation Settlement Related
Expense is non-tax deductible.

The Company is currently applying income tax rate of 20% applicable to public companies with the following criteria, with
which the Company has complied:

e At least 40% of the issued shares are publicly owned;

e The public should consist of at least 300 individuals, each holding less than 5% of the issued shares; and

e These two conditions have to be maintained for at least six months (183 days) in a tax year.
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Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

The difference between net profit and comprehensive profit is due to the accounting standard that requires the Company to
perform calculations on post-employment benefits program, in which losses are presented in the Income Statements and
Other Comprehensive Income as an item that is not classified to profit and loss statement.

In addition, the difference also comes from derivative instruments for risk management purposes that are used to hedge
the currency risk and interest rate risk from loans transactions denominated in foreign currency. This difference is a form of
temporary adjustment and will return to normal when the hedge contract (swaps) reaches deadline.

TABLE 69_COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Profit for the Year 1,468 712 (756) -51.5%
Other Comprehensive Income for the 71 (102) (173) -243.7%
Year - Net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income for 1,539 610 (929) -60.4%
the Year

Owing to a lower Profit for the Year and a negative amount of Other Comprehensive Income for the Year — Net of Tax in 2019,
the Company’s Total Comprehensive Income for the Year declined by 60.4% to Rp610 billion.

Basic Earnings per Share

TABLE 70_BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019

Total Percentage
Profit for the Year 1,468 712 (756) -51.5%
Basic Earnings per Share (full amount) 98 48 (50) -51.0%

Basic Earnings per Share in 2019 was Rp48 per share, a drop by 51.0% from Rp98 per share in 2018.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BFI Finance’s Statement of Cash Flows are classified into Operating, Investing, and Financing Activities, as detailed below:

TABLE 71_STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Comparison with Last Year

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Total Percentage

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 225 755 530 235.6%
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (367) 1,200 1,667 -427.0%
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (158) (89) 69 -43.7%
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 1,055 (1,206) (2,261) -214.3%
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 530 (99) (625) -117.9%
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of Year 755 660 (95) -12.6%

BFI Finance’s Cash and Cash Equivalents recorded on 31 December 2019 was Rp660 billion, dropping by Rp95 billion from
the Rp755 billion recorded on 31 December 2018. The movements of Cash and Cash Equivalents are detailed below.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from/for Operating Activities details movements of cash to fund the Company’s business activities, mainly
disbursement of new financing. In 2019, net cash inflow from operating activities was Rp1,200 billion, in contrast to net
cash outflow of Rp367 billion for operating activities in 2018. This was due to larger customer loan repayment compared to
disbursement of new loans.

Cash Flow for Investing Activities

Cash Flow from/for Investing Activities is derived from the gain and loss from the Company’s investing activities and
spending on capital assets. Net cash outflow for investing activities in 2019 declined by 43.7%, from Rp158 billion in 2018 to
Rp89 billion, due to lower purchases of fixed assets and intangible assets in 2019 compared to 2018.

Cash Flow for Financing Activities

Cash Flow from/for Financing Activities presents the amount of cash derived from financing transactions, including new
funding, debts repayment from funding, and payment of interests on sources of funding. Net cash outflow for financing
activities in 2019 amounted to Rp1,206 billion, compared with net cash inflow from financing activities in 2018 amounting to
Rp1,055 billion. This was owing to the redemption of matured bonds in 2019.
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KEY RATIO ANALYSIS

Profitability

Return on Average Assets (ROAA) and Return on Average Equity (ROAE)

BFI Finance’s ROAA of 5.7% in 2019 remained higher than the industry average of 4.8%. However, this
was lower than 2018’s ROAA of 10.3%, due to lower profitability as explained in discussion on Profit for
the Year on page 172.

Accordingly, ROAE in 2019 went down from 26.4% in 2018 to 11.6% in 2019.

TABLE 72_ROAA AND ROAE

Ratios 2018 2019 Industry Average*
ROAA 10.3% 5.7% 4.8%
ROAE 26.4% 11.6% 14.3%
Profit for the Year / Total Income 29.2% 13.6% 15.8%

* Source: Data of Statistics of Indonesian Financial Institutions issued by OJK

Debt Repayment Ability

The Company calculates the following measurements for determining its ability to pay its Payables:
e Assets Solvency Ratio, measuring how much assets are financed using Liabilities;
e Equity Solvency Ratio, measuring the ratio of liabilities to own capital (Equity); and

e Gearing Ratio, measuring the ratio of debt to own capital (Equity).

Details on the Company’s Debt Repayment Ability are provided below:

TABLE 73_DEBT REPAYMENT ABILITY RATIOS
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Ratios 2018 2019
Solvency

Liabilities to Assets Ratio 0.7 x 0.7 x
Liabilities to Equity Ratio 2.1 x 21 x

Gearing Ratio 1.9x 1.9x
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Receivables Collectibility (Receivables Quality)

The Company classifies its Receivables Collectibility based on the number of days past due. Throughout 2019, the Company
managed to maintain its Collectibility Ratio as indicated by the low NPF ratio as compared to the industry as the Company’s
underwriting standard has been strictly applied by minimizing financing activities in high-risk sectors. Throughout 2019, the
Company encouraged a tighter business coordination involving the collection team, enhanced credit control measures, and
engaged in robust risk management methods to strengthen decision-making process.

The Company’s NPF ratio as at end of 2019, calculated from the ratio of more than 90 days overdue receivables, was 0.85%.
This remained significantly below the industry’s NPF of 2.40%.

TABLE 74_RECEIVABLES COLLECTIBILITY (ASSET QUALITY)

L . Amount of Receivables Percentage
Description (Rp billion) Days Past Due
2018 2019 2018 2019

1 - Current 0 - 10 days* 16,156 16,498 88.08% 89.14%
2a - Special Mention 11 - 60 days” 1,847 1,744 10.07% 9.42%
2b - Special Mention 61 - 90 days 118 108 0.64% 0.59%
3a - Non-current 91 -120 days 81 54 0.44% 0.29%
3b - Non-current 121 - 150 days 51 38 0.27% 0.21%
4 - Doubtful 151 - 180 days 45 34 0.25% 0.18%
5 - Bad >180 days 45 32 0.25% 017%
Total 18,343 18,509 100.00% 100.00%
Non-NPF 0-90 days 18,121 18,351 98.79% 99.15%
NPF >90 days 222 158 1.21% 0.85%

* Based on POJK 35, implemented in 2019, in which classification of Current was modified from 0-30 days to 0-10 days and Special Mention from 31-60 days to 11-60 days

Other Relevant Financial Ratios

The Company consistently monitors its adherence to Bank Indonesia and OJK regulations whenever applicable, including the
regulations on Financial Ratios.

Table 75 compares the performance of the Company’s Other Relevant Financial Ratios with the performance of the financing
industry in 2019, which indicates the Company’s financial ratios against the industry. Based on these criteria, the Company’s
operations in 2019 were sounder than the industry average.

TABLE 75_0THER RELEVANT FINANCIAL RATIOS

Ratio 2018 2019 Industry Average*
Financing-to-Assets Ratio 90.4% 91.4% 87.3%
Equity-to-Paid-up-Capital Ratio 1,554.1% 1,5623.2% 2711%
Operational Efficiency Ratio 64.6% 67.1% 78.9%

* Source: Data of Statistics of Indonesian Financial Institutions issued by OJK
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COMPARISON OF ACHIEVEMENTS AGAINST TARGETS IN 2019

TABLE 76_COMPARISON OF ACHIEVEMENTS AGAINST TARGETS

314-336

338-443

orate supporting annual financial
statements
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Description Target Realization Notes for Budget Achievement
New Financing Growth 5% 2.9% Under. budget,. as discussed in the Business
Overview section
Net Receivables Growth 5% 0.9% Underv budget,y as discussed in the Business
Overview section
Asset Growth 5% 04% Under budget, asldlscuss.ed in the Financial
Performance Review section
Revenue Growth 5% 4.49% Near budget, as @scussed in the Financial
Performance Review section
Same or ) ! ! !
Net Profit Above 2018 -51.5% Under budget, as‘dlscuss'ed in the Financial
) Performance Review section
Net Profit
NPF <15% 0.85% Bette.r than budget,la.sld|scus.sed in the
Receivables Collectibility section
Debt-to-Equity Ratio < 2.5x 19x Better than buldge’[, as discussed in the Capital
Structure section
Dividend Payout Ratio Up to 50% . Same as budget, as discussed in the

Dividends section

* Pending 2020 GMS resolution

As mentioned in the earlier section of this chapter, the unfavorable dynamics in the global economy

throughout 2019, which resulted in weakened global trade and consumption, exacerbated the already-

low commodity prices and softened purchasing power in Indonesia. In addition, political sentiments
in the run up to the national general election in 2019 affected the Company’s business performance

in general.

However, the Company managed to meet and exceed its targets in NPF and Gearing Ratio for 2019,
thanks to the well-managed maintenance of the underwriting process quality as well as collection
efficacy and also the Company’s business strategy to achieve higher yielding products with better

financial returns.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE (CAPITAL ADEQUACY)

Management Policy on Capital Structure

The Company'’s Articles of Association stipulates that the Company’s Authorized Capital stands
at Rp500 billion, consisting of 20 billion shares with a nominal value of Rp25 per share. From
the Authorized Capital, 15,967,115,620 shares have been issued and fully paid-up. Furthermore,
1,002,732,000 shares had been bought back by the Company as at 31 December 2019.

For its capital management, the Company refers to POJK No. 29/POJK.05/2014 on Execution of
Finance Companies’ Businesses—later updated by POJK No. 35/POJK.05/2018 —which stipulates:
e Equity of minimum Rp100 billion;

e Minimum Equity 50% of total Paid-up Capital; and

e Gearing Ratio, i.e., ratio of total financing to equity less subordinated bonds with investments, of

maximum 10 times, both for domestic and international financing.

In line with this regulation, the Company reports the following:

TABLE 77_CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Company Realization

Description (Rp billion) POJK Requirement

2018 2019
Equity Minimum Rp100 billion 6,204 6,080
Ratio of Total Equity to Paid-up Capital Minimum 50% 1,554% 1,523%
Ratio of Financing to Equity Maximum 10 x 1.9x 1.9 x

Material Commitments

Throughout 2019, the Company made no material commitments, apart from those that have been
discussed in the preceding sections.



134-185

management discussion
and analysis

MATERIAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company’s Capital Expenditures in 2019 generally involved investments in Office Equipment and
Land (in the form of advance for Land Acquisition). Funding resources for these Capital Expenditures
were largely derived from the Company’s own funds.

In 2019, Total Capital Expenditures amounted to Rp112 billion, or 0.6% of Total Assets, of which Rp97
billion were completed and Rp15 billion were in progress.

TABLE 78_VALUE OF CAPITAL GOODS INVESTMENT

Value of Capital Goods Investment

Type of Capital Goods Investment

Completed In Progress Total
Land 3 - 3
Building and Infrastructure 4 8 12
Office Equipment 31 7 38
Vehicles 58 - 58
Furniture and Fixtures 1 - 1
Total 97 15 112

There was no significant subsequent event during the period of the release of the Audited Financial
Statements up to the release of the Integrated Annual Report.

179
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DIVIDENDS

USE OF PUBLIC OFFERING PROCEEDS

The Company’s Dividend Policy is summarized as follows:

e All shares have the same right to Dividend, except for Treasury Stock which have no right
to Dividend; and

e Distribution of Dividend can be done once or more than once through an Interim Dividend.

The Company distributed its Dividend from Net Profit in 2018 and 2019 as follows:

TABLE 79_DIVIDEND POLICY AND PAYOUT

Description (Rp billion) 2018 2019
Net Income for the Year 1,468 712
Cash Dividend 733 *
% Cash Dividend to Previous Year Net Income 49.9% *

In 2019, the Company conducted the Public Offering of Rupiah Bonds, namely the Obligasi
Berkelanjutan IV BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2019 Series A and Series B on 25 February 2019,
with nominal value of Rp1 trillion.

To meet POJK No. 30/POJK.04/2015, the Company submitted a Realization Report of Proceeds from
Public Offerings. As disclosed in the prospectus and published additional information required for the
public offerings, the funds were fully used for working capital purposes.

All proceeds from the public offerings have been used to finance the main activities of the Company,
and thus the rest of the funds that have not been used is nil. There were no changes in the use of funds
coming from those public offerings and have been reported to the authorities.
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In carrying out its business activities, the Company and its subsidiary enter into transactions with certain
S related parties, as explained below:
|_
j Related Parties Nature of Relationship Transactions
% Employee Key management personnel e Short-term employees’ benefits

e Post-employment benefits

Transactions with the abovementioned related parties consisted of employee Salaries and Benefits,
amounting to Rp67 billion in 2019, making up 1.6% of Total Expenses in the year. In 2018, the figure was
Rp65 billion (2.1%).

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND

These Transactions with Related Parties, except Salary Expense and Employee Benefits to key
management personnel, are conducted under normal business operations requirements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH POTENTIAL

— GRI Index: 102-25
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IMPACT FROM REGULATORY CHANGES ON THE COMPANY

In 2019, the Government of the Republic of
Indonesia issued ten new regulations related
to the business activities and operations of
multifinance companies, which are as follows:

1.

Government Regulation No. 5 Year 2019 on
Types and Tariffs on Non-Tax State Revenues
Applicable at the Supreme Court and All
Derivative Courts;

Government Regulation No. 28 Year 2019 on
Types and Tariffs on Non-Tax State Revenues
Applicable at the Ministry of Law and

Human Rights;

. Government Regulation No. 71 Year 2019 on

Electronic Transactions and Systems;

Government Regulation No. 4 Year 2019 on
National Consumer Protection Agency;

Government Regulation No. 33 Year 2019
on Administrative Sanctions on Warehouse
Owners Who Have Not Registered

Their Warehouse;

Government Regulation No. 47 Year 2019 on
Empowerment of Financial Services Institutions
and Facilitation and/or Assistance of Financing
for Housing and Residential Areas;

7. POJK No. 26/POJK.01/2019 on Electronic
Licensing within the Financial Services Sector;

8. POJK No. 14/POJK.04/2019 on Amendment
to POJK No. 32/POJK.04/2015 on Increase
of Capital of Public Companies with Pre-
emptive Right;

9. POJK No. 10/POJK.05/2019 on Business
Operations of Sharia Finance Companies
and Sharia Business Units of Finance
Companies; and

10.POJK No. 23/POJK.01/2019 on
Implementation of Anti-Money Laundering and
Prevention of Terrorism Funding in Financial
Services Sector.

The abovementioned regulatory changes affected
the Company’s business activities and operations,
among others, in terms of enhancement of
financing services provided to customers, and
therefore will bear effects on the Company’s
long-term operations and performance. The
Company views that such regulatory changes
have been appropriate in order to foster a healthy
business atmosphere.
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ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES

186-299
good corporate
governance

300-313 31

corporate social
responsibility

4-336
corporate supporting
data

annual financial
statements

Changes to Statements of Financial Accounting Standards

(SFAS) and Interpretations of Financial Accounting

Standards (IFAS)

There were new SFAS and Interpretations of SFAS (IFAS) effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019, as follows:

¢ |Improvement to SFAS 22, “Business Combination”;

e Amendment to SFAS 24 “Employee Benefits”;

e |mprovement to SFAS 26 “Borrowing Costs”;

e Improvements to SFAS 46 “Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised

Losses”; and

* |mprovements to SFAS 66 “Joint Arrangement”.

The implementation of above improvements and amendments did not result in any significant changes to
the Company’s accounting policies and therefore had no significant impact on any amount reported for
current or prior financial years.

The following table shows the impact analysis of the relevant accounting standards to the Company:

TABLE 80_CHANGES OF SFAS THAT AFFECT THE COMPANY

Accounting Summary Reason for Impact on
Standards of Changes the Change the Company

SFAS 22 (2018 This amendment explains that Increase relevance, No impact yet on
Amendment), when one party obtains control reliability, and power the Company and its
“Business over a business that is a joint of information about subsidiary.
Combination” operation, and has the right business combination

to the assets and liabilities of

the liability related to the joint
operation shortly before the date
of acquisition, then it is a business
combination carried out gradually.
As such, the acquirer remeasures
all interests previously held in the
joint operation.

and its impacts.

SFAS 24 (2018
Amendment),
“Employee Benefits
regarding Plan
Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement”

The amendment requires entities
to use updated assumptions

to determine current service
cost and net interest for the
remainder of the period after a
plan amendment, curtailment, or
settlement.

To report changes

in defined benefit
obligations and the
program’s assets that
are defined in a more
comprehensible way.

Change has been
reflected within the
actuarial calculation
for post-employment
benefit liability

(Note 17).
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TABLE 80_CHANGES OF SFAS THAT AFFECT THE COMPANY

company profile

104-121

human capital

122-133

business supporting unit

Accounting Summary Reason for Imoact on the Compan
Standards of Changes the Change P pany
SFAS 26 (2018 The amendment clarifies exceptions The entity must capitalize the No impact yet on
Improvements), of borrowing costs in calculating of cost of borrowing on a qualified the Company and

“Borrowing Costs”

capitalization rates. Borrowing obtained
specifically for obtaining qualifying
asset until substantially all activities
required to prepare qualifying asset

is ready for its intended use or sale

can be fully capitalized. If a specific
borrowing remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, it becomes part of
general borrowings.

asset as part of the cost
of acquisition.

its subsidiary.

SFAS 46 (2018
Improvements),
“Income Taxes

— Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealized Losses”

This adjustment to the requirement

that the tax deduction derived from

the reversal of deferred tax assets is
excluded from future taxable income
estimates clarifies that it is likely that
estimates of future taxable income may
include the recovery of some assets that
exceed the recorded amounts if there is
adequate evidence that the entity is most
likely to achieve this.

Deferred tax assets are
recognized for uncompensated
tax-loss accumulation and
untapped tax credits when a
high likelihood of future taxable
income will be adequate to be
utilized with uncompensated tax
losses and tax credits have not
been utilized.

No impact yet on
the Company and
its subsidiary.

SFAS 66 (2018
Improvements),
“Arrangement”

The amendment clarifies that the party
participating but not having joint control
over a joint operation may obtain joint
control over joint operations, in the
case that the joint operating activities
are a business, the party should not
remeasure its previously held interest in
the joint operation.

To establish the financial
reporting principles of an entity
that has an interest in a jointly
controlled setting (i.e., a joint
arrangement).

No impact yet on
the Company and
its subsidiary.
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2020 BUSINESS PROSPECT

After experiencing a difficult year in 2019, the multifinance industry is expected to see a slight recovery
in 2020. There is an increasing need for multifinance companies to prudently improve their asset quality
and strengthen their financial soundness, as they are gearing towards a more open competition with
less conventional providers of financing, such as peer-to-peer lending platforms.

Indonesia’s GDP growth, targeted at above 5% by the government, will provide a driving force for the
multifinance industry, especially from the household spending sector. The government’s infrastructure
development momentum will also help nurture the heavy equipment financing business. However,

as commodity prices remain under pressure in the global markets, growth in this segment will still be
relatively subdued.

Given these circumstances and adapting to the latest developments in the market, BFI Finance plans to
roll out a new operating model in 2020, in order to generate a more sustainable growth in its business.
With this in mind, the Company seeks to achieve growth targets as stated in Table 81, while maintaining
its asset quality and improving shareholder value.

TABLE 81_2020 BUSINESS TARGETS

Description Target

New Financing Growth Approximately 5% above 2019 achievement
Net Receivables Growth Approximately 5% above 2019 achievement
Asset Growth Approximately 5% above 2019 achievement
Revenue Growth Approximately 7-10% above 2019 achievement
Net Profit Increase more than 75% of 2019 Net Profit
NPF <1.5%

Debt-to-Equity Ratio <2.5x

Dividend Payout Ratio Up to 50%
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Good Corporate Governance Report

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Commissioners

Board of Directors

Performance Assessment of the Board of
Commissioners and Board of Directors
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BFI Finance implements GCG principles in its business by complying with
the applicable rules and regulations and business ethics as its business
foundation. GCG implementation serves as a guideline as well as a
manifestation of the management and employees’ responsibility to all
stakeholders to maintain the Company’s sustainability in the long run.

Legal Basis

BFI Finance is committed to carrying out its business activities healthily,
complying with all the regulations prevailing in the financial services
industry. The Company’s GCG Practices refer to the applicable laws and
regulations, including:

TABLE 82_LEGAL BASIS OF GCG IMPLEMENTATION

No Legal Basis Title
1 Laws of the Republic of 1. Law of the Republic of Indonesia No. 40 Year 2007 on Limited Liability Company
Indonesia, among others: 2 | aw of the Republic of Indonesia No. 8 Year 1995 on Capital Market

3. Law of the Republic of Indonesia No. 20 Year 2001 on Amendment to the Law of the Republic
of Indonesia No. 31 Year 1999 on Eradication of Corruption

4. Law of the Republic of Indonesia No. 8 Year 2010 on Prevention and Eradication of Money
Laundering Crime

5. Law of the Republic of Indonesia No. 21 Year 2011 on Otoritas Jasa Keuangan (OJK)

2 Regulation of the President  Regulation of the President of the Republic of Indonesia No. 9 Year 2009 on
of the Republic of Indonesia, Financing Institution
among others:

3 Government Regulation of 1. Government Regulation No. 43 Year 2011 on Procedures for Submission and Use of Limited
the Republic of Indonesia, Liability Companies’ Names
among others: 2. Government Regulation No. 34 Year 2016 on Income Tax on Income from Transfer of Rights
to Land and/or Building and Sale and Purchase Agreement upon Land and/or Building and
[ts Amendment
3. Government Regulation No. 3 Year 2018 on Types and Tarrifs on Non-Tax State Revenues
Applicable at the Ministry of Finance

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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TABLE 82_LEGAL BASIS OF GCG IMPLEMENTATION

No Legal Basis Title

4 Regulations of the Minister 1. Minister of Finance Regulation No. 84/PMK.012/2006 on Finance Company
of Finance of the Republic of 2. Minister of Finance Regulation No. 130/PMK.010/2012 on Registration of Fiduciary Guarantee
Indonesia, among others: for Finance Companies that Conduct Consumer Financing for Motor Vehicles with Imposition
of Fiduciary Guarantee
3. Minister of Finance Regulation No. 27/PMK.06/2016 on Guidance of the Auction Execution
4. Minister of Finance Regulation No. 101/PMK.010/2016 on Adjustment to the Amount of Non-
Taxable Income

5 OJK Regulations, among 1. OJK Regulation No. 1/POJK.07/2013 on Consumer Protection of Financial Services Sector
others: 2. OJK Regulation No. 2/POJK.04/2013 on Stock Buyback Issued by Issuers or Public

Companies in Significantly Fluctuating Market Condition

3. OJK Regulation No. 3/POJK.05/2013 on Monthly Report of Non-Bank Financial
Services Institution

4. OJK Regulation No. 1/POJK.07/2014 on Alternative Institution for Dispute Settlement in
Financial Services Sector

5. OJK Regulation No. 3/POJK.02/2014 on Procedures of Implementing Levy by Otoritas
Jasa Keuangan

6. OJK Regulation No. 4/POJK.04/2014 on Biling Procedures of Administrative Sanctions in the
Form of Fines in Financial Services Sector

7. OJK Regulation No. 10/POJK.05/2014 on Risk-Level Assessment of Non-Bank Financial
Service Institutions

8. OJK Regulation No. 11/POJK.05/2014 on Direct Examination on Non-Bank Financial
Service Institutions

9. OJK Regulation No. 17/SEOJK.03/2014 on Implementation of Integrated Risk Management
for Financial Conglomerates

10. OJK Regulation No. 28/POJK.05/2014 on Business and Institutional Licensing of
Finance Companies

11. OJK Regulation No. 30/POJK.05/2014 on Good Corporate Governance for
Finance Companies

12. OJK Regulation No. 32/POJK.04/2014 on Plan and Execution of General Meeting of
Shareholders of Public Companies

13. OJK Regulation No. 33/POJK.04/2014 on Board of Directors and Board of Commissioners
of Issuers or Publicly-listed Companies

14. OJK Regulation No. 34/POJK.04/2014 on Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
Issuers or Publicly-listed Companies

15. OJK Regulation No. 35/POJK.04/2014 on Corporate Secretary of Issuers or Publicly-
listed Companies

16. OJK Regulation No. 36/POJK.04/2014 on Continuous Public Offering of Debt Securities and/
or Sukuk (Islamic Bonds)

17. OJK Regulation No. 38/POJK.04/2014 on Capital Increase of Public Companies without
Granting Pre-emptive Rights

18. OJK Regulation No. 1/POJK.05/2015 on Risk Management Implementation for Non-Bank
Financial Service Institutions

19. OJK Regulation No. 7/POJK.04/2015 on Amendment to OJK Regulation No. 4/
POJK.04/2014 on Biling Procedures of Administrative Sanctions in the Form of Fines in
Financial Services Sector

20. OJK Regulation No. 8/POJK.04/2015 on Website of Issuers or Public Companies

21. OJK Regulation No. 21/POJK.04/2015 on Implementation of Governance Guidelines of
Public Companies
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TABLE 82_LEGAL BASIS OF GCG IMPLEMENTATION

No Legal Basis

Title

22.
283.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

20.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41,

42.
43.

44,

45.
46.

OJK Regulation No. 22/POJK.01/2015 on Criminal Investigations in Financial Services Sector
OJK Regulation No. 30/POJK.04/2015 on Realization Report of Proceeds from

Public Offerings

OJK Regulation No. 31/POJK.04/2015 on Disclosure of Information or Material Facts by
Issuers or Publicly-listed Companies

OJK Regulation No. 32/POJK.04/2015 on Capital Increase of Public Companies with
Granting Pre-emptive Rights

OJK Regulation No. 33/POJK.04/2015 on Form and Content of Prospectuses for Capital
Increase of Public Companies by Granting Pre-emptive Rights

OJK Regulation No. 41/POJK.05/2015 on Procedures of the Establishment of Statutory
Manager on Financial Service Institutions

OJK Regulation No. 55/POJK.04/2015 on Establishment and Guidelines on Operations of
the Audit Committee

OJK Regulation No. 56/POJK.04/2015 on Establishment and Guidelines on Drafting of
Internal Audit Charter

OJK Regulation No. 27/POJK.03/2016 on Fit and Proper Test for the Primary Parties of
Financial Services Institution

OJK Regulation No. 29/POJK.04/2016 on Annual Report of Issuers or Publicly-

listed Companies

OJK Regulation No. 76/POJK.07/2016 on Enhancement of Literacy and Financial Inclusion in
the Financial Services Sector for Consumers and/or Communities

OJK Regulation No. 77/POJK.01/2016 on Information Technology-Based Lending and
Borrowing Services

OJK Regulation No. 7/POJK.04/2017 on Registration Statement Documents in Public
Offerings of Equity Securities, Debt Securities or Sukuk

OJK Regulation No. 8/POJK.04/2017 on Form and Content of the Prospectus and the
Abridged Prospectus in a Public Offering of Equity Securities

OJK Regulation No. 9/POJK.04/2017 on Form and Content of the Prospectus and the
Abridged Prospectus in a Public Offering of Debt Securities

OJK Regulation No. 10/POJK.04/2017 on Amendment to OJK Regulation No. 32/
POJK.04/2014 on Plan and Execution of General Meeting of Shareholders of

Public Companies

OJK Regulation No. 11/POJK.04/2017 on Ownership Report or Every Amendment in Share
Ownership of Public Companies

OJK Regulation No. 12/POJK.01/2017 on Implementation of Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorism Financing Program in Financial Services Sector

OJK Regulation No. 13/POJK.03/2017 on Use of Public Accountant and Auditing Firm in
Financial Services Activities

OJK Regulation No. 18/POJK.03/2017 on Reporting and Requesting of Debtors’ Information
through Financial Information Service System

OJK Regulation No. 30/POJK.04/2017 on Buyback of Shares Issued by Public Companies
OJK Regulation No. 51/POJK.04/2017 on Implementation of Sustainable Finance for
Financial Services Institutions, Issuers, and Public Companies

OJK Regulation No. 7/POJK.04/2018 on Submission of Reports via the Electronic Reporting
System for Issuers or Public Companies

OJK Regulation No. 9/POJK.04/2018 on Public Company Takeover

OJK Regulation No. 13/POJK.02/2018 on Digital Finance Innovations in the Financial
Services Sector
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TABLE 82_LEGAL BASIS OF GCG IMPLEMENTATION

No Legal Basis Title

47. OJK Regulation No. 18/POJK.07/2018 on Consumer Complaints Service in the Financial
Services Sector

48. OJK Regulation No. 22/POJK.02/2018 on Amendment to OJK Regulation No. 3/
POJK.02/2014 on Procedures for Implementing OJK Levy

49. OJK Regulation No. 26/POJK.02/2018 on Second Amendment to OJK Regulation No. 4/
POJK.04/2014 on Procedures for Billing of Administrative Penalties in the Form of Fines in
the Financial Services Sector

50. OJK Regulation No. 34/POJK.03/2018 on Reevaluation for Main Parties of Financial
Services Institutions

51. OJK Regulation No. 35/POJK.05/2018 on Execution of Finance Companies’ Businesses

52. OJK Regulation No. 36/POJK.04/2018 on Procedures for Audit in the Capital Market Sector

58. OJK Regulation No. 23/POJK.01/2019 on Amendment to OJK Regulation No. 12/
POJK.01/2017 on Implementation of Anti-Money Laundering and Prevention of Terrorism
Funding in Financial Services Sector

54. OJK Regulation No. 10/POJK.05/2019 on Business Operations of Sharia Finance
Companies and Sharia Business Units of Finance Companies

55. OJK Regulation No. 14/POJK.04/2019 on Amendment to OJK Regulation No. 32/
POJK.04/2015 on Increase of Capital of Public Companies with Preemptive Right

56. OJK Regulation No. 24/POJK.05/2019 on Business Plan of Non-Bank Financial
Service Institutions

57. OJK Regulation No. 26/POJK.01/2019 on Electronic Licensing within the Financial
Services Sector

58. OJK Regulation No. 42/POJK.03/2019 on Credit Information Management Institutions

6 OJK Circulars, among 1. OJK Circular No. 1/SEOJK.07/2014 on Education Program in order to Improve Financial
others: Literacy towards Consumers and/or Community

2. OJK Circular No. 2/SEOQOJK.07/2014 on Consumer Complaint Services and Settlement on
Financial Service Businesses

3. OJK Circular No. 4/SEOJK.02/2014 on Mechanism of Payment of OJK Levy

4. OJK Circular No. 6/SEOJK.04/2014 on Procedures of Electronic Submission of Reports by
Issuers or Public Companies

5. OJK Circular No. 12/SEOJK.07/2014 on Information Delivery for Marketing of Products and/
or Financial Services

6. OJK Circular No. 14/SEOJK.07/2014 on Confidentiality and Security of Consumer’s Private
Data and/or Information

7. OJK Circular No. 4/SEOJK.05/2015 on Risk-Level Assessment of Finance Companies

OJK Circular No. 14/SEOJK.03/2015 on Implementation of Integrated Risk Management for
Financial Conglomerates

9. OJK Circular No. 17/SEOJK.05/2015 on Appointment of Public Accountant, Actuary, and/or
Independent Appraiser as the Examiner of Non-Bank Financial Services Institution

10. OJK Circular No. 32/SEOJK.04/2015 on Governance Guidelines of Public Companies
11. OJK Circular No. 1/SEOJK.05/2016 on Financial Soundness of Finance Companies
12. OJK Circular No. 2/SEOJK.05/2016 on Financial Soundness of Sharia Financing

13. OJK Circular No. 3/SEOJK.05/2016 on Monthly Report of Finance Companies

14. OJK Circular No. 4/SEOJK.05/2016 on Monthly Report of Sharia Finance Companies and
Finance Companies’ Sharia Business Units
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TABLE 82_LEGAL BASIS OF GCG IMPLEMENTATION

No Legal Basis

Title

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

OJK Circular No. 10/SEOJK.05/2016 on Implementation Guidelines of Risk Management
and Self-Assessment Report of Risk Management Implementation for Non-Bank Financial
Services Institutions

OJK Circular No. 15/SEOJK.05/2016 on Good Corporate Governance Application Report for
Finance Companies

OJK Circular No. 30/SEOJK.04/2016 on Form and Content of Annual Reports of Issuers or
Public Companies

OJK Circular No. 31/SEOJK.05/2016 on Fit and Proper Test for the Main Parties of Non-Bank
Financial Institutions

OJK Circular No. 6/SEOJK.05/2017 on Premium-Rate Determination or Contribution in the
Businesses of Property Insurance and Motor Vehicles Insurance in 2017

OJK Circular No. 30/SEOJK.07/2017 on Implementation of Activities in order to Increase
Financial Literacy in Financial Services Sector

OJK Circular No. 31/SEOJK.07/2017 on Implementation of Activities in order to Increase
Financial Inclusion in Financial Services Sector

. OJK Circular No. 36/SEOQJK.03/2017 on Procedures for the Use of Public Accountant

Services and Public Accountant Firm in Financial Services Activities

OJK Circular No. 37/SEQJK.05/2017 on Guidelines for Implementation of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorism Financing Program in the Non-Bank Financial

Industry Sector

OJK Circular No. 38/SEOJK.05/2017 on Guidelines for the Immediate Blocking of Customer
Funds in the Financial Services Sector whose Identity is Listed on the List of Suspected
Terrorists and Terrorist Organizations

OJK Circular No. 50/SEOJK.03/2017 on Reporting and Requesting of Debtors’ Information
through Financial Information Service System

OJK Circular No. 17/SEOJK.07/2018 on Guidelines for Implementing Consumer Complaints
Service in the Financial Services Sector

OJK Circular No. 15/SEOJK.05/2019 on Reassessment for Main Parties of Non-Bank
Financial Service Institutions

OJK Circular No. 23/SEOJK.05/2019 on Business Plan of Finance Companies and Sharia
Finance Companies

OJK Circular No. 26/SEOJK.05/2019 on Amendment to OJK Circular No. 3/SEOJK.05/2016
on Monthly Report of Finance Companies

OJK Circular No. 27/SEOJK.05/2019 on Amendment to OJK Circular No. 4/SEOJK.05/2016
on Monthly Report of Finance Companies and Sharia Business Unit of Finance Companies

7 Regulations of the Capital
Market and Financial
Institutions Supervisory
Agency (“‘Bapepam-LK?”;
now OJK) and Bapepam-
LK Chairman Decisions,
among others:

Bapepam-LK Regulation No. IX.J.1, Attachment of Bapepam-LK Chairman Decision
Number: KEP-179/BL/2008 dated 14 May 2008 on Summary of Articles of Association of
Companies that Conduct Public Offerings of Equity Securities and Publicly-listed Companies
Bapepam-LK Regulation No. X.K.2, Attachment of Bapepam-LK Chairman Decision
Number: KEP-346/BL/2011 dated 5 July 2011 on Submission of Periodical Financial
Statements of Issuers or Publicly-listed Companies

Bapepam-LK Regulation No. VIIL.G.7, Attachment of Bapepam-LK Chairman Decision
Number: KEP-347/BL/2012 dated 25 June 2012 on Presentation and Disclosure of Financial
Statements of Issuers or Publicly-listed Companies

8 Decision Letter of the
Board of Directors of PT
Bursa Efek Indonesia
(Indonesia Stock Exchange),
among others:

Decision Letter of the Board of Directors of PT Bursa Efek Indonesia (Indonesia Stock Exchange)
No. Kep-00183/BEI/12-2018 on the Amendment to Regulation No. I-A on Listing of Shares and
Equity-Based Securities Other Than Shares Issued by Listed Companies.
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In addition to the rules listed above, the Company also refers to several GCG guidelines, including:

e General Guidelines on GCG in Indonesia, first published by KNKG in 1999 and has been revised twice since, in 2001 and
2006, as a reference in developing GCG implementation and management;

¢ Indonesian Corporate Governance Roadmap, published by OJK; and

e The Company’s articles of association.

Main Principles

BFI Finance applies the following GCG principles in its business activities in all organizational levels:

TABLE 83_MAIN GCG PRINCIPLES

No. GCG Principle

Implementation

1

Transparency

Transparency in the decision-making
process and in the availability and
disclosure of relevant information
regarding the Company that is easy
to be accessed by stakeholders,

in accordance with the laws and
regulations in the financing industry,
as well as the standards, principles,
and practices of financing business

BFI Finance ensures that its business management is made transparent to all
stakeholders. The transparency principle is actualized by sharing all relevant information
to shareholders, and implemented through:

e Preparation and publication of the Integrated Annual Report;

e Preparation and explanation the Company’s work programs;

e Preparation of routine financial statements that include quarterly and annual
financial statements;

e Publication of information disclosure reports on the Company’s business
activities; and

e Utilization of the Company’s website to deliver information to shareholders and
other stakeholders.

2 Accountability Clear job description for all employees, underlining the basic functions of all governance
Clarity in the functions and bodies. All of the Company’s governance bodies have a clear description of their rights
responsibilities of the Company’s and obligations, functions and responsibilities, and authority in every policy of the
governance bodies to ensure the Company. This principle is applied in the division of duties between the Company’s
transparency, appropriateness, governance bodies, including the description of duties and authority of the GMS, the
effectiveness, and efficiency of the ~ BOC, the BOD, along with their respective performance indicators.

Company’s performance
3 Responsibility BFI Finance is committed to carrying out CSR in line with the needs of society and its

Conformity of the Company’s
management to the rules and
regulations in financing sector,
ethical values, as well as the
standards, principles, and practices
of financing business

business sustainability. The responsibility principle is implemented through:

e Compliance with the Company’s articles of association and applicable laws
and regulations;

e Fulfillment of tax responsibilities in a proper and timely manner;
e Execution of CSR activities and programs; and
e Execution of information disclosure in accordance with applicable regulations.

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3
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No. GCG Principle Implementation
4 Independence BFI Finance considers independence in business management as an absolute must
The Company is managed in decision-making process, fully adhering to the regulations from relevant authorities,
independently and professionally without intervention from external parties. In implementing this independence principle,
and free from conflict of interest BFI Finance and all stakeholders strive to achieve welfare. The implementation of the
and pressures from any party which ~ independence principle strengthens professionalism, creativity, and independence in
are not in line with the laws and business management. The principles are implemented by:
regulations in the financing industry @ Respecting the rights, obligations, duties, authority, and responsibilities of each
and ethical values as well as the governance body of the Company’s;
standards, principles, and practices e Shareholders’ and the BOC'’s non-intervention in the management of the Company;
offinancing business * The BOG, the BOD, and all employees always strive to avoid conflict of interest in
making decisions; and
e Any activity with conflict of interest in the Company must first be approved by an
independent shareholder or their representative who has been given authority in the
GMS as per regulations, and its conduct must obey the stipulations regarding conflict
of interest.
5 Fairness BFI Finance upholds fairness and complies with all the regulations related to

Equality, balance, and fairness in
fulfilling the rights of Stakeholders
arising from the agreement, rules
and regulations, and ethical values
as well as the standards, principles,
and practices of financing business

stakeholders protection. BFI Finance is committed to treating all employees fairly and
without prejudice arising from difference in ethnicity, religion, origin, gender or other
aspects irrelevant to their performance. This principle is implemented through these
policies:
e All shareholders have the right to attend GMS and to vote in accordance with the
applicable provisions;
e BFI Finance reports partner-related information to stakeholders in a fair and
transparent manner; and
e BFI Finance provides a good and comfortable working condition for all employees
to the best of its ability and in line with the applicable rules and regulations,
with periodic performance assessments and equal promotion opportunity for
all employees.

GCG Purposes

BFI Finance implements the GCG principles to achieve, among others, the following:

1. Optimization of the Company’s values for stakeholders;

2. Improvement of the Company’s professional, effective, and efficient management;

3. Improvement of the Company’s governance bodies’ and its subordinates’ compliance with the strict ethical standards,
rules and regulations, and awareness of social responsibility;

4. Establishment of a financially sound business that is reliable and has a competitive edge in order to maintain its presence
and sustainability to achieve the Company’s aims and objectives; and

5. Improvement of the Company’s contribution to the national economy.

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3
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GCG Structure and Mechanism

The GCG structure at BFI Finance consists of the following governance bodies in the chart below:

GRAPH 16_ GCG STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

Transparency, Accountability, Responsibility, Independence, and Fairness

¢ Audit Committee
¢ Risk Management
Committee Sharia Supervisory

¢ Nomination and Board
Remuneration Committee

Internal Control Internal Audit Corporate Risk

System Secretary Management Sompless

GMS; execution of functions, authorities, and responsibilities of the BOC and the BOD; meetings

between the BOC and the BOD; execution of policies and strategies in line with vision and
mission; human capital development and training; and implementation of CSR programs.

Business sustainability, efficiency, benefits for society, compliance with regulations, consumer
protection, and environmental protection.

122-133

business supporting unit

The presence of the Company’s governance bodies is one of the manifestations of GCG implementation for ensuring a
clear mapping of functions or business activities to avoid conflict of interest and to ensure that the checks and balances

mechanism takes place effectively and efficiently.

GCG implementation mechanism by the governance bodies in BFI Finance’s GCG structure takes place within a GCG
infrastructure framework, which includes policies, procedures, management information system, and main duties as well as
functions of each governance body. GCG infrastructure is evaluated regularly and adjusted to the latest developments and
best practices in GCG. The latest enhancement in BFI Finance’s GCG Infrastructure was ratified in the BOD Decree No. 24/

SK/WK/2011 dated 24 October 2011 on Corporate Governance Procedures in the Company.

— GRIIndex: 102-18, 102-22, 102-23, 102-26
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TABLE 84_BFI FINANCE’S GCG INFRASTRUCTURE

No GCG Infrastructure Form

197

1 Code of Business Principles which is
applicable to all BFI Finance’s activities,

e Company Core Values (GREAT) as the guidelines on the Company’s culture
and behavior

both in head office and branch offices, and e Corporate Responsibilities

to all employees

e Business Integrity

e Operational Activity Commitment
e Company Regulations 2016-2018

2 Procedures to carry out duties and
responsibilities of Board of Commissioners
and Board of Directors

Guidelines for Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors (Board Manual)

3 Completeness and procedures of carrying e Audit Committee Charter
out the duties of committees and work e Guidelines for Nomination and Remuneration Committee

units in conducting internal control function

4 External audit, internal audit, compliance e Code of Business Principles
function implementation procedures e GREAT (Company Core Values), guidelines on behavior and culture, applicable

and policies

to all employees
Company Regulations 2016-2018
Internal Audit Charter

Various applicable policies, decrees, SOPs, and guidelines in the Company

5 Policy of transparency of financial and non- e Quarterly Financial Statements

financial conditions

Mid-year Financial Statements
Annual Financial Statements
Integrated Annual Report (featuring both Annual Report and

Sustainability Report)

GCG Roadmap

As a public company, BFI Finance complies with OJK’s
directive on the Indonesian Corporate Governance
Roadmap published in 2014.

The Company’s GCG Roadmap is implicitly stated and
aligned to OJK’s directive in every practice. Several
important structures and mechanisms, which are still
ongoing in GCG implementation at the Company, are
Code of Business Principles, Board Manual for the BOC
and BOD as well as the Committees, and supporting
procedures and policies such as Whistleblowing System,
Risk Management Policy, and Compliance Policy.

As a part of GCG Roadmap, the Company continuously
evaluates, updates, and disseminates its GCG practices to
all employees.

GCG Implementation Focus

In 2019, the Company’s focus of GCG implementation was on:

1.

Improving compliance with various relevant internal and
external regulations. This step was carried out in all
organizational levels of the Company through various
communications media at the Company, including
dissemination of new regulations in the Company to the
employees via intranet and other internal media.

Improving quality of outcome (implementation result) that

meets the expectations of stakeholders. This is a result of
GCG principles’ implementation, supported by adequate

GCG structure and infrastructure. This outcome includes

qualitative and quantitative aspects, as follows:

a. Adequate transparency of reports;

b. Compliance with rules and regulations;

c. Consumer protection;

d. Audit independence; and

e. The Company’s performance and achievements,
financially and operationally.
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GCG Implementation Evaluation

BFI Finance evaluates GCG implementation to ensure that its implementation quality is improving to bring positive impacts to
the Company’s business process continuity.

In 2019, BFI Finance conducted an internal assessment of its GCG achievements. The result shows that the Company’s
Management has implemented GCG satisfactorily, as summed up in the following table:

TABLE 85_GCG IMPLEMENTATION EVALUATION

Aspect Positive Factors Negative
Factors

Governance Structure

The Number, Composition, In general, in accordance with the complexity and size of the Company and in None

Integrity and Competence compliance with applicable regulations.

of Members of BOC,

Committees under the BOC,

Sharia Supervisory Board,

and BOD

Organizational Structure In general, BFI Finance has an organizational structure consisting of directorates, None
divisions, departments, and work functions/units with clear division of duties,
responsibilities, and authorities. It support s business and operational activities as
well as internal control implementation.

Policies and Procedures BFI Finance has policies and procedures consisting of the Board Manual for the None
BOC and the BOD, Audit Committee Charter, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Charter, Internal Audit Charter, Code of Business Principles,
Operational Commitments, Company Regulations 2016-2018, Company Core
Values and Employee Behavior Guidelines (GREAT), and Information Technology
(IT) Procedures and Policies.

Information System BFI Finance runs a Management Information System (MIS) to support operational None
and business activities as well as internal control system.

Governance Process

Execution of Duties and In general, the duties and responsibilities of the BOC, the BOD, and Committees None

Responsibilities under the BOC have been satisfactorily executed.

Human Capital BFI Finance has improved the human capital quantity and quality by intensifying None
training and focusing on human capital availability and adequacy.

Risk Management BFI Finance regularly reviews risk limit, risk measuring, monitoring and control, None
and internal model assessment of risk management.

Customer Complaint BFI Finance manages and resolves customer complaint according to Service None
Level Agreement’s stipulations.

Compliance and BFI Finance continuously upholds discipline and compliance culture in None

Discipline Cultures all organizational levels by establishing the Integrity Pact to increase legal
enforcement, to carry out anti-fraud policy and Whistleblowing System, to apply
GREAT as the Company’s Core Values and Employee Behavior Guidelines, and to
strengthen the Internal Control System.

CSR BFI Finance has carried out CSR as part of its business process. None
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TABLE 85_GCG IMPLEMENTATION EVALUATION

Aspect Positive Factors Negative
Factors

Governance Result
Recommendations from the ~ Recommendations from the BOC and the Committees under the BOC are None
BOC and Committees under ~ documented in the meeting minutes and serve as input and considerations for the
the BOC BOD in making a decision.
Conflict of Interest There is no indication of any conflict of interest that bring losses to the Company. None
Information Disclosure to BFI Finance has disclosed its financial and non-financial information to public None
the Public transparently, including through quarterly financial statements, mid-year financial

statements, annual financial statements, and Integrated Annual Report (consisting

of Annual Report and Sustainability Report).
Company Performance BFI Finance records growth and positive performance, reflected from the growth None

in its assets and profit and a Non-Performing Financing (NPF) figure that remains

well controlled.

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The GMS is a governance body of the Company
that possesses certain powers not granted to the
BOC or the BOD within the limits prescribed by
the laws and/or the articles of association.

The GMS is a forum for shareholders to influence
the Company, as well as a forum for the BOC and
the BOD to report and be held accountable for the
implementation of their tasks and performance to
the shareholders.

The GMS consists of the Annual GMS (AGMS)
and the Extraordinary GMS (EGMS), which are
held in accordance with the articles of association
and the prevailing regulations.

GMS Authority

The GMS has the authority, among other
things, to:

1. Appoint and dismiss the members of the BOC
and the BOD based on policies/guidelines
established by shareholders;

2. Ratify or decide on issues that are necessary
to safeguard the long-term and short-term
interests of the Company in accordance with
the prevailing regulations and/or the articles of
association;

3. Approve the annual report including financial
statements as well as approve the BOC'’s
supervisory duties in accordance with the
prevailing regulations and/or the articles of
association;

4. Set targets and assess the performance of the
BOD and the BOG;

5. Determine remuneration for the BOC and
the BOD;
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6. Appoint he oxterna public Shareholders’ Rights 2019 GMS

accounting firm;

7. Approve or reject the Company’s
work plan and budget, and the long-
term work plan;

propose the agendas for every GMS
that will be held by the Company,
propose the appointment of members

8. Make decisions through a of the BOC and/or the BOD of the
process that is open, fair, and

accountable; and

Company, especially for measures
that require prior approval of the
9. Implement GCG in accordance with shareholders in accordance with the

its authority and remits. regulatory requirements and prepare
notifications and summons for the GMS
implementation, including the agendas
to be discussed at the GMS.

of association.

Procedures of 2019 GMS Implementation

supporting unit

The shareholders have the right to Implementation

In 2019, BFI Finance held 1 AGMS
and 1 EGMS. The Company’s GMS
were held in accordance with the
prevailing regulations and its articles

BFI Finance held the 2019 GMS by adhering to the procedures for GMS implementation stipulated in OJK Regulation No. 32/

POJK.04/2014 on the Planning and Implementation of GMS for Public Companies (POJK 32), as follows

TABLE 86_AGMS AND EGMS PROCEDURES

No. Activity Implementation of AGMS & EGMS 28 May 2019 Legal Basis
1. Notification of plan and agendas BFI Finance’s letter No. Corp. Corp/Sjn/L/IV/19-0070 dated Article 8 POJK 32
of the GMS to OJK no later than 11 April 2019 to OJK, with copies sent to the Chief Executive

five business days before the GMS Supervisor of Non-Bank Financial Institutions (IKNB), IDX, KSEI,
announcement, excluding the date of PT Sirca Datapro Perdana, and CaMEL
GMS announcement

2. Notice to Shareholders, at a * Advertisement Notice for the GMS Plan to the Shareholders on
minimum on: Bisnis Indonesia on 18 April 2019
e One Indonesian daily newspaper of e Notice of the GMS Plan on IDX website on 18 April 2019
national circulation; « Notice of the GMS Plan on the Company’s website in
¢ |DX website; and Indonesian and English on 18 April 2019

e The Company’s website, in
Indonesian and foreign languages,
at a minimum in English, at least 14
days prior to the GMS, excluding
the date of announcement and the
date of summons

Article 10
paragraphs (1)
and (4) POJK 32
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TABLE 86_AGMS AND EGMS PROCEDURES
No. Activity Implementation of AGMS & EGMS 28 May 2019 Legal Basis
3. Notice to OJK on the Announcement  BFI Finance’s letter No. Corp/SJN/L/IV/19-0074 dated 18 April Article 10
of Notice to Shareholders on 2019 to OJK, Chief Executive Supervisor of IKNB, and IDX, paragraph (8)
newspapers no later than two working with copies sent to IKNB and CaMEL accompanied by proof POJK 32
days after the announcement of Advertisement of Notice to Shareholders
the GMS
4. The final date for the Shareholders Requested the Registrar (PT Sirca Datapro Perdana) to recap the  Article 19
Register, at 16:00 pm, one day prior to names of shareholders entitled to attend the GMS paragraph (2)
the date of GMS Summons POJK 32
5. Notice to Shareholders, at a e Advertisement Notice for the GMS Plan to the Shareholders on  Article 13
minimum on: Bisnis Indonesia on 6 May 2019 paragraph (3)
e One Indonesian daily newspaper of ® Notice of the GMS Plan on IDX website on 6 May 2019 POJK 32
national circulation; e Notice of the GMS Plan on the Company’s website in
¢ |DX website; and Indonesian and English on 6 May 2019
e The Company’s website, in
Indonesian and foreign languages,
at a minimum in English, at least 21
days prior to the GMS, excluding
the date of announcement and the
date of summons.
6. Notice to OJK on the Announcement  BFI Finance’s letter No. Corp./Sjn/L/V/19-0082 dated 6 May Article 13
of GMS Summons to the 2019, to OJK, with copies sent to the Chief Executive Supervisor  paragraph (7)
Shareholders on newspapers no of IKNB, IDX, and PT Sirca Datapro Perdana, and CaMEL, POJK 32
later than two working days after the  accompanied by Proof Advertisement of Notice to Shareholders
GMS summons
7. GMS implementation On 28 May 2019 at The Dharmawangsa Hotel Jakarta,
JI. Brawijaya Raya No. 26, Kebayoran Baru, South
Jakarta, Indonesia
8. Delivery of the GMS Minutes to OJK  BFI Finance’s letter No. Corp./Sjn/L/V/19-0091 dated 29 May Articles 32 and
no later than 30 days after the date of 2019 to OJK, with copies sent to IDX, KSEI, Sirca Datapro 33 POJK 32
the GMS Perdana, and CaMEL
9. Announcement of the GMS Minutes, e Advertisement Notice for the AGMS Minutes to the Article 34
at a minimum on: Shareholders on Bisnis Indonesia on 31 May 2019 paragraph (2)
e One Indonesian daily newspaper of * Notice of the GMS Minutes on IDX website on 31 May 2019 POJK 32
national circulation; * Notice of the GMS Minutes on the Company’s website in
e |DX website; and Indonesian and English on 31 May 2019
e The Company’s website,
in Indonesian and foreign
languages, at a minimum in
English, at least two days prior
to the GMS, excluding the date
of announcement and the date
of summons
10. Notice to OJK on the Summary of the BFI Finance letter No. Corp/SJN/L/V/19-0093 dated 31 Article 34
Minutes of Meeting Announcement, May 2019 to OJK, with copies sent to IDX, KSEI, PT Sirca paragraph (7)
no later than two working days after ~ Datapro Perdana, and CaMEL, upon receipt of the newspaper POUJK 32

the announcement in the newspapers
on the Summary of the Minutes

of Meeting

advertisement on the announcement of the Summary of the
Minutes of Meeting on 31 May 2019

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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Description and Resolutions of 2019 GMS

AGMS and the EGMS of the Company were convened

on Tuesday, 28 May 2019, at the Dharmawangsa Hotel,
Nusantara Ballroom, Jalan Brawijaya Raya No. 26, South
Jakarta, and the Summary of the Minutes of each meeting is
as follows:

I. Attending Members of the BOC, the BOD, and the
Sharia Supervisory Board of the Company

The AGMS and EGMS were attended by the Company’s
BOC, BOD, and Sharia Supervisory Board:

Board of Commissioners
1. Kusmayanto Kadiman President Commissioner
Johanes Sutrisno Independent Commissioner
Alfonso Napitupulu Independent Commissioner

Emmy Yuhassarie Independent Commissioner

o K~ 0D

Sunata Tjiterosampurno  Commissioner

Board of Directors

1. Francis Lay Sioe Ho President Director

2. Sudjono Director
3. Sutadi Director
4. Andrew Adiwijanto Director
5. Sigit Hendra Gunawan  Independent Director

Sharia Supervisory Board
1. Asrori S. Karni

2. Helda Rahmi Sina

Chairman

Member

Il. Quorum of the Attending Shareholders

e AGMS was attended by shareholders and/or their proxies
representing 11,451,669,579 shares or 76.53% of the total
14,964,383,620 shares less shares held by the Company
amounting to 1,002,732,000 shares (Treasury Stock);

EGMS was attended by shareholders and/or their
proxies representing of 13.361,432,515 shares or 89.29%
of the total 14,964,383,620 shares less shares held

by the Company amounting to 1,002,732,000 shares
(Treasury Stock);

Each was in accordance with the Company’s Register
of Shareholders as of 3 May 2019 at 16:00 West
Indonesia Time.

lll. Opportunity for Questions and Answers

In the AGMS and EGMS, in each agenda, the shareholders
who were present had been given opportunities to ask
questions and/or opinion regarding the matter that was
discussed (except in the fifth agenda of the AGMS, there was
no questions and answers session as it was only a report),
but there was no one raising questions or opinions.

IV. Mechanism of Adopting Resolution

Resolutions in each agenda of AGMS and EGMS were taken
by voting, except in the fifth agenda of the AGMS, there was
no decision-making as it was only a report.

V. Resolutions of the AGMS

Resolutions in the First Agenda:

1. To accept and approve the Company’s Annual Report for
the financial year ended 31 December 2018, including the
Financial Statements and the Supervisory Report from
the Company’s BOC.
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2. To accept and ratify the Company’s Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 as audited
by the Public Accountants “Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi
Bambang & Rekan” whose Report No. 00078/2.1068/

AU.1/09/1042-1/1/11/2019 expressed “Unmodified” opinion,

thus granting release and discharge (acquit et de charge)
to the Company’s BOD and the BOC in relation to their
duties of management and supervision conducted during
the financial year of 2018, provided that such actions are
reflected in the Company’s Financial Statements for the
financial year 2018.

Basis for the resolutions reached in the First Agenda:

Votes: Affirmative — 11,444,161,976 (99.93%); Abstain — 0
(0%); Objection - 7,507,600 (0.07%).

Resolutions in the Second Agenda:

1. To distribute as cash dividend of Rp49.00 per share
from the profit of the year of the Company attributable to
shareholders registered in the Company’s Shareholders
Register on 17 June 2019 at 16:00 West Indonesia Time
and will be paid to the shareholders of the Company on
28 June 2019.

2. To set aside the amount of Rp13,693,000,000 as
mandatory reserves, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association and Law No. 40/2007 on Limited
Liability Company.

3. The balance of 2018 net profit will be booked as Retained
Earnings to strengthen the Company’s capital.

4. To grant power and authority to the BOD of the Company
with the right of substitution to execute the utilization of
net profit as mentioned above, including to set up the
schedule and procedures of the distribution of cash
dividend to the shareholders of the Company and, in
relation to such, to authorize the BOD of the Company
to attend and meet the authorities, one way or another
without any exception.
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Basis for the resolutions reached in the Second Agenda:

Votes: Affirmative — 11,427,880,776 (99.79%);
Abstain — 0 (0%); Objection — 23,788,800 (0.21%).

Resolution in the Third Agenda:

To authorize the Company’s BOC to appoint a Public
Accountant registered with the Financial Services Authority
to audit the Company’s Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019 and to authorize the
Company’s BOC to determine the amount of honorarium
and other requirements relating to the appointment of the
Public Accountant.

Basis for the resolution reached in the Third Agenda:

Votes: Affirmative — 11,372,298,776 (99.31%);
Abstain — 16,281,200 (0.14%);
Objection — 63,089,600 (0.55%).

Resolutions in the Fourth Agenda:

1. To establish the remuneration of the BOC with the
total amount of Rp363,100,000 per month after tax
for 2019, and to give tantiem for 2018 amounting to
Rp3,125,000,000.

2. To delegate the authority to the BOC in determining the
amount for each member of the BOC and to adjust the
total amount of remuneration in the event of changes in
the number of members of the BOC in 2019.

3. To approve the granting of power and authority to the
BOC in determining the division of duties and authority
to each BOD member as well as to determine the
remuneration for BOD members.

Basis for the resolutions reached in the Fourth Agenda:

Votes: Affirmative — 11,427,880,776 (99.79%);
Abstain — 0 (0%); Objection — 23,788,800 (0.21%).
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Resolutions in the Fifth Agenda:

The report to the shareholders or their proxies is as

follows: Realization of proceeds use of Penawaran Umum
Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan 1V BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2018 and Obligasi Berkelanjutan IV
BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2019 after deduction
by issuance costs have been used for working capital

in accordance with the plan of fund utilization set out in

the Prospectus.

Basis for the resolution reached in the Fifth Agenda:

As the fifth agenda is only a report, there was no questions
and answers session or decision-making performed.

Resolutions in the Sixth Agenda:

1. To approve the amendment of article 3 of the Company’s
Articles of Association on Aim and Purpose and Business
Activities in order to comply with the stipulations in
the Government Regulation No. 24/2018 on Online
Integrated Business Licensing Services and by abiding
with the regulations relevant to the Company’s business,
especially OJK Regulation No. 35/POJK.05/2018.

2. To grant power and authority to the Company’s BOD
with the right of substitution to restate and rearrange this
in a notarial deed (including to amend and/or append) in
relation to said amendment of the Company’s Articles of
Association, to apply for approval and submit notification
to the authorities, and therefore are granted the right to
sign other application letters and documents, in short,
to perform all activities required by the provisions of the
Articles of Association and the prevailing regulations.

Basis for the resolutions reached in the Sixth Agenda:

Votes: Affirmative — 10,372,662,451 (90.58%);
Abstain — 0 (0%); Objection — 1,079,007,125 (9.42%).

VI. Resolutions of the EGMS

Resolutions in the First Agenda:

1. To approve to transfer and/or pledge more than 50%
of the Company’s assets, in 1 or more transaction(s),
whether in relation to one another or separate which
takes place within 1 financial year or more, including in
order to issue Bonds, Medium Term Notes, and other
type of borrowings, banking facilities, securitization as
well as to earn other form of debts from various funding
sources needed for the Company’s normal course of
business activities.

2. To approve to grant power and authority to the
Company’s BOD to perform the above actions, including
the issuance of Bonds, Medium Term Notes (MTN) and
other type of borrowings, banking facilities, securitization
as well as to earn other form of debts from various
funding sources needed for the Company’s normal
course of business activities, with regard to the terms
and provisions of the legislation in force, particularly the
Capital Market regulations.

Basis for the resolutions reached in the First Agenda:

Votes: Affirmative — 12,306,144,190 (92.10%);
Abstain - 0 (0%); Objection — 1,055,288,325 (7.90%).

Resolutions in the Second Agenda:

1. To approve the reappointment of Sudjono and Sutadi as
Directors, starting from the closing of the Meeting up to a
period of 5 years as stipulated in the Company’s Articles
of Association. Thus, the composition of the Company’s
BOC and BOD starting from the closing of the Meeting is
as follows:
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BOC
PRESIDENT COMMISSIONER Kusmayanto Kadiman

INDEPENDENT COMMISSIONER Johanes Sutrisno
INDEPENDENT COMMISSIONER Emmy Yuhassarie
INDEPENDENT COMMISSIONER Alfonso Napitupulu
COMMISSIONER Dominic John Picone
COMMISSIONER Sunata Tjiterosampurno
COMMISSIONER Cornellius Henry Kho

BOD

PRESIDENT DIRECTOR Francis Lay Sioe Ho
DIRECTOR Sudjono

DIRECTOR Sutadi

DIRECTOR Andrew Adiwijanto

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR Sigit Hendra Gunawan

2. To grant power and authority to the BOD of the Company
with the right of substitution to declare the changes to
the composition of the Company’s BOD and BOC in a
separate deed in front a Notary and to submit notification
and registration to the competent authority, and to
perform all necessary actions in accordance with the
prevailing laws and regulations in relation to the resolution
of the Meeting agenda.

Basis for the resolutions reached in the

Second Agenda:

Votes: Affirmative — 11,910,372,090 (89.14%);

Abstain — 0 (0%); Objection — 1,451,060,425 (10.86%).

VII. Distribution of Cash Dividend

With respect to the distribution of cash dividend for the
financial year of 2018, the schedule of cash dividend
distribution for the financial year of 2018 is as follows:

TABLE 87_SCHEDULE OF CASH DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

No. Description Date

1. GMS Implementation 28 May
2019

2. Submission of the Summary of GMS 29 May
Minutes to OJK and IDX 2019

3. Announcement at IDX, 31 May
Advertisements of GMS Resolutions, 2019

and Schedule of Dividend
Distribution on newspapers
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TABLE 87_SCHEDULE OF CASH DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

No. Description Date

4, Cum Cash Dividend at the Regular 13 June
and Negotiation Markets 2019

5. Ex-Cash Dividend at the Regular and 14 June
Negotiation Markets 2019

6. Cum Cash Dividend at the 17 June
Cash Market 2019

7. Ex-Cash Dividend at the 18 June
Cash Market 2019

8. Recording date for Cash Dividend 17 June
2019

9. Payment of Cash Dividend 28 June
2019

Procedures of cash dividend distribution are as follows:

1.

Payment of Cash Dividend will be conducted to the
Shareholders whose names are listed on the Company’s
Shareholders Register dated 17 June 2019, at 16:00 West
Indonesia Time.

2. As for Shareholders whose shares are registered in the

collective custody of KSEI, the Company will pay Cash
Dividend through KSEI to the accounts of KSEI Account
Holders and the Company’s Shareholders shall receive
the payment from the Account Holders.

Shareholders who still have their shares in letters (physical
form) and wish to have the Cash Dividend payment
transferred to their bank accounts, are able to inform their
bank’s name and address as well as the Shareholders’
own account numbers, with copy of ID with the same
address used for the Register of Shareholders and

copy of Taxpayers Identity Number by letter with stamp
duty of Rp6,000 which must be received on 17 June
2019 at 16:00 West Indonesia Time, addressed to the
Company’s Registrar:

PT Sirca Datapro Perdana, Jalan Johar No. 18, Menteng,
Jakarta 10340, Phone: (62-21) 390 0645, 390 5920

The payable Cash Dividend will be subject to tax in
accordance with the Indonesian tax regulations.
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5. As for Shareholders of Domestic Corporate Taxpayers b. For Shareholders whose shares are registered in
in the form of legal entity that have not delivered the the collective custody of KSEI, they are required to
Taxpayers ldentification Number, they are required to send their Domicile Certificate to KSEI through the
deliver the Taxpayers Identification Number to KSEI or participant appointed by each Shareholder.
the Registrar on 17 June 2019 at the latest, at 16:00 West c. Original Domicile Certificate must be received by
Indonesia Time. In case of the Taxpayers Identification KSEI or the Registrar on 17 June 2019 at the latest
Number being non-existent, Cash Dividend paid to the at 16:00 West Indonesia Time or in accordance with
Domestic Corporate Taxpayers will be subject to 30% the provisions set up by KSEI for shares in collective
Income Tax. custody. In case of Domicile Certificate is non-existent,
6. As for foreign Shareholders who are Foreign Taxpayers, Cash Dividend paid to foreign Shareholders will be
the tax deduction shall be adapted to the Tax Regulations subject to 20% tax deduction.

in force. Foreign Taxpayers are required to send/submit

their original Domicile Certificate as follows:

a. Shareholders who still have their shares in letters
(physical form) are required to send their original
Domicile Certificate to PT Sirca Datapro Perdana.

2019 GMS Resolutions and Their Implementation

All of the 2019 GMS resolutions, i.e. those of the AGMS and EGMS held on 28 May 2019, were fully implemented in 2019, as

stated in Tables 88, 89, 90 and 91 below.

TABLE 88_IMPLEMENTATION OF 28 MAY 2019 AGMS RESOLUTIONS

, Implemented (Y) Reason For Not

Resolution .
Not Implemented (N) Implementing

To accept and approve the Company’s Annual Report for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018, including the Financial Statements and the Y -
Supervisory Report from the Company’s BOC.
To accept and ratify the Company’s Financial Statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 as audited by the Public Accountants
“Tanubrata Sutanto Fahmi Bambang & Rekan” whose Report No.
00078/2.1068/AU.1/09/1042-1/1/11/2019 expressed “Unmodified” opinion, v )

thus granting release and discharge (acquit et de charge) to the Company’s
BOD and the BOC in relation to their duties of management and supervision
conducted during the financial year of 2018, provided that such actions are
reflected in the Company’s Financial Statements for the financial year 2018.
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TABLE 88_IMPLEMENTATION OF 28 MAY 2019 AGMS RESOLUTIONS

) Implemented (Y) Reason For Not

Resolution .
Not Implemented (N) Implementing

To distribute as cash dividend of Rp49.00 per share from the profit of the year

of the Company attributable to shareholders registered in the Company’s v )

Shareholders Register on 17 June 2019 at 16:00 West Indonesia Time and
will be paid to the shareholders of the Company on 28 June 2019.

To set aside the amount of Rp13,693,000,000 as mandatory reserves,
pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and Law No. 40/2007 on Y -
Limited Liability Company.

The balance of 2018 net profit will be booked as Retained Earnings to

strengthen the Company’s capital. Y )
To grant power and authority to the BOD of the Company with the right

of substitution to execute the utilization of net profit as mentioned above,

including to set up the schedule and procedures of the distribution of cash v )

dividend to the shareholders of the Company and, in relation to such, to
authorize the BOD of the Company to attend and meet the authorities, one
way or another without any exception.

To authorize the Company’s BOC to appoint a Public Accountant registered

with the Financial Services Authority to audit the Company’s Financial

Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and to authorize Y -
the Company’s BOC to determine the amount of honorarium and other

requirements relating to the appointment of the Public Accountant.

To establish the remuneration of the BOC with the total amount of
Rp363,100,000 per month after tax for 2019, and to give tantiem for 2018 Y -
amounting to Rp3,125,000,000.

To delegate the authority to the BOC in determining the amount for each
member of the BOC and to adjust the total amount of remuneration in the Y -
event of changes in the number of members of the BOC in 2019.

To approve the granting of power and authority to the BOC in determining the
division of duties and authority to each BOD member as well as to determine Y -
the remuneration for BOD members.

The report to the shareholders or their proxies is as follows: Realization of
proceeds use of Penawaran Umum Berkelanjutan Obligasi Berkelanjutan

IV BFI Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2018 and Obligasi Berkelanjutan

IV BFl Finance Indonesia Tahap Il Tahun 2019 after deduction by issuance
costs have been used for working capital in accordance with the plan of fund
utilization set out in the Prospectus.

To approve the amendment of article 3 of the Company’s Articles of
Association on Aim and Purpose and Business Activities in order to comply
with the stipulations in the Government Regulation No. 24/2018 on Online
Integrated Business Licensing Services and by abiding with the regulations
relevant to the Company’s business, especially OJK Regulation No. 35/
POJK.05/2018.

To grant power and authority to the Company’s BOD with the right of

substitution to restate and rearrange this in a notarial deed (including to

amend and/or append) in relation to said amendment of the Company’s

Articles of Association, to apply for approval and submit notification to the Y -
authorities, and therefore are granted the right to sign other application letters

and documents, in short, to perform all activities required by the provisions of

the Articles of Association and the prevailing regulations.

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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TABLE 89_IMPLEMENTATION OF 28 MAY 2019 EGMS RESOLUTIONS

Resolution

104-121

human capital

Implemented (Y)
Not Implemented (N)

122-133

business supporting unit

Reason For Not
Implementing

To approve to transfer and/or pledge more than 50% of the Company’s
assets, in 1 or more transaction(s), whether in relation to one another or
separate which takes place within 1 financial year or more, including in

order to issue Bonds, Medium Term Notes, and other type of borrowings, Y -
banking facilities, securitization as well as to earn other form of debts

from various funding sources needed for the Company’s normal course of

business activities.

To approve to grant power and authority to the Company’s BOD to perform

the above actions, including the issuance of Bonds, Medium Term Notes

(MTN) and other type of borrowings, banking facilities, securitization as

well as to earn other form of debts from various funding sources needed Y -
for the Company’s normal course of business activities, with regard to

the terms and provisions of the legislation in force, particularly the Capital

Market regulations.

To approve the reappointment of Sudjono and Sutadi as Directors, starting

from the closing of the Meeting up to a period of 5 (five) years as stipulated

in the Company’s Articles of Association. Thus, the composition of the

Company’s BOC and BOD starting from the closing of the Meeting is

as follows:

BOC

President Commissioner: Kusmayanto Kadiman

Independent Commissioner: Johanes Sutrisno

Independent Commissioner: Emmy Yuhassarie

Independent Commissioner: Alfonso Napitupulu

Commissioner: Dominic John Picone Y -
Commissioner: Sunata Tjiterosampurno

Commissioner: Cornellius Henry Kho

BOD

President Director: Francis Lay Sioe Ho

Director: Sudjono

Director: Sutadi

Director: Andrew Adiwijanto

Independent Director: Sigit Hendra Gunawan

To grant power and authority to the BOD of the Company with the right of

substitution to declare the changes to the composition of the Company’s

BOD and BOC in a separate deed in front a Notary and to submit notification v )

and registration to the competent authority, and to perform all necessary
actions in accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations in relation to
the resolution of the Meeting agenda.
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TABLE 90_IMPLEMENTATION OF 17 APRIL 2018 AGMS RESOLUTIONS

Implemented (Y)

Resolution
Not Implemented (N)

338-443

annual financial
statements

Reason For Not
Implementing

To accept and approve the Company’s Annual Report for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017, including the Financial Statements and the Y
Supervisory Report from the Company’s BOC.

To accept and ratify the Company’s Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 as audited by the Public Accountants “Tanubrata
Sutanto Fahmi & Rekan” whose Report Number: 160/2.B008/FH.1/12.17
expressed “Unqualified” opinion, thus granting release and discharge (acquit

et de charge) to the Company’s BOD and the BOC in relation to their duties

of management and supervision conducted during the financial year of 2017,
provided that such actions are reflected in the Company’s Financial Statements
for the financial year 2017.

To distribute as cash dividend of Rp39 of the net profit of the Company.

Amount of final cash dividend to be distributed is Rp16 after it is calculated

by interim cash dividend of Rp23 per share which had been distributed

to the shareholders on 18 December 2017. The final cash dividend will be Y
distributed to shareholders registered in the Register of shareholders of the

Company on 27 April 2018 at 16:00 p.m. and will be paid to the shareholders

of the Company on 18 May 2018.

To set aside the amount of Rp13,574,000,000 as mandatory reserves,
pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and Law No. 40 Year 2007 Y
on Limited Liability Company.

The balance of 2017 net profit will be booked as Retained Earnings to

strengthen the Company’s capital. Y )
To give power and authority to the BOD of the Company with the right of

substitution to execute the utilization of net profit as mentioned above,

including to set up the schedule and procedures of the distribution of cash v )

dividend to the shareholders of the Company and, in relation to such, to
authorize the BOD of the Company to attend and meet the authorities, one
way or another without any exception.

To authorize the Company’s BOC to appoint a Public Accountant registered

with the Financial Services Authority to audit the Company’s Financial

Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 and to authorize Y
the Company’s BOC to determine the amount of honorarium and other

requirements relating to the appointment of the Public Accountant.

To establish the remuneration of the BOC with the total amount of
Rp344,100,000 per month after tax for 2018 increase from the previous year Y
and to give tantiem for 2017 amounting to Rp2,882,000,000.

To delegate the authority to the BOC in determining the amount for each
member of the BOC and to adjust the total amount of remuneration in the Y
event of changes in the number of members of the BOC in 2018.

To approve the provision of power and authority to the BOC Meeting in
determining the division of duties and authority to each member of the BOD Y
as well as to determine the remuneration for members of the BOD.

The report to the shareholders or or their proxies is as follows: Realization

of proceeds use of Public Offering of Obligasi Berkelanjutan lll BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap Ill Tahun 2017 and Obligasi Berkelanjutan Ill BFI Finance
Indonesia Tahap IV Tahun 2018 after deducting by issuance costs have been
used for working capital in accordance with the plan of fund utilization set out
in the Prospectus.

PT BFI FINANCE INDONESIA Tbk - 2019 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

209



210

TABLE 91_IMPLEMENTATION OF 17 APRIL 2018 EGMS RESOLUTIONS

Implemented (Y)

Resolution
Not Implemented (N)

Reason For Not
Implementing

Approval to transfer and/or pledge more than 50% of the Company’s assets,
in 1 (one) or more transaction(s), whether in relation to one another or
separate, for the issuance of bonds, banking facilities, securitization or other
form of debts needed for the normal course of business activities.

Approval to give power and authority to the Company’s BOD to perform

the above actions, including the issuance of Bonds, Medium Term Notes

(MTN) and other type of borrowings, banking facilities, securitization as

well as to earn other form of debts from various funding sources needed Y
for the Company’s normal course of business activities, with regard to

the terms and provisions of the legislation in force, particularly the Capital

Market regulations.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Main Tasks

The Board of Commissioners (BOC) is the
representative body of the shareholders to
perform the supervision function based on the
articles of association and to provide advices

to the BOD in carrying out the Company’s
management as well as to monitor the efficacy of
GCG practices implementation in the Company.

The supervision function of the BOC takes place
on two levels, namely:

1. Performance Level, i.e. supervision through
joint meetings with the BOD to obtain
explanation, provide assessment and
recommendation to the BOD, if necessary, and
submit a proposal in the GMS to gain approval.

2. Conformance Level, i.e. implementation of
supervision function at a later stage to ensure
compliance with the applicable regulations and
the articles of association.

In exercising supervision:

e The BOC acts collectively as the Board,
not individually.

The BOC is not allowed to perform executive
tasks, which are the authority of the BOD,
except in certain circumstances and for a
specific period of time, based on the articles of
association or GMS resolution.

Supervision is conducted on the decisions
that have been taken (ex-post facto) and/or
decisions to be taken (preventive basis).

Supervision is conducted not only by receiving
information from the BOD or the GMS, but
can also be conducted by taking other actions
according to accurate and reliable information
from other sources, where the action is
conducted collectively.

The BOC is not merely approving or
disapproving of the acts that require the
approval of the BOC, but also supervising
all business and corporate aspects of

the Company.
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e The BOC shall ensure that the
Company’s Annual Report includes
information about the identity of
the BOC members, its main tasks,
concurrent positions assumed
by the BOC members in other
companies, membership of the
BOC members in the Company’s
Committees and in committees
of other companies, including
meetings conducted in one year
(BOC meeting and joint meetings
with the BOD), and the amount
of honorarium received from
the Company as well as other
information as stipulated in the
applicable regulations.

e The BOC shall ensure that the
BOD have followed up on audit
findings and recommendations
of the Company’s internal audit
unit, external audit, and the
results of OJK and/or other
authorities supervision.

BOC Appointment and
Dismissal Procedures

Based on the Company’s articles of
association, the BOC members are
appointed by the GMS for a period of
five years, without prejudice to the right
of the GMS to dismiss them at any
time before the tenure expires, if the
BOC members are deemed to be able
to carry out their duties as stipulated
in the articles of association and/or
the GMS resolutions. Such dismissal
is applicable after the close of the

meeting, unless otherwise determined
by the GMS. After their term of

office ends, BOC members may be
reappointed by the GMS.

Prior to their appointment as BOC
members, candidates are required

to meet the requirements set by OJK
Regulation No. 34/POJK.03/2018 on
Reevaluation for Main Parties of Financial
Services Institutions, in conjunction with
POJK No. 27/POJK.03/2016 dated 22
July 2016 on Fit and Proper Test for
Key Personnel in Financial Services
Institutions. Candidates are required to
pass the fit and proper test conducted
by the fit and proper test team formed
by OJK. If a candidate for the BOC has
previously passed the fit and proper
test before OJK entry regulations came
into force, and is still serving or has
been hired by the Company at the
time OJK entry regulations came into
force, the results of the fit and proper
of the member of the BOC will be
declared valid.

All current BOC members have
complied with the applicable
regulations. If the term of office of
the BOC members has reached

its end, the BOC members may

be reappointed, depending on

a performance assessment
overseen by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. After
assessment, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will make
a recommendation, should the
Committee decide to authorize the
BOC members’ reappointment.
Based on the recommendations of
the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee, the BOC will propose the
reappointment of the BOC members at
the GMS.

Criteria for BOC
Members Appointment

Those who may be appointed as
BOC members are those who meet
the requirements as specified by the
applicable regulations in the Capital
Market, and that upon appointment
and during their period:

1. Have a good character, morals,
and integrity;

2. Are legally competent;

3. Within five years prior to appointment
and during their tenure:

a. Have not been
declared bankrupt;

b. Have never been members of
a BOD and/or a BOC that has
been found guilty for causing a
company to go bankrupt;

c. Have never been convicted of a
criminal act that is detrimental
to the country’s financial sector
and/or related to the financial
sector; and
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d. Have never been members of a
BOD and/or a BOC that during
their period:

* Have never conducted
an AGMS;

¢ Have been members of a
BOD and/or a BOC whose
accountability had not been
accepted by the GMS or had
not provided accountability

BOC Composition and Profile

as members of a BOD and/or
a BOC to the GMS; and

Have never caused a
company that obtained

a license, approval, or
registration of OJK to not
fulfill the obligation to submit
annual reports and/or
financial reports to OJK;

e. Have commitment to
complying with the prevailing
regulations; and

f.  Have the required knowledge
and/or expertise in the
Company’s field of business.

Have met the additional criteria
for the Commissioner who is also
an Independent Commissioner,
as outlined in the Independent
Commissioners section in

this chapter.

In 2019, there were no changes to the number and composition of the BOC of BFI Finance. The composition of the

currently presiding BOC is based on the Company’s Minutes of EGMS by means of the Deed No. 59 dated 28 May 2019

in conjunction with the Deed of Meeting Resolutions Statement No. 56 dated 25 June 2019 prepared before Aulia Taufani,
S.H., Notary in South Jakarta Administrative City, accepted and recorded in the database of the Legal Entity Administration
System’s database of the Ministry of Law and Human Rights of the Republic of Indonesia No. AHU-AH.01.03-0291918 dated
28 June 2019.

The BOC composition since 25 June 2019 is provided in Table 92.

TABLE 92_B0OC COMPOSITION

- Country of . Number and Date of the Decree of
No. Name Position Residence Date of Appointment End of Term the Fit and Proper Test
1. Kusmayanto President Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2021 GMS Decision of Bapepam-LK Chairman
Kadiman Commissioner Minutes No. 43 dated Number: KEP-473/BL/2011 dated
25 April 2016 11 August 2011
2. Johanes Sutrisno  Commissioner Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2021 GMS Decision of the Board of
(Independent) Minutes No. 43 dated Commissioners of OJK No. KEP-
25 April 2016 2020/NB.1/2014 dated 4 August 2014
3. Alfonso Napitupulu Commissioner Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2021 GMS Decision of the Board of
(Independent) Minutes No. 43 dated Commissioners of OJK No. KEP-
25 April 2016 2019/NB.1/2014 dated 4 August 2014
4.  Emmy Yuhassarie Commissioner Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2021 GMS Decision of Bapepam-LK Chairman
(Independent) Minutes No. 43 dated Number: KEP-474/BL/2011 dated 11
25 April 2016 August 2011
5. Dominic John Commissioner Singapore Deed of the EGMS 2020 GMS Decision of the Board of

Picone

Minutes No. 44 dated
15 April 2015

Commissioners of OJK No. Kep-283-
NB.11-2015 dated 1 June 2015




186-299

good corporate
governance

TABLE 92_B0OC COMPOSITION
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- Country of . Number and Date of the Decree of
No. Name Position Residence Date of Appointment End of Term the Fit and Proper Test
6. Sunata Commissioner Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2020 GMS Decision of the Board of
Tjiterosampurno Minutes No. 44 dated Commissioners of OJK No. Kep-282-
15 April 2015 NB.11-2015 dated 1 June 2015
7. Cornellius Henry Commissioner Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2022 GMS Decision of the Board of

Kho

Minutes No. 25 dated
18 April 2017

Commissioners of OJK No. Kep-263/
NB.11/2017 dated 24 May 2017

Profiles of each member of the BOC are presented in the BOC Profile section in the Company Profile chapter (pages 70-73).

BOC Guidelines and
Work Rules

In carrying out its duties and
responsibilities, the BOC refers to its
guidelines and work rules prescribed
in the Board Manual of the BOC and
the BOD of PT BFI Finance Indonesia
Tbk (Board Manual), issued on

1 December 2015.

The Board Manual is a reference and/
or guideline for the BOC and the BOD
in performing the duties and functions
as the respective governance bodies
of the Company, to improve the quality
and effectiveness of the working
relationship between the BOC and the
BOD; and to implement the principles
of GCG.

The Board Manual is a compilation
of the principles of corporate laws,
the prevailing regulations, and the
Company’s articles of association
governing the working procedures
of the BOC and the BOD. The Board
Manual is the result of codification of
the various regulations applicable to

the Company and best practices in the
application of GCG principles.

Related to the BOC, the Board
Manual stipulates:

1. Function of the BOC

2. Membership of the BOC

@

General Guidelines for
BOC Supervision

Positional Ethics of the BOC
Duties and Authorities of the BOC
Rights of the BOC

Meetings of the BOC

Performance Evaluation of the BOC

© © N o o >

Supporting Bodies of the BOC

10.Working Relationships between the
BOC and the BOD

BOC Positional Ethics

The positional ethics of the BOC
govern the ethical principles for the

BOC in carrying out its duties and
responsibilities, relating to:

1. Exemplary Quality

2. Compliance with Laws
and Regulations

3. Company Opportunities

4. Information Disclosure and
Confidentiality

5. Conflict of Interest
6. Personal Benefits

7. Business Ethics and Anticorruption

BOC Duties and
Authorities

In general, the BOC is responsible for
the following aspects:

1. EBvaluating and approving the
overall business strategy, annual
budgets, risk management policy,
as well as other actions of the BOD
that require the approval of the
BOC as stipulated in the articles of
association of the Company;
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2. Ensuring that decisions and capital
expenditures take into account
the long-term strategic goals of
the Company;

3. In performing their duties, the BOC
is not allowed to intervene in making
decisions on operations, except
on credit approval that is under the
authority of the BOD;

4. Ensuring that the Company
maintains financial integrity
according to business plans that
have been approved by the BOC
and the GMS resolutions; and

5. Ensuring the implementation of
GCG in all activities of the Company
at all levels and in any partnerships
is in accordance with the GCG
guidelines and code of conduct.

Detail of the duties and responsibilities
for each Commissioner and
Independent Commissioner are

as follows:

1. President Commissioner:

¢ Reviewing comprehensively the
implementation of GCG;

¢ Reviewing macro-economy and
financial issues;

e Communicating with controlling
shareholders related to issues
involving shareholders; and

¢ |eading the meetings of the
BOC and joint meetings with
the BOD.

— GRI Index: 405-1

. Independent Commissioner:

e Supervising and providing advice
on the implementation of GCG;

¢ Reviewing and submitting
recommendations on any
proposals from the BOD that
require approval from the BOC
and the Audit Committee;

e Providing advice on legal issues;

¢ Providing advice on
regulations; and

e Maintaining good relations with
the regulators.

. Commissioner:

e Supervising the management
policies of the Company;

¢ Advising the BOD in good
faith, full of responsibility and
prudence; and

e Monitoring the decisions that
already exist or that have not
been taken by the BOD of
the Company.

BOC Rights

Generally, the rights of BOC are
as follows:

1. To have access to the Company’s

information in a timely, complete
and transparent manner;

. To obtain explanation from the

BOD and/or Members of the BOD
about all things requested by the
BOC members;

3. To temporarily terminate the BOD
in accordance with the articles
of association;

4. To establish an Audit Committee
and other committees (if deemed
necessary) to address the needs
and ability of the Company;

5. To hire experts in carrying out
its duties for a certain period at
the expense of the Company,
if necessary;

6. To attend BOD meetings
and to provide comment on
matters discussed;

7. To receive compensation and
benefits/facilities including
compensation for after office
activities; and

8. To make use of the
Company’s facilities.

Diversity of BOC
Composition

The composition of the Company’s
BOC reflects the diversity of its
members, in terms of education,
work experience, age, and skills.
Each member of the BOC is highly
competent with regards to enhancing
the Company’s performance. The
diversity of the BOC members has
been met implicitly with the fulfillment
of the requirements for appointment
as BOC members, one of which is
having expertise in the areas that are
important for the Company.
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TABLE 93_DIVERSITY OF BOC COMPOSITION

Name Position

314-336 338-443
corporate supporting annual financial
data statements

Competency

Kusmayanto Kadiman President Commissioner

Education: Doctor of Philosophy and Bachelor of
Engineering Physics

Work Experience: President Commissioner, Vice President
Commissioner, Commissioner, Director, ITB Rector, Minister
of Reseach and Technology of the Republic of Indonesia

Age: 65

Johanes Sutrisno Independent Commissioner

Education: Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.) and
Bachelor of Economics in Management

Work Experience: President Commissioner, Vice President
Commissioner, Commissioner, Director, Audit Committee,
Risk Management Committee

Age: 68

Alfonso Napitupulu Independent Commissioner

Education: Bachelor of Law

Work Experience: Lawyer, Legal Consultant, Independent
Commissioner, Commissioner, President Director

Age: 69

Emmy Yuhassarie Independent Commissioner

Education: Master of Law and Bachelor of Law

Work Experience: Legal Consultant, Lecturer,
Commissioner, Independent Commissioner, Risk
Management Committee, Audit Committee

Age: 69

Dominic John Picone Commissioner

Education: Bachelor’s Degree in Laws and Bachelor of
Commerce (Honours-Finance)

Work Experience: various positions in consumer

finance, investment banking, investment services, Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk
Management Committee, Commissioner, Managing Director,
Head of Financial Services

Age: 41

6.

Sunata Tjiterosampurno ~ Commissioner

Education: Master of Finance and Bachelor of

Business Administration

Work Experience: Consultant, Director, Managing
Director, Commissioner, President Commissioner, Audit
Committee, Risk Management Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Age: 47

7.

Cornellius Henry Kho Commissioner

Education: Bachelor of Economics in Accounting

Work Experience: Auditor, Financial Supervisor, Director,
Corporate Secretary

Age: 53

BOC Independence

members, members of the BOD, and/or controlling shareholders, or relationships with the Company, except Kusmayanto

Kadiman (President Commissioner), Dominic John Picone, and Sunata Tjiterosampurno, who have financial relationships with
the controlling shareholder. Meanwhile, Cornellius Henry Kho (Commissioner) is not an Independent Commissioner since he

has previously served as Director of the Company and therefore does not fulfill one of the requirements as an Independent
Commissioner, i.e. not a person who works or has an authority and responsibility to plan, lead, control, or supervise the
Company’s activities within six months before serving as Commissioner.

__ GRIl Index: 405-1
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TABLE 94_BOC INDEPENDENCE

Financial Relationship with Family Relationship with

Name Commissioners Directors Sﬁz::l:cc))llliine%s Commissioners Directors S(Iig:‘etll;tc’allliine%s

Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Kusmayanto Kadiman - V - v v - - v - v - v
Johanes Sutrisno - v - V - V - v - V - Vv
Alfonso Napitupulu - v - v - v - v - v - vV
Emmy Yuhassarie - v - V - v - v - vV - Vv
Dominic John Picone - v - v v - - v - Vv - v
Sunata Tjiterosampurno - V - v v - - v - v - vV
Cornellius Henry Kho - v - v - v - v - v - v

TABLE 95_BOC SHARE OWNERSHIP AMOUNTING TO 5% OR MORE FROM THE PAID-UP CAPITAL

Name Position BFI Finance Other Company
Kusmayanto Kadiman President Commissioner None None
Johanes Sutrisno Independent Commissioner None None
Alfonso Napitupulu Independent Commissioner None None
Emmy Yuhassarie Independent Commissioner None None
Dominic John Picone Commissioner None None
Sunata Tjiterosampurno Commissioner None None
Cornellius Henry Kho Commissioner None None

Independent
Commissioners

Independent Commissioners
encourage the creation of a working
environment that is objective, placing
fairness and equality among various
interests, including the interests

of minority shareholders and

other stakeholders. Independent
Commissioner should be free of any
conflict of interest.

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3

Independent Commissioners,

based on OJK Regulation No. 33/
POJK.04/2014 (POJK 33), are
members of the BOC from outside the
Issuer or Public Company who meet
the requirements as Commissioners.
In the event that the BOC consists of
two members, one of them must be an
Independent Commissioner.

In addition to meeting the requirement
provisions as a member of the BOC, an
Independent Commissioner shall meet
the following requirements:

e |s not a person who is working or
having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing, controlling,
or supervising the activities of
the Company within six months,
except for reappointment as an
Independent Commissioner of the
Company in subsequent periods;
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e Does not own shares; either directly
or indirectly; in the Company;

¢ |s not affiliated with the Company,
the BOC, members of the BOD
or major shareholders of the
Company; and

e Does not have any business
relationship; either directly or
indirectly; relating to the Company’s
business activities.

¢ Independent Commissioners
who have served for two periods
may be reappointed for the next
period providing the Independent
Commissioners declares to remain
independent to the GMS.

The Statement of Independence
submitted by the Independent
Commissioners shall be disclosed in
the Company’s annual report. In the
case of Independent Commissioners
serving on the Audit Committee,

the Independent Commissioners
concerned can only be reappointed
for one more term as member of the
Audit Committee.
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Based on the Board Manual of the BOC and the BOD, former members of the
BOD or executive officers of the Company or parties who have a relationship
with the Company, which may affect their ability to act independently, cannot be
appointed as Independent Commissioners of the Company, before completing a
cooling off period of one year.

Of the seven BOC members who were in office as at 31 December 2019, three
of them are Independent Commissioners. This means more than 40% of the total
BOC members are Independent Commissioners, which is in accordance with
OJK provisions.

Independent Commissioners’ Statement
of Independence

With reference to Article 25 of POJK 33, each of the Company’s Independent
Commissioners, namely Johanes Sutrisno, Alfonso Napitupulu and Emmy
Yuhassarie, have met the criteria as Independent Commissioners. Each of

them has no financial, relationship management, share ownership and/or family
relationship with BOC members, BOD and/or Controlling Shareholders or
relationships with the Company, which may affect their ability to act independently
as stipulated in the implementation of GCG for finance companies.

Concurrent Positions of BOC Members

TABLE 96_CONCURRENT POSITIONS OF BOC MEMBERS

Name Position Position Outside the Company
Kusmayanto Kadiman President Commissioner e Vice President Commissioner of PT Adaro Power
e Commissioner of PT Tamaris Hidro
e President Commissioner of PT Setiabudi Investment Management
e Commissioner of PT Profesional Telekomunikasi Indonesia (Protelindo)
Johanes Sutrisno Commissioner None
(Independent)

— GRI'Index: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3



218

TABLE 96_CONCURRENT POSITIONS OF BOC MEMBERS

Name

Position

Position Outside the Company

Alfonso Napitupulu

Commissioner
(Independent)

e Managing Partner at Alfonso Napitupulu & Partners Law Office
e President Director of PT Nana Mandiri Dwikarya

e Independent Commissioner of PT. Asuransi Bringin Sejahtera
Artamakmur (BRINS General Insurance)

e Advisory Board of Indonesian Advocates Association (PERADI)

Emmy Yuhassarie

Commissioner
(Independent)

None

Dominic John Picone

Commissioner

Managing Director and Partner of TPG Capital (S) Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Sunata Tjiterosampurno

Commissioner

e Managing Director of Northstar Advisors Pte. Ltd.
e President Commissioner of PT Bukit Makmur Mandiri Utama
e  Commissioner of PT Delta Dunia Makmur Tbk

e Commissioner of PT Trimegah Sekuritas Indonesia Tbk

Cornellius Henry Kho

Commissioner

None

Based on Article 24 of POJK 33,

BOC members may hold concurrent
positions as members of the BOD

at no more than two other issuers or
other public companies, and BOC
members at two issuers or other
public companies at most. In the case
of none of the BOC members holds

a position as a member of the BOD,
BOC members concerned may hold
concurrent positions as BOC members
at no more than four issuers or other
public companies. BOC members
may serve as a member of at most five
committees of public companies and
also serve as a member of the BOD or
the BOC.

Based on Article 18 of POJK No.
30/POJK.05/2014 regarding GCG

for Finance Companies (POJK 30),
BOC members are prohibited from
concurrent positions as BOC members
in more than three other companies.
This excludes concurrent positions as
referred to in paragraph (4) if the non-
independent BOC members running
the functional tasks of the Company’s
shareholders, which are legal entities
in the business group; and/or BOC
members holding positions at non-
profit organizations or agencies,
ensuring that those concerned do not
neglect their duties and responsibilities
as the BOC members.

All BOC members of the Company
presiding up to 31 December 2019
have complied with the provisions of
POJK 30 and POJK 38.

BOC’s Duties Execution

In 2019, the BOC carried out among
others the following activities:

1. Conducted 11 BOC Meetings;

2. Conducted 11 BOC-BOD
Joint Meetings;

3. Approved the appointment of the
public accounting firm for FY2019;

4. Approved the Company’s 2019
operating plan; and

5. Approved the BOD’s proposal for
the 2019 budget.
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In 2019, the BOC made the
following recommendations:

1. Proposed nomination of the
Company’s internal officials;

2. Proposed remuneration for the BOD
and the BOG;

3. Appointment of the public
accounting firm;

4. Follow up on the public accounting
firm’s recommendations;

5. Proposed the appropriation of the
FY2018 earnings;

6. Proposed matters related to the
strategic business activities;

7. Proposed the handling of the
legal case brought up by a former
shareholder; and

8. Approved the actions of the BOD as
stipulated in the Company’s articles
of association.

Policy on Determining
BOC Remuneration

The Company’s remuneration policy
is based on Article 113 of the Limited
Liability Company Law and Article

17 paragraph (10) of the Company’s
articles of association. These laws
describe the amount of salary or
honorarium and allowances for

BOC members and the BOD to be
determined by the GMS. However,
the GMS can delegate the authority to
the BOC to establish and approve the
amount of the proposed remuneration.

— GRIlIndex: 102-35, 102-36
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The BOC’s and the BOD’s remunerations are recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, based on the remuneration formula referred to in
the Company’s internal policies, prevailing regulations, and taking into account the
Company’s performance.

GRAPH 17_BOC REMUNERATION MECHANISM

Recommendation of
the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

GMS Approval

BOC Approval Meeting

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s recommendation is submitted
to the BOC and delivered in the GMS. The mechanism for determining the
remuneration for the BOC is as follows:

e The BOD, taking into account the Company’s financial condition, prepares a
proposal for the amount of remuneration for the BOC to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee examines the remuneration
proposal from the BOD and the market conditions for the relevant industry and
business of a comparable size.

e Taking into account the business performance of the Company and its
members’ contributions, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will
make recommendations to the BOC to obtain their approval, in accordance
with the authority granted by the GMS, approves the amount of remuneration,
and determines the distribution of remuneration among the BOC members.
The total remuneration for the BOC and the BOD will be reported to the
Shareholders in the Annual Report of the Company.

BOC’s Remuneration Structure and Amount

The structure of remuneration for all BOC members of the Company for 2019
consists of:

e Honorarium;

e Allowances; and

e Performance bonus.

The AGMS on 28 May 2019 determined that the total amount of the remuneration
of the BOC was Rp363,100,000 per month after tax for FY2019, and determined
to give performance bonus for FY2018 amounting to Rp3,125,000,000. The

total salary and allowances for all BOC members for 2019 thus amounted
to Rp11,917,332,909.
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Orientation Program for New BOC Members

BFI Finance organizes an orientation program for the new BOC members, aiming to enable the new BOC members to
determine the general condition of the Company and be more familiar with the other members, and devise ways to collaborate
as a solid, comprehensive and effective team. Orientation of new BOC members is held in the first BOC meeting attended by
the new members.

BOC Competence Enhancement and Training Programs

The Company allocates a budget for the BOC to attend various training programs and seminars. The list of training programs
in 2019 attended by BOC members is presented in Table 97.

TABLE 97_TRAINING AND SEMINAR FOR BOC COMPETENCE ENHANCEMENT

Name Position Date Title/Theme Location Organizer
Kusmayanto Kadiman  President 25 July 2019 National Seminar “Financing Jakarta APPI
Commissioner Industry Amidst Political and
Economic Upheavals”
Johanes Sutrisno Independent 25 July 2019 National Seminar “Financing Jakarta APPI
Commissioner Industry Amidst Political and
Economic Upheavals”
Alfonso Napitupulu Independent 25 July 2019 National Seminar “Financing Jakarta APPI
Commissioner Industry Amidst Political and
Economic Upheavals”
Emmy Yuhassarie Independent 25 July 2019 National Seminar “Financing Jakarta APPI
Commissioner Industry Amidst Political and

Economic Upheavals”

Dominic John Picone Commissioner 20 September 2019  TPG Asia Partners Meeting Singapore  TPG

30 October 2019 Private Equity Investment & Bangkok Citi
Mid-market M&As

Sunata Tjiterosampurno Commissioner 25 July 2019 National Seminar “Financing Jakarta APPI
Industry Amidst Political and
Economic Upheavals”

Cornellius Henry Kho Commissioner 25 July 2019 National Seminar “Financing Jakarta APPI
Industry Amidst Political and
Economic Upheavals”
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Working Relationship
between the BOC and
the BOD

A good working relationship between
the BOC and the BOD is one of the
most important factors so that each
can work according to its functions
effectively and efficiently. Therefore,
the Company maintains a good
working relationship between the
BOC and the BOD by applying the
following principles:

1. The BOC must respect the functions
and roles of the BOD in managing
the Company as stipulated in the
prevailing regulations and articles of
association of the Company.

2. The BOD must respect the functions
and roles of the BOC in conducting
monitoring and providing policy
advice to the management of
the Company.

3. The working relationship between
the BOC and the BOD is a formal
relationship, always guided
by a standard mechanism or
correspondence that can be
accounted for.

4,

Informal working relationships are
allowed for the BOC members
and BOD members, but cannot
be used as a formal policy before
undergoing the proper mechanism
or correspondence that can be
accounted for.

The BOC reserves the right to gain
access to timely, accurate, and
complete company information.

To obtain further information on a
case, the Board may request such
explanations from officials under
the BOD with prior coordination
with the BOD so as to create a
working relationship between the
BOC and the BOD, so that the
aim of corporate communication
through the one-gate policy can
be achieved.

7. The BOD is responsible for

ensuring that information about the
Company is granted to the BOC in
a timely, accurate, consistent and
complete manner.

Every working relationship between
the BOC and the BOD is an
institutional relationship. In the
sense that the BOC and the BOD
are collective offices that represents
all of its members, so that the
working relationship between
members of the BOC and the BOD
is understood by members of the
BOC and the BOD.

Committees of
the BOC

In carrying out their duties and
responsibilities, the BOC is assisted by
three committees, i.e. Audit Committee,
Risk Management Committee, and
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. Each committee holds
meetings regularly or whenever
deemed necessary. Each committee
consists of the Chairperson from one of
the Independent Commissioners, and
its members, whom are appointed by
the BOC. In 2019, all committees under
the BOC carried out their respective
duties and responsibilities meetings,
according to the mandate given

to them.

The duties of the above three
committees are elaborated in their own
charter. The Committees report directly
to the BOC, and at the Company’s
expenses, each committee is entitled to
ask for advisory service from external
agencies if deemed necessary. The
description of each committee under
the BOC is presented in subsequent
sections in the Good Corporate
Governance chapter (pages 243-257).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Main Tasks

The Board of Directors (BOD) is established

as the Company’s governance body that is

fully responsible for the management of the
Company’s interests and objectives as well as
representing the Company, both in and out of the
court, in every way and for any event.

BOD Appointment and
Dismissal Procedures

Based on the articles of association, BOD members
are appointed by the shareholders at the GMS for

a term commencing on the date of appointment
until the closing of the fifth AGMS, and the BOD
members may be dismissed by the shareholders

at the GMS at any time before their term of

office expires.

Prior to their appointment as BOD members,
candidates are required to meet the requirements
set by OJK Regulation No. 34/POJK.03/2018

on Reevaluation for Main Parties of Financial
Services Institutions, in conjunction with POJK No.
27/POJK.03/2016 dated 22 July 2016 on Fit and
Proper Test for Key Personnel in Financial Services
Institutions. Candidates are required to pass the fit
and proper test conducted by the fit and proper test
team formed by OJK.

All BOD members have complied with the
prevailing regulations. If the term of office of

the BOD members has finished, the BOD
members may be reappointed, depending on

the performance assessment supervised by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. After
the assessment, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall make a recommendation if the
Committee authorizes the reappointment of those
members whose period has finished. Based on
the recommmendations of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee, the BOC will propose the

reappointment of the BOD members at the GMS.

Criteria for BOD
Members Appointment

Those who may be appointed as BOD members
can be Indonesian citizens and/or foreign
nationals who are qualified to be appointed as
Directors of the Company, in line with the articles
of association, and following the provisions of
the prevailing regulations in the Capital Market,
among others:

1. Have a good character, morals and integrity;
2. Are legally competent;

3. Within five years prior to appointment and
during their period:
a. Have not been declared bankrupt;

b. Have never been members of a BOD and/
or a BOC that has been found guilty for
causing a company to bankruptcy;

c. Have never been convicted of a criminal act
that is detrimental to the country’s financial
sector and/or related to the financial
sector; and

d. Have never been members of a BOD and/

or a BOC that during their period:

e Have never conducted an AGMS;

* Have been members of a BOD and/
or a BOC whose accountability had
not been accepted by the GMS or
had not provided the accountability as
members of a BOD and/or a BOC to the
GMS; and

e Have caused a company that obtained
a license, approval, or registration of
OJK to not fulfill the obligation to submit
annual reports and/or financial reports
to OJK;
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e. Have commitment to comply
with the prevailing regulations;

f. Have the required knowledge
and/or expertise in the
Company’s field of business; and

g. Have met the additional
requirements for
Independent Directors.

In addition to the above, BOD
members are also obliged to meet the
following requirements:

1. Have sufficient knowledge and
relevant to their positions;

2. Have an understanding of the laws
and regulations concerning finance
companies as well as other laws
and regulations relating to the
finance companies;

3. Have experience working in finance
companies and other fields that are
relevant to their positions; and

4. Have the ability to make strategic
management decisions in order to
develop the Company into a healthy
financial institution.

The BOD composition since 25 June 2019 is provided in Table 98.

TABLE 98_B0OD COMPOSITION

BOD Composition
and Profile

In 2019, there were changes to the
composition of the BOD of BFI Finance.
The composition of the currently
presiding BOD is based on the
Company’s Minutes of EGMS by means
of the Deed No. 59 dated 28 May

2019 in conjunction with the Deed of
Meeting Resolutions Statement No. 56
dated 25 June 2019 prepared before
Aulia Taufani, S.H., Notary in South
Jakarta Administrative City, accepted
and recorded in the database of the
Legal Entity Administration System’s
database of the Ministry of Law and
Human Rights of the Republic of
Indonesia No. AHU-AH.01.03-0291918
dated 28 June 2019.

No. Name Position Country of Date of End of Number and Date of the Decree
Residence Appointment Term of the Fit and Proper Test
1. Francis Lay Sioe Ho President Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2021 GMS  Decision of the Board of
Director Minutes No. 43 Commissioners of OJK No.
dated 25 April 2016 KEP-2021/NB.1/2014 dated
4 August 2014
2. Sudjono Finance Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2024 GMS Decision of the Board of
Director Minutes No. 59 Commissioners of OJK No.
dated 28 May 2019 KEP-1294/NB.1/2014 dated
3 June 2014
3.  Sutadi Business Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2024 GMS Decision of the Board of
Director Minutes No. 59 Commissioners of OJK No.
dated 28 May 2019 KEP-1292/NB.1/2014 dated
3 June 2014
4. Andrew Adiwijanto  Operations Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2022 GMS  Decision of the Board of
and Human Minutes No. 25 Commissioners of OJK No.
Capital dated 18 April 2017 KEP-465/NB.11/2017 dated
Director 14 August 2017
5.  Sigit Hendra Enterprise Indonesia  Deed of the EGMS 2021 GMS  Decision of the Board of
Gunawan Risk Director Minutes No. 43 Commissioners of OJK No.
(Independent) dated 25 April 2016 KEP-218/NB.11/2016 dated

29 March 2016

Profile of each BOD member is presented in the BOD Profile section in the Company Profile chapter (pages 74-76).
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BOD Guidelines and
Work Rules

In carrying out its duties and
responsibilities, the BOD refers to its
guidelines and work rules prescribed
in the Manual of the BOC and the
BOD of PT BFI Finance Indonesia
Tbk as discussed in the Board of
Commissioners section in the Good
Corporate Governance chapter
(page 210).

Related to the BOD, the Manual
stipulates:

1.

© © N o O M 0D

Function of the BOD
Membership of the BOD

Term of the BOD

Positional Ethics of the BOD
Duties and Authority of the BOD
Authority of the BOD

Rights of the BOD

Meetings of the BOD

Performance Evaluation of the BOD

10. Supporting Bodies of the BOD

BOD Positional Ethics

Ethics of the position of the BOD
governs the ethical principles for the
BOD in carrying out its duties and
responsibilities relating to:

1.
2.

Exemplary Quality

Compliance With Laws and
Regulations

3. Corporate Opportunities

Information Disclosure
and Confidentiality

Conflict of Interest
Personal Benefits

Business Ethics and Anticorruption

BOD Duties and
Responsibilities

Main Duties and
Responsibilities

The duties and responsibilities of the
BOD are to maintain the Company’s
assets and provide appropriate
returns on shareholders’ investments,
also taking into consideration the
interests of other stakeholders. These
responsibilities include the following:

1.

Developing the Company’s vision,
mission, and core values as

well as the Company’s strategic
plans to be consolidated into the
business budget;

Building a strong organizational
structure and clearly define the
functions of each unit of work and
manage human capital effectively;

Establishing a system for internal
control and risk management
mechanisms that ensures the
implementation of the internal audit

function at all levels of management,

consistent with the policies
and procedures that have been
approved; and

Managing the interests of the
stakeholders of the Company.

Special Duties

Specifically, the duties and obligations
of the BOD are as follows:

1. Related to Business and Anti-
Corruption Ethics

a. BOD members are prohibited
from receiving directly or
indirectly, anything of value
from another party to influence,
or as a reward, for what they
have performed.

b. The BOD is obliged to sign the
Integrity Pact for transactional
actions that require the approval
of the BOC, and/or GMS.

c. The BOD is obliged to report to
the Company the shares owned
by respective BOD members
and/or their families within the
Company and other companies
to record in the special register.

2. Related to Internal Control System
and Internal Audit

a. The BOD shall establish a policy
on effective Internal Control
System to secure the Company
investments, business activities,
and assets;

b. Evaluating the implementation of
risk management according to
the specified criteria;

c. Implementing control activities,
i.e. actions to be undertaken to
control Company’s activities at
every level and unit within the
organizational structure of the
Company including, among
others, authority, authorization,
verification, reconciliation,
assessment of job performance,
separation of duties, and security
of Company’s assets;
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Implementing information and
communication systems, for
preparation of reports related
to operations, finances, and
the observance of the rules
and regulations applicable to
the Company;

Implementing monitoring to
assess the quality of the internal
control system including the
internal audit function at all

levels and units of the Company,
so that it can be implemented
optimally, so that irregularities are
reported to the BOD with copies
submitted to the BOG;

Developing SOP for each of the
areas above, adjusted to the
needs of the Company;
Compiling/building internal
control systems to direct

and guide subordinates in

the execution of their duties

to achieve the established

goals and objectives of the
organization, with the ability

to prevent the occurrence of
financial irregularities, leakages
and wastage, and with the ability
to detect and prevent corruption
and collusion;

h. Ensuring an effective internal

control system, the President
Director is structurally assisted
by all officials up to the level of
Department/Unit Head;

Establishing an Internal Audit
Charter to further elaborate

the duties and functions of the
Internal Audit Unit in accordance
with the Decisions of the

BOD; and

Promoting the creation of a
disciplined and structured
internal control environment in
the Company, consisting of:

¢ Integrity, ethical values and
competence of employees;

e Philosophy and
management style;

e The way in which
management exercises its
authority and responsibilities;

e (Organizing and developing
human capital; and

¢ Attention and referrals made
by the BOD.

3. Related to Disclosure and
Confidentiality of Information

a. The BOD must disclose

important information in the
Annual Report and Financial
Statements to other parties,
according the prevailing
regulations in a timely, accurate,
clear and objective manner;

. Ensuring that measurable and

complete information about the
Company can be obtained in a
timely manner by the BOG;

. Disclosing the extent of

implementation of the
GCG principles;

d.

4. Related to Strategic and Work Plans
a.

Presenting the meetings
conducted in any one financial
year (internal meetings and joint
meetings with the BOC);

The confidential information
obtained while serving as a
BOD member of the Company
shall be kept confidential in
accordance with the prevailing
regulations; and

In terms of maintaining the
confidentiality of Company
information, the BOD is required
to give priority to the Company’s
interests above the interests of
other individuals or groups.

The BOD sets out the vision,
mission, goals, strategies and
Company culture;

Promoting and ensuring the
implementation of the business
activities of the Company

in accordance with the
purposes and objectives and
business activities;

Preparing timely development
plans of the Company, Annual
Work Plans, including plans
related to the implementation
of the Company’s business and
activities for submission to the
BOC for approval;

Preparing a draft of Long-term
Plan as a strategic plan to
include the goals and objectives
to be achieved;
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. Striving to achieve the long-term

goals listed in the Long-term
Plan; and

Striving to achieve the short-
term targets listed in the Annual

Risk |dentification

Risk Measurement
Risk Profile Preparation
Risk Management

by the Company with employees,
service users, suppliers and other
stakeholders, as well as ensuring
that the Company carries out its
social responsibility.

Risk Monitoring

Work Plan. 7. The BOD is conducting other

obligations in accordance with
the provisions set out in the
articles of association and the
prevailing regulations.

-~ o o 0 o p

Risk Evaluation
5. Related to Risk Management, the

BOD shall develop and implement a
consistent risk management system. 6.
The risk management system

consists of the following stages:

g. Reporting and Disclosure

Related to Relationships with
Stakeholders, the BOD shall ensure
the assurance of the stakeholders’
rights arising from regulations in
force and/or agreements made

Division of BOD Duties and Responsibilities
The details of duties and responsibilities for each BOD member is presented in Table 99.

TABLE 99_BOD DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Name and Position Duties and Authorities

Francis Lay Sioe Ho
President Director

As the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), he is the highest decision maker in the Company and is responsible for
achieving its business targets and goals. Together with other members of the BOD, he leads the formulation
and implementation of strategic goals and business plans of the Company. He receives direct reports

from all the Directors and heads of work units, comprising the Head of Information Technology (IT) and the
Head of Channel in charge of the Digital Business and Direct Marketing segments. He also supervises the
Compliance, Internal Audit, Corporate Secretary, and Project Management Office (PMO) functions.

Sudjono
Finance Director

As the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), he is responsible for directing and supervising all financial activities,
including the presentation of financial statements in accordance with the financial accounting standards
and the applicable regulations. He is concurrently serving as the Corporate Secretary, acting as a a partner
for every business unit and regional business operation for operational and financial performance analysis
and reporting of each line of business. The work units under his supervision comprise Financial Planning

& Control, Finance & Treasury, Budgeting & Performance Monitoring, Corporate Secretariat (including
Corporate Regulatory & Compliance), Investor Relations, and Corporate Communication & CSR.

Sutadi
Business Director

As the Chief Marketing Officer (CMO), he is responsible for formulating the marketing strategy and work plan
to ensure the achievement of the annual business targets, for preparing the annual budget for the financing
business, which includes retail segment (four-wheeled and two wheeled vehicles and property), commercial
segment for corporate customers (heavy equipment and machinery), and sharia-based financing. He
collaborates with the Enterprise Risk Division in managing the risk level of each product in the retail and
corporate segments to support the achievement of profitability targets. The work units under his supervision
comprise, among others, Product Management & Development for Four-Wheeled and Two-Wheeled
Vehicles, Heavy Equipment and Machinery, Property-Backed Financing (PBF), Channel Acquisition,
Telemarketing, Business Development, Marketing Communication, and Sharia Business Unit (SBU).
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Name and Position

Duties and Authorities

Andrew Adiwijanto

Operations and
Human Capital

As the Chief Operating Officer (COO), he is responsible for ensuring the alignment of functions within the
organization so that the Company’s operations are carried out properly and in compliance with internal
policies. He is also responsible for supervising and ensuring the standardization of customer service, to
continuously maintain a high level of customer satisfaction. He is concurrently serving as the Chief Human
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Director
Capital Officer (CHCO), and therefore is responsible for monitoring the development and management
of HC. He receives direct reports from the Head of Human Capital, the Head of Network Development &
Management, and the Head of Branch Operations & Services.
Sigit Hendra As the Chief Risk Officer (CRO), he is responsible for supervising risk management activities in the Company
Gunawan as a whole, which includes risks related to credit/financing, liquidity and funding, operations, legal and
Enterprise regulations, strategy/business, and reputation. His main duty is to review and approve the proposed
Risk Director business risks, the implementation and monitoring of risk management policies and procedures, credit
(Independent) operations management to support business goals, and maintenance of the comprehensive Management

Information System (MIS) along with its associated analytical tools. He collaborates with the business
and operational units to ensure that all the risks that the Company faces can be identified, measured,
and managed within the predefined boundaries. The work units under his supervision are, among others,
Collection & Recovery (including Legal & Litigation), Credit Operations, and Risk Portfolio & Policy.

BOD Authority and
Rights

The BOD in carrying out the business
activities and operations of the
Company retains the authority to:

1. Implement business development;

2. Represent the Company in and out
of court;

3. Develop provisions concerning
employment including recruitment,
transfer, succession and
termination, salary determination,
post-employment benefits and
retirement, as well as other income
based on the prevailing regulations;

4. Appoint and dismiss the Corporate
Secretary; and

5. Establish strategic and operational
decisions that involve risks
and uncertainties.

— GRI Index: 405-1

In carrying out the business and
operational activities, BOD has the
following rights:

1. Every BOD member is entitled
to resign by submitting a written
notification to the Company of their
intent at least thirty days before the
date of their resignation.

2. Every BOD member has the right
to defend themselves at the GMS
if the GMS at any time dismiss said
BOD member.

3. The BOD has the right to appoint
one or more as representatives or
proxies to perform certain legal
actions by giving special powers set
forth in the power of attorney.

4. The BOD is entitled to represent
the Company in and out of court
on all matters and in any event as
well as perform all acts and deeds,
both regarding maintenance and
ownership, as well as binding

the Company with other parties,
within the restrictions stipulated
in the articles of association of
the Company.

5. The BOD members are entitled to a
salary and/or benefits.

Diversity of BOD
Composition

The composition of the Company’s
BOD reflects the diversity of its
members, both in terms of education,
work experience, age, and skills. Each
BOD member is highly competent with
regards to enhancing the Company’s
performance. The diversity of the BOD
members has been met implicitly with
the fulfilment of the requirements

as BOD members, one of which is
having expertise in the areas that are
important for the Company.
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No. Name Position Competency
1. Francis Lay Sioe Ho  President Education: Master of Business Management (M.B.M.), Bachelor of Business
Director Administration (B.B.A.)
Work Experience: President Director, Director and Founder, Credit Manager,
Treasury Officer, Executive Officer at the Ministry of Finance of Singapore
Age: 71
2. Sudjono Finance Education: Enterprise Risk Manager (ERM™), Master of Business Administration
Director (M.B.A.), Bachelor of Economics in Accounting
Work Experience: Director, Corporate Secretary, Finance and Information
Technology Division Head, Risk Management Committee, Senior Auditor
Age: 49
3. Sutadi Business Education: Bachelor of Industrial Engineering
Director Work Experience: Division Head, Regional Manager, Branch Manager, Sales
Executive, Collection & Credit Analyst Officer
Age: 45
4. Andrew Adiwijanto Operations Education: Master of Business Administration (M.B.A.), Bachelor of Electrical
and Human Engineering
Capital Work Experience: Marketing Officer, Branch Manager and Regional Manager in
Director various regions in Indonesia, Department Head and Division Head in various sections
in the Head Office, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Age: 51
5. Sigit Hendra Enterprise Education: Certified Business Management, Certified Business Management-

Gunawan

Risk Director
(Independent)

Operation, Bachelor of Industrial Engineering

Work Experience: Director, Head of Enterprise Risk, Head of Credit Division,
Deputy Director - Head of Credit & Collection, Account Management Department
Head, Credit Analyst & Risk Department Head (Fleet Division)

Age: 51

BOD Independence

Members of BFI Finance’s BOD have no financial and family relationships to the second degree with fellow BOD members,
members of the BOC, and/or Controlling Shareholders, or relationships with the Company.

TABLE 101_BOD INDEPENDENCE

Financial Relationship with Family Relationship with

. . Controlling . . Controlling

Name Commissioners Directors Shareholders Commissioners  Directors Shareholders
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Francis Lay Sioe Ho - v - v - v - v - v - vV
Sudjono - v - - v - v - v - v
Sutadi - Vv - Vv - Vv - Vv - Vv - v
Andrew Adiwijanto - v - N - N - N . N _ N
Sigit Hendra Gunawan - V - V - v - vV - Vv - Vv

__ GRIl Index: 405-1

business supporting unit
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TABLE 102_BOD SHARE OWNERSHIP AMOUNTING TO 5% OR MORE
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Name Position BFI Finance  Other Company
Francis Lay Sioe Ho President Director None None
Sudjono Finance Director None None
Sutadi Business Director None None
Andrew Adiwijanto Operations and Human Capital Director None None
Sigit Hendra Gunawan Enterprise Risk Director (Independent) None None

Independent Director

Referring to Jakarta Stock Exchange
BOD Decree No. Kep-305/BEJ/07-
2004 dated 19 July 2004 Regulation
No. I-A regarding Registration of
Shares and Equity Securities in addition
to Shares Issued by Listed Companies
determined that the Company may
appoint an Unaffiliated Director, and

in accordance with changes in IDX
Regulations No. I-A on Registration of
Shares and Equity Securities in addition
Shares Issued by Listed Companies
(Appendix | of the Stock Exchange
BOD Decree No. Kep-00001/BEI/01-
2014 dated 20 January 2014) in

which the term “Unaffiliated Company
Director” was replaced by the term
“Independent Director”, the Company
has appointed an Independent Director,
i.e. Sigit Hendra Gunawan.

In addition to fulfiling the requirement
provisions as a BOD member,
Independent Directors should meet the
following requirements:

e Have not been affiliated with the
Company Controller within six
months prior to the appointment as
Independent Directors;

e Are not affiliated with the BOC or the
BOD of the Company;

e Are not working as directors in other
companies; and

e Are not an Insider in a capital market
supporting institution or professional
whose services is used by the
Company within six months prior to
the appointment as Directors.

The term of office for Independent
Directors is a maximum of two
consecutive periods, based on
IDX Circular No. SE-00001/BEI/02-
2014 regarding Term of Office

of Independent Commissioners
and Independent Directors in
Listed Companies.

Concurrent Positions of
BOD Members

Based on Article 9 of POJK 30,

the Company’s BOD members are
prohibited from concurrent positions as
executive directors at other companies,
except as a member of the BOC at a
maximum of three other companies,
except for BOD members who are

responsible for the supervision of
investments in subsidiaries that
conduct business in the financing
industry, carrying out functional tasks
as members of the BOC in subsidiaries
controlled by the Company, as long as
such concurrent positions do not result
in neglect of their duties and authorities
as members of the Company’s BOD.

In accordance with Article 6 of POJK
33, the BOD members may hold
concurrent positions as BOD members
in not more than one other issuer or
other public company, BOC members
in not more than three other issuers
or public companies, and members
of committees in not more than five
committees in the issuers or public
companies where they serve as BOD
or BOC members.

All BOD members of the Company
presiding up to 31 December 2019
have complied with the provisions of
POJK 30 and POJK 383.
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TABLE 103_CONCURRENT POSITIONS OF BOD MEMBERS

Name Position Position Outside the Company
Francis Lay Sioe Ho President Director None
Sudjono Finance Director None
Sutadi Business Director None
Andrew Adiwijanto Operations and Human Capital Director None
Sigit Hendra Gunawan Enterprise Risk Director (Independent) None

Policy on Determining BOD Remuneration

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, the salaries and other
benefits for BOD members will be determined by the BOC, who is authorized by
the AGMS. Remuneration of Directors is determined by the BOC annually.

The AGMS on 28 May 2019 approved the granting of power and authority to
the BOC to determine the duties and responsibilities of each BOD member and
determine the remuneration for the BOD members.

GRAPH 18_BOD REMUNERATION MECHANISM

Recommendation
of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

Approval of The Board of

Commissioner Meeting GMS Approval

The mechanism for determining the remuneration for BOD is as follows:

e The BOD, by taking into account the Company’s financial condition, develops
a proposal of remuneration amount for the BOD to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee examines the proposed
remuneration for the BOD based on the duties and responsibilities of each
Director, the Company’s financial condition, and comparisons with relevant
industries and businesses of a comparable size.

e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make recommendations to
the BOC Meeting for approval, and then be brought to the GMS.

BOD Remuneration
Structure

The BOD’s remuneration structure
consists of:

e Salaries,
e Benefits,
e Facilities, and

e Performance bonus.

Total remuneration for the BOD in 2019
amounted to Rp48,482,685,346.

Orientation Program for
New BOD Members

BFI Finance organizes an orientation
program for the new BOD members,
aiming to enable the new BOC
members to determine the general
condition of the Company and be more
familiar with the other members, and
devise ways to collaborate as a solid,
comprehensive and effective team. The
orientation of new BOD members is
held in the first BOD meeting attended
by the new members.
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BOD Competence Enhancement and Training Programs

The Company allocates a budget for the BOD to attend training programs through various seminars and trainings. The list of
training programs in 2019 attended by BOD members is presented in Table 104.

TABLE 104_TRAINING AND SEMINAR FOR BOD COMPETENCE ENHANCEMENT

Name Position Date Title/Theme Location Organizer

Francis Lay Sioe Ho  President Director National Seminar “Financing
25 July 2019 Industry Amidst Political and Jakarta APPI
Economic Upheavals”

National Seminar
“Opportunities & Challenges Jakarta APPI
in 2020”

26 November
2019

Sudjono Finance Director National Seminar “Financing
25 July 2019 Industry Amidst Political and Jakarta APPI
Economic Upheavals”

National Seminar
“Opportunities & Challenges Jakarta APPI
in 2020”

26 November
2019

Sutadi Business Director National Seminar “Financing
25 July 2019 Industry Amidst Political and Jakarta APPI
Economic Upheavals”

National Seminar

26 November .o pportunities & Challenges  Jakarta APPI

2019 in 2020”
Andrew Adiwijanto Operations and Human National Seminar “Financing
Capital Director 25 July 2019 Industry Amidst Political and Jakarta APPI

Economic Upheavals”

National Seminar

26 November “Opportunities & Challenges Jakarta APPI

2019 in 2020”
Sigit Hendra Enterprise Risk Director National Seminar “Financing
Gunawan (Independent) 25 July 2019 Industry Amidst Political and Jakarta APPI

Economic Upheavals”

7-8 October Master Class “Enterprise Risk

2019 Governance” Jakarta CRMS Indonesia

National Seminar
“Opportunities & Challenges Jakarta APPI
in 2020”

26 November
2019

Committees under the BOD

Up to end of 2019, all supporting bodies of the BOD have been established as divisions, departments, or work units.
Considering the business environment and its internal capacity, the Company has not encountered any urgency to establish
a committee under the BOD. Meanwhile, the performance assessment of each division, department, and work unit is
performed using KPI achievements as the assessment criteria.
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PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOC Performance
Assessment

General Policy

Generally, the performance of the BOC is assessed
against the duties listed in the prevailing regulations
and the articles of association of the Company

as well as the mandate of the Shareholders. The
results of the BOC’s performance assessment will
be an inseparable part of the compensation and
incentive schemes for the BOC.

BOC Performance
Assessment Criteria

The criteria for the BOC'’s performance
assessment at least contains the following:

1. Level of achievement of quorum in any of the
BOC meetings, coordination meetings, and
committee meetings;

2. The Company’s contribution in the
regulatory process;

3. Involvement in specific assignments;

4. Commitment in advancing the interests of the
Company; and

5. Compliance with the applicable regulations,
the articles of association, the GMS provisions,
as well as the Company’s policies.

BOD Performance
Assessment

General Policy

The performance of the BOD and its individual
members is evaluated by the BOC. Generally, the
BOD’s performance is determined based on the
duties listed in the prevailing regulations and the
articles of association of the Company.

— GRI Index: 102-28

The results of the overall performance assessment
of the BOD and the performance of its each
individual member are based on two scoring
standards, i.e. the collective assessment based

on of the achievement of budget enterprises, and
the individual assessments based on the KPIs of
each Director, and as part of an integral part of the
compensation scheme and provision of incentives
for BOD members.

The results of the performance assessment of
individual BOD members is one of the basic
considerations, especially for Shareholders, to
discharge and/or reappoint BOD members. The
results of the performance assessment serve as a
means for assessing as well as improving the BOD.

BOD Performance
Assessment Criteria

The criteria for the BOD’s performance
assessment are found in the KPIs. The collective
and individual performance criteria for Directors
are based on the proposal of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee or other committees
that carry out the nomination and remuneration
function, then are proposed by the BOC to
shareholders for approval. The BOD’s KPlIs
include at least, among others:

1. Contribution to the Company’s
business activities;

2. Involvement in specific assignments;

3. Commitment to advancing the interests of
the Company;

4. Compliance with the prevailing regulations, and
Company policies;

5. Achievement of targets set out in the
Company’s Annual Work Plan and
Management Contract; and

6. Achievement of individual performance against
the determined targets.

Details of the BOD performance assessment is
presented in the BOC Report in the Management
Reports chapter page 33.
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good corporate
governance

BOC Meetings and BOC-
BOD Joint Meetings

BOC Meeting Policy

The BOC shall meet at least once every two
months if attended by a majority or two thirds of
the BOC.

The BOC also holds joint meetings regularly with
the BOD, and if required, a BOC Meeting may
be held after the joint meeting, if it is considered
necessary by one member of the BOC by written
request of one or more members of the BOD or
if requested by one or more shareholders who
together own one tenth of the total shares issued
by the Company with valid voting rights.

BOC Meeting decisions are made based on a joint
decision, and if the decision is not reached by
consensus, then decisions w